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Cricket Tasmania is proud to work with 

the Tasmanian Government and the 

Hobart, Launceston and Burnie City 

Councils in growing the game of cricket. 

Our government partners recognise the 

indelible contribution that cricket makes 

to the Tasmanian community.

From developing Tasmanians to represent Australia 

on the world stage, to hosting domestic or international 

cricket at Blundstone Arena, UTAS Stadium and 

West Park Oval, or supporting our 50,000-strong 

cricket community to pursue an active and healthy 

lifestyle – cricket is a vital part of the fabric 

of Tasmania’s sporting heritage.

Thanks to the support from the Tasmanian Government 

and the Hobart, Launceston and Burnie City Councils, 

Cricket Tasmania is able to unite and uplift the Tasmanian 

community through their passion for cricket, support 

local businesses, provide community services and 

perform educational programs as we grow the game at 

all levels right across our wonderful State and ensure 

cricket remains Tasmania’s favourite sport.

Tasmanian cricket’s 
strongest batting line-up

Going 
into bat 
together.
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From the Chairman

The performance of all our of teams could best be 
described as promising but perhaps in the end, 
frustrating. We put ourselves in the position to win but 
at the end of the day there was no silverware. At Cricket 
Tasmania we don’t like saying “Tasmania punches 
above our weight” because we are part of a national, 
professional competition and will be judged in comparison 
to Victoria and NSW, not the Northern Territory or ACT. 
We like to think that we just punch and punch hard.

Some of our hardest punchers deserve special recognition.

The Tigers men had an excellent JLT One Day Cup, 
making the final but finishing runners-up after having to 
bat second on an increasingly slow and low pitch. We 
remained well in the running during the Sheffield Shield 
until the second last round, falling just short of what 
would have been a record 450 run chase. 

The Hurricanes men led the competition throughout, 
winning ten games and playing some exciting and 
dominating cricket, but lost the home semi-final. 

The performances of all of our men’s teams point to a 
significant upside over the next few years. We have a 
mix of good experienced players together with exciting 
young players who are putting their names forward for 
national selection.

Which leads me to our female program. For many years 
our female program has been under-resourced. Over 
the last two years we have made a conscious effort to 
pump significant funds into the women’s program and the 
results have certainly showed. 

There are a couple of things which are missing in the 
Cricket Tasmania trophy cabinet. One is a Big Bash trophy 
and the other is female silverware. 

It may come as a surprise to some out there in the 
community, but the AFL did not invent women’s sport. 
The Australian Women’s Cricket Championship has been 
in place since 1930 and the WNCL since 1996. Our female 
professional Tasmanian senior team will next season 
celebrate ten years of playing in the WNCL. And they have 
managed to do this wearing green, yellow and maroon, 
not blue and white.

This year saw a significant and remarkable improvement 
in the WNCL. In the past eight years our female team had 
six wins from 49 matches. This year saw the team win four 
games from six matches, losing out on a grand final spot 
by a bonus point and a loss by 13 runs in the last round. 
Congratulations to Salliann Briggs and all the coaching 
staff and team. Next season looks promising with several 
high-profile recruits.

Our women’s Big Bash team was perhaps cruelled by 
the early injury to Hayley Matthews, mixed in with a 
number of games where we got ourselves into winnable 
positions but then lost, including two super-overs. 
However, with most of the team returning for next 
season there is a great upside.

If we want cricket to be Tasmania’s favourite sport 
and a sport for all Tasmanians, then we need to ensure 
that our women’s teams are held in the same regard as 
our men’s teams.

For many years our awards night was known as the 
Ricky Ponting Medal Night. It is now known as the Cricket 
Tasmania Awards Night, because it recognises both our 
male and female champions. Further, from next season we 
will strike a medal which will be presented in conjunction 
with the Ricky Ponting Medal for the outstanding overall 
female cricketer in all competitions. The challenge now is 
for those either in or entering the program to have such a 
career that we can name the medal after them. 

The Big Bash League in its expanded form this season 
provided the ability to take more cricket around Tasmania. 
The female Hurricanes made history by playing in Burnie 
for the first time, with over 2,000 fans coming to see the 
two games in December. Next year we again intend to 
travel to Burnie and Launceston. 

The Men’s Hurricanes played two games in Launceston 
with over 25,000 fans turning up to watch. These games 
are important to ensure that our cricket teams remain 
Tasmania’s teams, the success of which can be gauged 
by a team called Hobart attracting 25,000 passionate 
and supportive fans when playing in Launceston.

Together, with the Australian Cricketers Association, 
we are working to bring past players back into the fold. 
It is important to live in the present, look to the future, 
but to ensure that we don’t forget the past.

In February we honoured the 40th anniversary of 
Tasmania’s first Shield win and Gillette Cup win of 1979, 
with all but one of the living members attending and 
showing that they still knew how to have a good time. 
In future years, these sorts of reunions will be an annual 
event. Next season we will celebrate the ten years of 
our women’s team and also 30 years since our first Test 
Match, so plenty of reminiscing to look forward to.

There were numerous personal achievements. 
These included :

�� Of course Tim Paine performing such a stellar job 
as Australian Test Captain in difficult times. Tim’s 
laid back yet strong leadership has been instrumental 
in the Australian team recovering the ground it had 
lost in the public eye. In addition, Ben McDermott 
and D’Arcy Short were both rewarded with 
Australian representation. 

�� At this years’ Australian Cricket Awards, Matthew Wade 
was rightly named Domestic Player of the Year with 
Jackson Bird not far behind. 

�� Adam Griffith selected as Assistant Coach (along 
with Ricky Ponting) for the World Cup in England.

�� Drew Ginn being appointed as High Performance 
Manager at Cricket Australia.

�� Georgia Redmayne was named WNCL Player of the 
Year, with Corinne Hall also in the top 5 vote scorers.

�� In these times the Richie Benaud Spirit of Cricket 
Awards for the men’s and women’s teams who are 
voted as having played in the best of spirit and with the 
greatest respect for the game are highly valued. It was 
a real pleasure to have both our men’s and women’s 
teams win these awards for the past season. Well done 
to all involved - it isindicative that we play hard but fair.

�� Corinne Hall and Jake Doran were two of the three 
finalists at the Australian Cricket Awards for the 
Community Champion Award, an award developed 
in partnership between Cricket Australia and the 
Australian Cricketers Association to acknowledge the 
contribution of players to the broader community and 
people who have gone above and beyond in charity or 
community work. 

�� Emma Mannix-Geeves was named Player of the 
Women’s Tournament at the National Indigenous 
Cricket Championships.

�� Sam Nogalski and Michael Graham-Smith again enjoyed 
excellent umpiring seasons, with Sam selected to 
umpire the Sheffield Shield Final.

�� A special mention to Michael Gandy and Tony Harrison 
who in the Australia Day and Queen’s Birthday Honours 
this year received Medals of the Order of Australia for 
their services to cricket over a long time.

�� Hearty congratulations to all of the men’s and women’s 
Grade teams who won premierships this season, 
Lindisfarne and North Hobart in the Cricket Tasmania 
Premier League, Westbury and South Launceston in 
Cricket North and Burnie and Latrobe in Cricket North-
West, South Hobart/Sandy Bay as the Kookaburra Cup 
Premiers for Men and Kingborough for Women.

Sadly over the last 12 months we have lost some 
good friends of Tasmanian cricket and we pay our 
respects to them, including Wendy Gillies the wife of 
our former President Glen and Tom Rocher, former 
Tasmanian cricketer.

A special thanks to:

�� my fellow Directors on the Cricket Tasmania Board 
and particularly Deputy Chairman Chris Mitchell;

�� our management team ably led by Chief Executive Nick 
Cummins;

�� the State Government for its ongoing support 
and particularly its increased sponsorship of 
women’s cricket;

�� our Hurricanes Big Bash principal partner Tassal, WBBL 
principal partner MyState, major partner for WBBL and 
BBL Cadbury and all our other corporate supporters;

�� the Clarence, Hobart, Launceston and Burnie Councils;

�� all our Members, supporters and followers throughout 
Australia and the rest of the world.

Season 2019-20 promises to be an exciting one for 
Tasmanian cricket. 

I look forward to seeing you there.

Another season has come and 
gone; the second year of our 
three-year rebuild and things are 
certainly progressing well ahead 
of our expectations.
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From the 
Chief Executive
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When I commenced at Cricket Tasmania, I had a very clear 
picture of our first three years’ priorities; professionalise, 
commercialise and perform.

Get the right people in the right roles, realise the 
commercial potential of our teams and our venue and 
deliver outstanding results whether that be on the field 
or in the community.

Season 2018-19 has seen the organisation reap the 
benefits of this prioritisation.

On the field we saw Tasmanian teams competing in finals. 
In the Men’s Program our Tigers performed magnificently, 
making their first finals appearance since 2011-12, falling 
short against Victoria. While in the BBL, the Hurricanes 
won the minor premiership with a record number wins in 
a BBL season. It was disappointing to lose in the semi final 
against the Stars, but I am pleased to see that BBL HQ has 
amended the finals structure to properly reward the team 
that finishes top with a double chance.

We are particularly proud of the progress of the Women’s 
Program. In advance of last season we made significant 
changes to the structure of the program committing more 
than $500,000 of additional investment to the program, 
hiring rising star Salliann Briggs as our Head Coach and 
Dan Marsh as her assistant. In addition, our female players 
committed to moving to Tasmania full time, rather than 
continuing the fly in fly out model that had been a feature 
of the Women’s Program since inception.

Our WBBL campaign was cruelled by the key injury of 
Hayley Matthews and a number of painfully close losses, 
masking the progress we had made in the women’s game.

Fortunately, our WNCL campaign was more reflective 
of the progress we had made. With an historical 6-47  
win/loss record in the tournament, the women responded 
with a 4-2 season, narrowly missing their first ever Final.

The foundations are in place, and with Australian players 
Nicola Carey, Belinda Vakarewa and Tayla Vlaeminck 
joining our program for the 2019-20 season, I expect 
the program to continue to evolve.

All this progress has been capably lead by Drew Ginn, 
who leaves us to take on the role of Executive General 
Manager of High Performance at Cricket Australia. 
It’s a big loss for Cricket Tasmania but a massive gain 
for Australian cricket as well as a vote of confidence for 
the direction of our High Performance program.

In the Community Cricket domain we are continuing to 
make progress towards our aspiration of making cricket 
Tasmania’s favourite sport.

We had some good wins in the growth of women and 
girls cricket, and have grown our community cricket 
infrastructure spend from $61,200 in 2018 to $216,000 
in 2019. This means better facilities for our participants 
across the state, and our goal is to maintain and ultimately 
increase this investment well into the future.

We have some work to do around Cricket Blast, our entry 
level program for children. It’s a highly engaging format 
of the game that gives kids a great introduction to the 
game we love. However, we need to continue to support 
local clubs in rolling this program out across the state 
and this will be a focus over the upcoming season.

I’m really pleased with the work that Eamonn 
Doherty and David Fry have lead in the competition 
administrations space.

Cricket Tasmania has taken responsibility of managing 
the SCA and TCL cricket competitions, providing our 
overstretched volunteers with valuable administrative 
support which has allowed the Boards of these 
competitions to concentrate on strategic issues rather 
than the daily grind of administration.

We’ve made significant progress in continuing to grow 
the game in the north of the state.

The introduction of the Greater Northern Raiders into the 
CTPL has been well received by the community and their 
performances have been heartening for a team in the first 
year of its existence. I’m pleased to see that the Raiders’ 
committee will be expanding their program and adding 
a women’s team to the CTPL competition.

Coupled with the growth of Premier Cricket in the region 
has been the expansion of Big Bash content into the 
North and North West.

Our WBBL weekend in Burnie was warmly received by 
locals with 2,000 people watching the Hurricanes take on 
the Melbourne Stars, while we added a second BBL game 
to our Launceston fixtures, exposing the game to 26,000 
spectators and a further 840,000 viewers at home.

It’s important to provide a visible pathway for boys and 
girls across the state to inspire our next generation of 
Tigers and Hurricanes, ensuring that our sport is vibrant 
well into the future.

Commercially, the Hurricanes have taken their position 
as Tasmania’s Team, the flagship of all that is great about 
this state.

Lead by our Principal Partner Tassal, it was terrific to 
see MyState step up as our Principal Partner for the 
WBBL team and welcome global brand Cadbury as 
our Major Partner.

These partners are supported by an exclusive group of 
valued sponsors that have seen our commercial revenue 
double in the past 12 months.

Like all businesses, our sponsors have limited budgets, 
and most importantly, have a choice where they spend 
their money. Consequently, we do not take their support 
for granted and thank each and every one of them for 
their continued support of Tasmanian cricket.

Blundstone Arena continues to grow in status as one  
of cricket’s great venues. With other cricket grounds 
facing the challenges of drop in pitches, or the threat 
of drop in pitches, Cricket Tasmania is fortunate to  
have a traditional cricket wicket, curated by one 
of Australia’s best curators in Marcus Pamplin.

The venue has continued to expand its hosted content, 
we now host four North Melbourne games and around 
25 days of elite level cricket.

We will continue to look for opportunities to host more 
content, particularly in the off season, to grow the number 
sports our members can enjoy as part of their Cricket 
Tasmania membership.

We are all very proud of the financial result we have 
delivered this year. It is the culmination of a lot of tough 
decisions, careful cost management and energetic 
revenue growth over the past few years. The result is 
a cricket association that is financially secure with a 
commitment to debt reduction and the capability to 
invest further in growing the game. 

In order to reach this position, we have often had to 
make the decisions that are not necessarily warmly 
received by all stakeholders. However, I can assure 
members that all decisions are made with the best 
interests of Tasmanian cricket at their core.

None of this could be achieved without the support 
of the Board or the dedication of the staff at Cricket 
Tasmania. I’d like to thank each and every one of them 
for their commitment to our strategy and desire to make 
our organisation a success.

In particular, I would like to thank my Executive Team; 
Scott Barnes, Taryn Brighten, Drew Ginn, Stephen 
McMullen, Samantha Ravani, Phil Rigby, Zoe Rohrer 
and Ben Smith.

Our focus in 2019-20 will be execution. Execution is the 
single biggest market differentiator, and it is the key to 
Cricket Tasmania moving from being a good organisation 
to a great organisation.

We’re confident we have built the foundation for success 
and look forward to next season with great anticipation.

It’s very pleasing to reflect on 
the past 12 months and how 
much progress we have made.
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Cricket Tasmania Member Milestones

60+ Years Members

Garth Cobern, Don Mills, Peter Murfett.

50+ Years Members

Roger Connolly, Bob Cotgrove, Marcus Henry, 
Graeme Morrisby, Roderick Scurrah, Brian Sheen, 

Tim Swifte, Ben Wignall, Ken Williams, 
Kevin Wilson.

40+ Years Members

Simon Allanby, Ken Anning, Tim Anning, 
Wayne Anning, James Briggs, Mike Burke, 

Jock Coe, Judy Cox, Lyn Cox, Ian Crowden, 
Peter Cusick, Don Edwards, Pat Edwards, 

Graeme Farrell, Ric Finlay, Peter Fisher, Peter Fyfe, 
Keith Graver, Bill Jones, David Jones,  

Greg Melick, Brian Mitchell, Bruce Neill, Penny Neill, 
Brent Palfreyman, Pam Palfreyman, Graeme Peck, 

Michael Street, Peter Williams.

30+ Years Members

Andrew Abbott, Laurie Ackroyd, Malcolm Barron, 
Margo Barron, Vincent Barron, Chris Bennett, 
Simon Boughey, Malcolm Brown, Ray Brown, 

Peter Brownrigg, Geoff Burrows, Paul Calvert AO, 
Tim Chalmers, Bob Cheek, Graeme Costelloe, 

Peter Crosswell, Doug Davey, Maree Davey, David Dimsey, 
Enrico DiVenuto, Barry Donoghue, Justin Edwards, 

Simon Edwards, Philip Eldridge, John Fisher, Tony Foster, 
Denese Gandy, Mike Gandy, Rex Gillam, Glenn Gillies,  

Kevin Glass, Geoffrey Green, Harold Gregg, Peter Hallam, 
John Hamilton, John Hand, Philip Hand, Geoff Harper,  

Noel Harper, Ingrid Harrison, Tony Harrison, Peter Hawkins, 
Philip Hopson, Leonie Howard, Paul Howard, Charles 
Hunt, Chris Johnson, Anthony Jones, Michael Lennon, 

Michael Loughhead, Jagdish Maharaj, Andrew Mahoney, 
Tony Manley, Brent Mills, Steven Mitchell, Jason Morrisby, 

Desmond Mortimer, Michael Norman, Jennifer Norris, 
Mark Peterson, Robert Ramsay, Allan Reardon, 

Denis Rogers AO, Denise Rowlands, Geoff Rowlands, 
John Smeaton, Valentine Smith, John Steele, Darrel Stringer, 

Edward Swifte, Bill Trethewie, Neil Turnbull, Ronald Ward, 
Mark Warmbrunn, David Whitehouse, Gary Williams.

Veronica Pyke

Cricket Tasmania wishes the very best to outgoing left-
arm quick bowler, Veronica Pyke.

‘Ronnie’ was a foundation player for the State, captaining 
the first ever Tasmanian Women’s team and departs the 
Tigers having featured in 53 WNCL matches. 

Following the end of the rebel WBBL|04 season, Pyke had 
featured in 54 matches for the Hobart Hurricanes across 
all four seasons of the WBBL taking 41 wickets.

Pyke’s best season to date in purple came in the 
competition’s inaugural season, WBBL|01, when she 
claimed 22 wickets.

Hamish Kingston

Cricket Tasmania extends its best wishes to outgoing 
right-arm bowling allrounder, Hamish Kingston.

Heralding from South Hobart-Sandy Bay, Kingston had 
been a contracted player at Cricket Tasmania since 
2014, making 11 First-Class appearances, featuring in the 
One-Day Domestic Cup on 13 occasions and in the KFC 
Big Bash League five times for the Adelaide Strikers and 
Hobart Hurricanes.

Kingston was at his most prolific at the First-Class level, 
where from October 2014 to the final game of the 2018-19 
Sheffield Shield Season he claimed 32 wickets with best 
bowling match figures of 7/113.
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Cricket Tasmania Awards

Tasmanian Tigers captain, Matthew Wade, has capped a remarkable 
2018-19 Summer of cricket by claiming the Ricky Ponting Medal 
at the Cricket Tasmania Awards at Wrest Point in Hobart.

Awarded to the finest Tigers player across the JLT One-
Day Cup and JLT Sheffield Shield seasons - through  
match-by-match voting by Head Coach, Adam Griffith, 
Senior Assistant Coach, Jeff Vaughan and the 12 players 
named in each fixture, Wade (247 votes) won from Jackson 
Bird (189), Alex Doolan (152) and Ben McDermott (124).

31-year-old Wade tallied 1,021 runs at an average of 60.05 
across the Sheffield Shield season - reaching eight half-
centuries and two near match-winning centuries.

At the top of the order against the white ball for Tasmania, 
Wade accumulated 187 runs in seven matches at an 
average of 26.7.

He also completed 20 dismissals whilst playing as the 
Tigers wicketkeeper for the majority of the summer.

The stellar form Wade displayed against the red ball also 
won him the David Boon Medal as Tasmania's Sheffield 
Shield Player of the Year with 208 votes ahead of Jackson 
Bird (156), Alex Doolan (135) and Riley Meredith (82 votes).

The Jack Simmons Medal for Tasmania's best player in 
the JLT One-Day Cup was won by Gurinder Sandhu, who 
finished as the competition's joint leading wicket-taker in 
his first season in Tigers colours - including taking a hat-
trick in a remarkable seven-wicket haul in the tournament 
Final against Victoria.

Sandhu's 18 wickets came in six matches having begun 
the tournament outside the Tigers' initial squad before 
James Faulkner was ruled out through injury.

In a record-breaking season for Tasmania's Women's team 
following their re-branding to Tigers from Roar, Corinne 
Hall took home the Tigers' WNCL Player of the Year award 
with 101 votes ahead of veteran left-arm quick, Veronica 
Pyke (84), 'keeper-bat Georgia Redmayne (80) and all-
rounder Meg Phillips (66).

Hall was a pivotal player in the Tigers' run, falling just 
short of a first-ever WNCL Final with three half centuries 
in five matches, tallying 241 runs at an average of 60.25.

The Jamie Cox Young Male Player of the Year was 
awarded to fast bowler, Riley Meredith, who continues to 
emerge as a key player across red and white ball formats 
for Tasmania.

The 22-year-old quick also enjoyed a breakout season in 
the KFC Big Bash League for the Hobart Hurricanes.

14-year-old boom leg-spinning WNCL debutant, Amy 
Smith, was a clear choice for the Female Young Player of 
the Year award and will be a talent to watch for Tasmanian 
cricket fans for many years to come.

Tigers Women's rookie, Emma Manix-Geeves, won the 
National Indigenous Cricket Championships Female 
Player of the Year for her performance in the tournament 
for Victoria and Josh Barry won the male equivalent 
award as the Tigers won all the way to the Semi-Final 
stage in Alice Springs.

The Media Awards were taken home by Chris Rowbottom 
from ABC News (Best Men's Story), for his story on the 
40th anniversary reunion on Tasmania's 1978/79 Gillette 
Cup winning team, the first-ever domestic cricket title for 
the State.

The Best Female Story was written by Adam Smith from 
The Mercury, for his take on Sasha Moloney's rapid rise to 
the captaincy role of our Hobart Hurricanes WBBL team.

The award for Best Photo was also taken home by The 
Mercury and their Head of Vision, Richard Jupe, for his 
sensational shot of two stars from our Hobart Hurricanes 
BBL team, D'Arcy Short and Matthew Wade. The photo 
now adorns the lift in the Cricket Tasmania offices at 
Blundstone Arena.

Cricket Tasmania congratulates all of this year's award 
winners on their outstanding achievements throughout 
the 2018-19 Summer of Cricket.

Male Tigers: Shield

Cap 194 Gurinder Sandhu,  
195 Alex Pyecroft,  

196 Charlie Wakim, 197 Sean Willis

Male Tigers: One-Day

218 Aaron Summers,  
219 Gurinder Sandhu

Female Tigers

33 Alex Hartley, 34 Amy Smith

BBL

54 James Faulkner, 55 Johan Botha,  
56 Jake Doran, 57 Caleb Jewell,  

58 David Moody, 59 Jarrod Freeman, 
60 Qais Ahmad 

WBBL

22 Rhiann O’Donnell,  
23 Alex Hartley,  

24 Smriti Mandhana,  
25 Mikayla Hinkley, 

26 Ashley Day

2018-19 Debutants

Ricky Ponting Medal 

1. Matthew Wade 247
2. Jackson Bird 189
3. Alex Doolan 152

4. Ben McDermott 124

David Boon Medal  
JLT Sheffield Shield  

Player of the Tournament

1. Matthew Wade 208
2. Jackson Bird 156
3. Alex Doolan 135

4. Riley Meredith 82

Jack Simmons Medal 
JLT One-Day Cup Player 

of the Tournament

1. Gurinder Sandhu 117
2. Ben McDermott 110 

3. Clive Rose 83 
4. George Bailey 60

WNCL  
Player of the Tournament 

1. Corinne Hall 101
2. Veronica Pyke 84 

3. Georgia Redmayne 80 
4. Meg Phillips 66

Hurricanes WBBL  
Player of the Tournament 

1. Heather Knight 256 
2. Smriti Mandhana 142
3. Erin Fazackerley 117
4. Brooke Hepburn 110

Hurricanes BBL  
Player of the Tournament 

1. D’Arcy Short 285
2. Matthew Wade 240
3. George Bailey 157
4. Jofra Archer 125

14-year-old boom leg-spinning WNCL debutant, Amy Smith, was a 
clear choice for the Female Young Player of the Year award and will be 
a talent to watch for Tasmanian cricket fans for many years to come.
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Venue Operations Blundstone Arena
From General Manager Stephen McMullen

Ground Report Blundstone Arena
From Head Curator Marcus Pamplin

Another very busy year for the Venue & Event 
Operations team. On field, there was 33 sporting events 
which saw an attendance of nearly 125,000 coming to 
our facility. Off field we held over 400 functions and 
events with a gathering of over 16,000. Add to this the 
training workloads, room sets, internal meetings as well 
as the tenancy of nearly 200 staff and players from ten 
separate entities and we are quickly become the venue 
that never rests.

There have been some challenges throughout the year 
with access to facilities front of mind. Our curating team 
have had their workload lifted with the installation of 
the Marquee to allow access to turf for the players from 
late May. This is significant as previously September 
has been seen as an early period to have the grass in 
condition for us. 

We have worked closely with the Clarence City Council 
to consolidate the four permits which we have operated 
under into the one permit. Including in this we have 
had an extension to light operating times to cater for 
broadcast events. This area continues to be a challenging 
environment as we are operating in a residential area, 
which we are very mindful of. This means we need to 
ensure the balance between local amenity and event day 
experiences is sound.

During the year we leased out the operations of the 
Hurricanes Café to Ken & Fiona Quan. The decision to do 
this was taken after we found our team was too stretched 
trying to deliver in this area, as well as match day and 
function centre. The transition to the Quan’s has been 
very good and the café continues to be very popular for 
staff and patrons from the area. 

For the current financial year the function centre 
drove enormous traffic through the venue, managing 
over 400 events for FY18-19. The small and dedicated 
catering team, provided over 2.2 tonnes of red meat 
(mostly beef), and nearly the same in chicken, salmon 
and fish (2.1 tonnes) to over 16,000 people who enjoyed 
the use of our function facilities.

For 2019-20 we have some key focuses to work on 
including but not limited to;

�� Continued development of Members  
match day experience 

�� Century Room Works – reconfiguration

�� Develop Community Integration Program

�� Investigate sustainability measure for facility

�� Resurface Church Street Wicket table

�� Set Members Pavilion Masterplan

Finally, and in my view most importantly, I’d like to 
acknowledge the hard work of the venue and event 
operations team over the last year. Our staff work very 
long hours which quite often go unnoticed, however they 
deliver a fantastic experience for all of our stakeholders. 
In particular I’d like to acknowledge my four area 
supervisors and their dedicated teams;

�� Marcus Pamplin	 Curating
�� Luke Webster	 Hospitality
�� Steve Dineen	 Facilities and Maintenance 
�� Jenny Symons 	 (as well as the departed  

	 Jason Iten & Taryn Brighten)

Internationals 

This season Blundstone Arena hosted South Africa in the 
deciding One Day International. 

The pitch provided a little bit early with the new ball and 
then the batsman took advantage of the ball coming on 
nicely onto the bat. David Miller 139, Faf du Plessis 125 and 
Shaun Marsh 106 starred and Dale Steyn 3-45 and Kagiso 
Rabada 3-40 bowled the visitors to victory. 

Sheffield Shield

The pitches for the Sheffield Shield were consistent 
throughout the season. The pace and bounce provided 
a contest between and ball, which was highlighted with 
good batting and bowling performances. As a result, 
the pitches and outfield were given excellent feedback 
throughout the year, which gave us the number 1 ranking 
for the year for both pitches and outfield.

BBL

The BBL and WBBL schedule was a lot longer, which 
meant the season ended mid-February. We saw great 
results for the women and for the men. Oliver Beswick did 
an outstanding job in preparing the WBBL pitches. The 
players enjoyed great conditions which helped the men 
achieve a top of the ladder finish. 

Blundstone Arena received the number 1 ranking for 
the pitch and the outfield across all venues in the BBL 
competition. This was a terrific reward for the curating 
team during the Christmas, New Year period when there is 
a lot of weekend work and late nights.

Pre-Season Marquee  
over Practice Turf Pitches

A Marquee over the winter months was installed in June 
and removed in September. This provided invaluable 
practice for our state women’s and men’s team to hone 

their techniques. The hardest part of preparing the 
pitches is getting the right moisture content and the 
grass coverage strong and healthy prior to the marquee 
installation. Once the marquee is erected, moisture is 
trapped in the profile and only light watering is needed to 
keep the grass healthy. The staff did an outstanding job 
balancing preparation of cricket pitches and preparing the 
outfield for AFL during the winter months. 

In the future we will be looking at installing a heating 
system under the pitches to aid the drying process. This 
will involve reconstructing the whole profile and running 
hydronic cabling down each pitch.

Practice Pitches 

The practice pitches again had a very heavy schedule this 
summer, with both the women’s and men’s programs, the 
sessions added up to in excess of 200 sessions. Again, the 
staff did a great job to provide excellent pitches for the 
demands of the cricket season.

AFL

The ground again is holding up well to the rigours of the 
football season, with very high use for training and early 
morning games on match days. North Melbourne and 
other teams have all given excellent feedback on the oval. 
With an extra North Melbourne game added to the roster 
for 2019 the program is packed again.

Staff

Again, the curating staff have done a tremendous job in 
continuing to provide world class surfaces for the different 
codes. It is extremely rewarding to see such a young 
group of men to have so much pride in what they prepare.

Over the cricket season Angus Vear from Victoria joined 
the curating staff as an apprentice. During the cricket 
season, Blair Dayton left the curating team to return to 
Risdon prison as a warden. 
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FINAL LADDER POSITION: 8TH | TOTAL WINS: 2

2,033 374

33 8 40 10

82*(55)

195

TOTAL 
RUNS TOTAL RUNS
TOTAL  
SIXES SIXES FOURS

TOTAL 
CATCHES

HIGHEST SCORE

30 MORE THAN LAST SEASON

TOTAL  
FOURS

433,000 WBBL  
ALL-TIME HIGHEST 

BROADCAST MATCH

370,485 Unique Users

TOURNAMENT TEAM STATS HEATHER KNIGHT

IN-SEASON WEBSITE STATS

TOTAL18,053
Highest: 2,463 vs. Heat,
University of Tasmania Stadium,  
Launceston

Home: 7,360 | Away: 10,693

MATCH ATTENDANCE

IN-SEASON SOCIAL MEDIA STATS

HIGHEST VIDEO ENGAGEMENTS:

TOTAL 
VIEWERS

BROADCAST/LIVESTREAM AUDIENCE

1.6+  
MILLION

451,576 USER
VISITS

Mandhana Net Session

WBBL|04 2018 – 19

TASMANIAN STATISTICS

2 MATCHES,
West Park,  

Burnie,

W/BBL
MAJOR PARTNER

WBBL
PRINCIPAL PARTNER

32,400 143,738

14.8K 85.7K

GAIN: 3,620
25.39% INCREASE

GAIN: 34, 988
31.77% INCREASE

FOLLOWERS FOLLOWERS

SEASON OVERVIEW

3 MATCHES,
Blundstone Arena,  

Hobart

2 MATCHES,
University of  

Tasmania Stadium,  
Launceston

Blundstone Arena Function 
Centre has been very 
busy for FY 2018-19, 
delivering great service to 
our guests new and old.

Blundstone Arena 
Function Centre
From Catering Manager Luke Webster

The centre has been fortunate to have hosted over 
230 external events with varying menu selections, and 
numerous conference configurations. To be added to 
the above is 5 Shield matches, 6 BBL matches, 5 WBBL 
matches, one ODI, 3 AFL matches and 2 weddings!

We found the calendar to be very full all year round! 
Functions from 10-500 guests found their way through 
our doors, to be ably catered for by our team on a regular 
basis, averaging 8 events every week!

Of particular note was the Liberal Party State conference 
– a 3 day venue wide event, with an opening cocktail 
party, Gala dinner, multiple course lunches and 
conference service. This was achieved seamlessly with 
multiple stakeholders and concurrent events, resulting 
in excellent feedback from a very happy client! This 
particular event allowed our team to showcase the 
range and flexibility our Venue can provide for our ever-
increasing clientele.

I’m so proud to work with head chef Matthew Harrison, 
sous chef Shayne Lewis and their talented team who 
have excelled in the kitchens. Our front of house team 
led by Leah Gregory Lamb and Tim Bessell have been 
exemplary, and for their hard work I am very grateful.

Our sales manager Tristan Hall has been exceptional, 
without his hard and diligent work none of these 
achievements would have been possible. 

In summary, Blundstone Arena Function Centre has a 
dedicated team, working together with our clients and 
stakeholders to provide excellent product and service, 
regardless of their celebration.
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FINAL LADDER POSITION: 1ST PLACE (MINOR PREMIERS) 
TOURNAMENT RESULT: SEMI-FINALISTS

2,437 637
22
65

AVERAGE RATINGS
(FOX)

AVERAGE RATINGS 
(FOX/CH 7)

ALL-TIME RECORD 
SEASON RUNS

SIXES
FOURS

187K 900K

TOURNAMENT TEAM STATS

231,109

2ND HIGHEST
12,920 vs. Sixers,
Blundstone Arena, Hobart

*  Each Tasmanian location held 
one extra match this year

Home: 90,780 | Away: 140,329
IN-SEASON SOCIAL MEDIA STATS

PEAK 
AUDIENCE

BROADCAST AUDIENCE

1.5  
MILLION

BBL|08 2018 – 19

99.5K373.1K 88.3K

60.9% INCREASE20.6% INCREASE0.14% INCREASE

FOLLOWERSFOLLOWERS

SEASON OVERVIEW

FOLLOWERS

MOST WICKETS  
Jofra Archer (18), James Faulkner (18)

MOST CATCHES  
Ben McDermott (10)

BEST BOWLING  
 Riley Meredith (4/21 v Scorchers)

HIGHEST SCORE

96*(57)  
V STARS

10M
TOTAL TV  
RATINGS

167,738 Unique Users

14,920 Video Views
BBL Clubs Network Traffic Volume: 9.7%

IN-SEASON WEBSITE STATS

544,077 WEBSITE
VISITSMATCH ATTENDANCE

D’ARCY SHORT: PLAYER OF THE TOURNAMENT

TOTAL  
SIXES
TOTAL  
FOURS190

80

TOTAL 
RUNS

TOTAL

HIGHEST  
13,836 vs. Strikers,
University of Tasmania Stadium,  
Launceston

BBL
PRINCIPAL PARTNER

W/BBL
MAJOR PARTNER

WBBL
PRINCIPAL PARTNER

The Tasmanian Cricket 
Museum offers a 
special experience for 
cricket enthusiasts with 
innovative displays, video 
and state-of-the-art 
interactive technology.

Tasmanian Cricket Museum
and Blundstone Arena Tours

Entry costs for the Museum

Adults $2 and Children $1 
Cricket Tasmania Members free

To make a tax deductible donation to the 
Tasmanian Cricket Museum and Library, please go to 

www.hurricanesfoundation.com.au/museumandlibrary 

Opening hours for the 
Museum and Library

Tuesday to Thursday 10am – 3pm 
Match days access may vary – check with staff 

on duty. People wishing to use the library outside 
staffed hours above should contact 

Cricket Tasmania reception on 6282 0400  
or e-mail info@crickettas.com.au

Tasmania’s rich cricket heritage dating back to the very early 
years of settlement is illustrated through displays and video. 
The most recent additions to the Museum are the Ricky Ponting 
Corner - unveiled by Ricky himself, prior to the first Twenty20 
International match under lights at Blundstone Arena on 21 
February 2010. As well as the display of all of cricketers to 
represent Tasmania or the Hobart Hurricanes since 1977. 

The Max Atwell Memorial Library was established after the 
Cricket Tasmania Board of Directors agreed to purchase the 
cricket library assembled and owned by the late Max Atwell.

The collection of approximately 3,000 books is regarded as 
one of the finest private libraries in Australia. 

The library has continued to grow through generous 
donations by Cricket Tasmania Members and cricket followers 
around the State. 

The library, originally in the Cricket Tasmania Boardroom, 
was moved to its own room adjacent to the Museum on the 
first floor of the Members Pavilion, on the completion of the 
redevelopment of Blundstone Arena. 

The books are housed in bookcases generously donated to 
Cricket Tasmania by the Melick family.

Cricket Tasmania Members and anyone wishing to carry 
out research are encouraged to use the excellent facilities 
now available.

The Tasmanian Cricket Museum and Library is located on the first 
floor of the Members Pavilion. Non match day access is through 
Reception at the Western Gate (beach end). Match day times will 
vary centred around intervals. 
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Cricket Tasmania and the Hobart Hurricanes 
joined forces with the Australian Sports 
Foundation (ASF) to directly support 
our local community through the  
Hurricanes Foundation.

Hurricanes Foundation

In the short time the Foundation has been in operation, 
it has helped many individuals, charities and community 
groups. In the past year we:

�� Teamed up with our BBL Principal Partner, Tassal 
Salmon, and Vinnies to raise over $50,000 for the 
Tasmanian Bushfire Appeal.

�� Raised over $10,000 through fundraising at match with 
popcorn sales, the annual Hurricanes Foundation Day and 
Fundraising Initiatives with our Major Partner Cadbury.

�� Hosted over 100 people at the Hurricanes Foundation 
Day as they came and enjoyed the famous classic catch 
pad, face painting and met some of our players – raising 
over $2,000 to assist with our community activities.

�� Donated team merchandise to over 50 community 
initiatives and assisted in raising over $20,000.

�� Provided 13 schools all over the state with the Hurricanes 
Breakfast Clubs proudly supported by Tassal.

�� Supported the Tassal Indigenous Xl who hosted our 
Indigenous Tournament for the first time in Latrobe 
versus the Sydney Thunder.

�� Ran the Northern Rookie Program for a second year, 
giving promising young cricketers from Northern 
Tasmania, Sophie Parkin and Jake Williams, invaluable 
insight into what goes into the match preparation at 
training and on gameday for our BBL & WBBL athletes 
at the elite level.

In the 2018-19 season, there were 
a total of 1,315 Cricket Tasmania 
Members and 352 Associate 
Card holders and the Hobart 
Hurricanes membership base 
consisted of 3,516 Members.

This season Blundstone Arena also hosted a Tour Match 
between the Cricket Australia’s XI and Sri Lanka as a 
precursor to the Australian and Sri Lanka Test series 
between 17 -19 January. A crowd of 1,958 watched Kurtis 
Patterson put on a batting masterclass with two unbeaten 
centuries of 157* and 102* and Tigers batsman Jake Doran 
scoring one of his own. 

Member retention and engagement in the State’s 
North and North-West will be critical to growing the 
membership base, with crowds of 12,455 and 13,836 
cheering on Tasmania’s Team at University of Tasmania 
Stadium. There was a growth of 286% in North and North-
West members of the Hurricanes from BBL|07 to BBL|08 
with the two game UTAS General Admission membership 
being a core driver of this surge.

Hobart Hurricanes total member numbers grew to 3,516, 
a rise of 4.2%. This growth is attributed to the execution 
of our core strategic organisation goals and building the 
story of Tasmania’s Team across the state. Six different 
membership types were offered with Century Club being 
our most premium option, followed by Premium and 
Standard Reserved as well as General Admission and a 
Supporter (non-ticketed) memberships. 

With a target of 5,000 Hurricanes members next season, 
engaging with all parts of the State will be crucial to 
maintain and increase growth. 

The 2019-20 season looks to be an exciting with Cricket 
Tasmania Members able to enjoy access to all domestic 
cricket state-wide, including 11 BBL and WBBL matches, 
five Sheffield Shield matches, two domestic One-Day Cup 
matches, three WNCL fixtures and Toyota Futures League 
(Tasmanian Tigers 2nd XI) matches as well as a Cricket 
Australia XI versus England Lions Tour Match. 

We look forward to an exciting summer ahead with all 
our members. 

The Season 2018-19 drawcard was the Gillette One-
Day International played on Sunday 11 November at 
Blundstone Arena v South Africa. Despite an excellent 
century to Shaun Marsh, Australia were defeated by 
40 runs in front of a crowd of 5,321. 

The Tasmanian Tigers Men and Women’s teams 
experienced a season of highs and lows and finished 4th 
and 3rd respectively in the Sheffield Shield and WNCL 
2018-19. This is a sign the Tigers are competitive with 
the nation’s best First-Class cricketers and will be in 
contention for next season’s titles. 

The Hobart Hurricanes enjoyed their best season to 
date, finishing as the minor premiers for BBL|08 on top 
of the ladder with 10 wins from their 14 games. A feature 
of the season was the Christmas Eve match against the 
Melbourne Stars and a home Semi Final. 

Cricket Tasmania Members also had access to the three 
AFL fixtures played at Blundstone Arena. These fixtures 
were well attended by members who took advantage 
of having access to premium seating. Platinum Cricket 
Tasmania Members were also able to redeem one ticket 
free as part of their membership package. 

2018-19 Season Memberships
Cricket Tasmania & Hobart Hurricanes

Combining the reach and awareness of our 
Hurricanes and Cricket Tasmania brands, the 
Hurricanes Foundation was created to positively 
impact our wider cricket-loving population.
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New South Wales v Tasmania
North Sydney Oval, Sydney | 25 September 2018 

Toss TAS | POM Sean Abbott

NSW 239 (Edwards 68, Patterson 37; Sandhu 4/42 Rose 2/35) def. 
TAS 151 (Rose 35, McDermott 28; Abbott 5/43, Sams 2/27).

An off night with the willow saw the Tigers succumb 
to their first loss of the 2018 JLT Cup at North Sydney 
Oval against New South Wales 

After bowling and fielding excellently to restrict the 
hosts to just 239 on the small ground, the Tigers 
stumbled with the bat to hand the previously winless 
Blues a bonus point win.

Gurinder Sandhu (4/42 from 8.3) took four wickets against 
his former side & Clive Rose (2/35), Jackson Bird (2/43) 
and Riley Meredith (2/45) each snagged a pair of wickets. 

With the bat, Rose top scored with 35 - in an innings-
best partnership of 53 with Bird (22), Ben McDermott 
made 28 at the top of the order.

Tasmania's reply couldn't have got off to a worse start, with 
Matthew Wade trapped in front by a full, in-swinging Sean 
Abbott delivery on the first ball of the 50-over allotment. 

The Tigers fell to 7-98 and a double bonus point loss to the 
Blues appeared a reality until the Rose and Bird stand may 
have begun to worry the hosts, if only for a short period.

Queensland v Tasmania
Riverway Stadium, Townsville | 22 September 2018 

Toss QLD | POM Ben McDermott

QLD 6/316 (Lynn 70, Hemphrey 58; Meredith 3/62, Summers 1/54) lost to 
TAS 6/317 (49.0) (McDermott 117, Silk 85; Steketee 4/84, Prestwidge 2/62).

A maiden One-Day Domestic hundred for Ben McDermott 
delivered the Tigers a Townsville sweep to begin their 
2018 JLT Cup.

His fine knock of 117 (125), Jordan Silk's 85 (90) plus 
some great late hitting from Simon Milenko 50* (29) 
and Clive Rose 25* (18) got Adam Griffith's men home 
with six balls remaining.

Young quick Riley Meredith 3/62 (10) was our best 
bowler in a high scoring match.

This was the first time in ODD cricket history that 
Tasmania had chased down a score of 300+, at the 
14th time of asking.

Matthew Wade looked in ominous touch early, reaching 
and clearing the rope at will before he holed out for 22 
from 17 deliveries and Doran departed shortly after to 
have the Tigers on the ropes - until McDermott and Silk 
steadied the ship.

A middle order collapse followed as it looked as the 
scoreboard pressure would get the better of the Tigers.

Enter, Milenko and Rose. The pair batted beautifully 
throughout their 67 (38) stand which delivered Milenko 
his 50 simultaneously with the team's winning runs 
when it bobbled over the cover rope.

MATCH 2 MATCH 3

Tasmania v Victoria
Riverway Stadium, Townsville | 19 September 2018 

Toss TAS | POM Matthew Wade

TAS 6/321 (Wade 117, McDermott 56;  
Coleman 2/47, Sutherland 2/51) def. VIC 256  

(Harris 69, Maddinson 32; Rose 4/42, Rogers 4/53).

A blistering century from Matthew Wade and 
some tight partnership bowling was the catalyst 
for a healthy 65-run bonus point Tasmanian 
Tigers win in their JLT One-Day Cup opener 
in Townsville.

After winning the toss and batting on a flat 
track at Riverway Stadium, it was aggressive 
openers Wade and Ben McDermott who 
were handed first opportunity to let loose 
and each didn't disappoint.

Wade - in a key tournament for pushing his 
2019 ICC World Cup credentials, rocketed 
to a half-century off just 24 balls and never 
took a backward step on his way to 117 from 
only 74 balls.

At the other end, McDermott made his own 
sound start to the season with a cleverly-
compiled 56.

Each Tigers middle-order batsman got themselves 
a decent start and continued ticking the scoreboard 
over to set Victoria a lofty 322 for victory.

Victoria's batting line-up got starts but only 
Marcus Harris made a significant contribution as 
they lost wickets at regular intervals.

Wade was voted Player of the Match for his 
sparkling century which included 11 fours and 
six sixes.

MATCH 1

Tasmanian Tigers 
2018-19 JLT Cup Season
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Tasmania v Western Australia
Hurstville Oval, Sydney | 1 October 2018 

Toss WA | POM Marcus Stoinis

TAS 8/290 (Bailey 79, McDermott 76; Qadir 2/40, Behrendorff 2/60)  
lost to WA 5/292 (40.3) (Stoinis 93*, Short 63; Bird 2/58, Sandhu 2/83).

Western Australia made short work of a competitive 
total set by Tasmania to secure full points in their JLT Cup 
clash at Hurstville.

Skipper George Bailey and opener, Ben McDermott, 
each scored in the 70s to propel the Tigers to 8/290 
before they looked in the game with some early wickets 
to Jackson Bird and Gurinder Sandhu.

Marcus Stoinis entered Hurstville Oval and immediately 
set about taking the game away from the Tasmanians, 
finished with 93* in partnership with D’Arcy Short (63) 
to wrestle any momentum away from Bailey’s men and 
secure a win on the way to finishing the minor rounds 
top of the table.

The good news for Tasmanian fans is they too advanced 
to the Semi Finals to face Chris Lynn’s Queensland.

Tasmania v Victoria
Junction Oval, Melbourne | 10 October 2018 

Toss VIC | POM Peter Handscomb

TAS 164 (40.4) (Doolan 46, McDermott 34; Fekete 2/20, Coleman 2/27) 
lost to VIC 274 (White 88, Handscomb 49; Sandhu 7/56, Milenko 1/32).

A Gurinder Sandhu hattrick was as good as it got for 
Tasmania in the 2018 JLT Cup Final, going down to 
Victoria by 110 runs.

After losing the toss and batting, the Tigers struggled 
to breakthrough initially, but Victoria never got away - 
and when Sandhu's final over of their innings yielded an 
incredible four wickets, they were all out for 274.

In reply, the Tigers innings failed to find some momentum 
to get ahead of the game.

Alex Doolan (46 from 73), anchored the Tasmanian 
innings but the vital partnership required when chasing 
a competitive score never came.

Gurinder Sandhu became the first Tasmanian bowler 
to take a hattrick in One-Day Domestic cricket history 
and his final figures of 7/56 were the fourth best in 
tournament history. 

In a further personal bow post-match, Ben McDermott's 
great few weeks got even better when he was named as 
JLT Cup Player of the Tournament.

Tasmania v Queensland
Drummoyne Oval, Sydney | 6 October 2018 

Toss TAS | POM Gurinder Sandhu

TAS 4/180 (37.2) (Bailey 70*, Milenko 57*; Feldman 2/20, Stanlake 2/38) 
def. QLD 177 (Steketee 30, Hemphrey 28; Sandhu 2/14, Rose 2/14).

Having bowled the Bulls out for 177 inside 45 overs, the 
Tigers' pursuit was in trouble at 4-52 inside an hour, but an 
unbroken fifth-wicket stand of 128 between skipper George 
Bailey (70no) and Simon Milenko (57no) steered Tasmania 
to safety and sealed the win with 78 balls to spare.

Queensland's hopes of posting a competitive score were 
dashed when Tigers debutant Gabe Bell removed hard-
hitting opener Max Bryant with his 10th ball.

Bell had his second when Sam Heazlett was caught 
behind but the big wicket was Chris Lynn. His dismissal 
for 15 sucked the wind out of the Bulls innings and from 
there the Tigers suffocated their opponents.

All five of Tasmania's specialist bowlers collected two 
wickets, with Gurinder Sandhu's 2-14 from nine overs 
the pick of the bunch.

A score of 177 appeared sub-par, but on a wicket that 
was showing inconsistent bounce, the Bulls quicks made 
it look mountainous early on.

But with the experienced head of Bailey and talented 
allrounder Milenko at the crease, the Tigers were in 
safe hands.

A soaring six from Bailey's blade brought scores level 
before a lovely cover drive off Swepson propelled the 
Tigers into the final.

South Australia v Tasmania
Bankstown Oval, Sydney |27 September 2018 

Toss SA | POM Ben McDermott

SA 7/236 (Weatherald 79, Lehmann 58*; Meredith 2/30,  
Sandhu 2/44) lost to TAS 7/238 (49.0) (McDermott 102*, Silk 71).

A second century of the JLT Cup for Ben McDermott 
- along with a brilliant stand of 123 between himself 
and Jordan Silk led Tasmania to a grinding three-
wicket win over South Australia with an over to spare 
at Bankstown Oval.

Set 237 for victory following yet another stellar effort with 
ball in hand and in the field, the Tigers recovered from the 
early loss of Wade and Webster to pass the Redbacks’ 
total via McDermott's 102 from 120 balls.

Young quick Riley Meredith was again the pick of the 
Tigers bowlers, Gurinder Sandhu took multiple wickets 
again and there was one each for Jackson Bird, Tom 
Rogers and Beau Webster.

With the willow, the Tigers fell behind the eight ball early 
through the first over dismissal of Wade and Webster who 
followed shortly after.

It then became a recovery mission for McDermott and Silk 
who ground their way through some impressive Redbacks 
bowling before setting their sights on getting the Tigers 
over the line.

FINALMATCH 5 SEMI-FINAL 1MATCH 4
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Queensland v Tasmania
The Gabba | 16-19 October 2018 

Toss TAS | POM Jackson Bird

QLD 148 (Pierson 42, McSweeney 35; Bird 5/35, Rogers 2/44)  
& 93 (Burns 16, Feldman 12*; Bird 5/42, Bell 4/17) lost to  

TAS 355 (Doolan 115, Wade 72*; George 4/76, Feldman 3/75) & 132  
(Wade 51, Rogers 15; Swepson 3/17, Steketee 3/34) by 246 runs.

After a Queensland fightback headlined much of the 
action from Day 3 at the Gabba, attention turned to which 
side would claim the points on Day 4 with the game 
appearing to be evenly poised.

The Bulls needed 311 more runs for victory, 
whilst the Tigers needed 8 more wickets. 
When Jackson Bird struck early,  
the Tigers didn't look back.

He removed Heazlett, via the hands of 
Doolan in the slip cordon to get his tail 
up and then Hemphrey, McSweeney 
and Wildermuth quickly 
followed in the quick's next 
five overs to leave the 
hosts reeling.

Then when Gabe Bell 
removed skipper 
Pierson and their best 
bowler with the bat, 
Mark Steketee in the 
same over, the Tigers 
were well in amongst  
the tail and this one was 
as good as done.

Mitchell Swepson and Peter 
George each provided three 
overs of resistance each 
before Queensland were 
bowled out for just 93  
in 29 overs.

Matthew Wade and Alex 
Doolan began the season 
in sparkling touch with 
the willow.

MATCH 1

Western Australia v Tasmania
The WACA | 25-28 October 2018 

Toss TAS | POM Shaun Marsh

WA 243 (S. Marsh 80, Cartwright 35; Bell 3/45, Milenko 2/28)  
& 3/195 (S. Marsh 98, Cartwright 84*; Webster 1/15, Bird 1/19) def.  

TAS 226 (Doolan 76, Wade 66*; Green 6/30, Moody 3/39) & 208  
(Silk 56, Wade 50; Green 3/12, Richardson 2/26) by seven wickets.

Tasmania struggled to capitalise on a stunning fightback 
in the second half of Day 2 as it could only muster a one 
or two decent partnerships with their second innings.

Jordan Silk's 56 and a fourth consecutive Matthew Wade 
50 to start the Shield season did the bulk of the damage 
as the Tigers limped to 208 all out.

This set the Warriors a target of 191 for victory and given 
WA were 9/206 at one point of their first innings, this 
one felt still very much in the balance.

When Gabe Bell and Jackson Bird immediately removed 
Wells and Inglis to have the hosts 2/5, some Tigers fans 
would've been thinking of the stunning effort which saw 
QLD skittled for just 93 last week.

However Marsh (98) and Cartwright (84*) steadied the 
slide to get into the break without further loss and then 
swung the game in their favour after the interval.

This match was a see-sawing battle for three innings 
and the best part of three days, but the 170 partnership 
between Marsh and Cartwright broke it open.

New South Wales v Tasmania
Sydney Cricket Ground | 5-8 November 2018 

Toss NSW | POM Jason Sangha

NSW 9d/442 (Sangha 117, J. Edwards 101; Bell 3/75, Meredith 2/64) 
& 1d/22 drew with TAS 4d/115 (Doolan 53, Silk 39; Copeland 4/27) 

& 7/264 (Doolan 90, Webster 80*; Lyon 4/88, Abbott 2/51).

Sporting declarations from George Bailey and then 
Peter Nevill produced one of the great days of Shield 
cricket for the summer.

Set 350 for win after declaring before play & NSW 
calling their second innings closed at 1/22, the Tigers 
looked on track for a great win before a later stumble.

Via Alex Doolan (90), Beau Webster (80* from 211 
deliveries) and then Matthew Wade, the Tigers were 
managing the required run rate and had a set partnership.

But when Wade fell LBW, Paine and Rogers soon 
followed, leaving the Tigers 100 short of the target 
with 11 overs to bat through.

Webster's superb anchoring role throughout the majority 
of the day ensured the visitors had a set batsman at the 
crease throughout the nervous period, which played a 
key role in getting the Tigers to end of the game with 
no further loss.
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Tasmania v Victoria
Blundstone Arena | 17-20 November 2018 

Toss VIC | POM Matthew Wade

TAS 81 (Silk 16, Bailey 15; Tremain 5/13, Pattinson 3/13)  
& 476 (Wade 137, Doolan 94; Siddle 4/100, Short 2/19) lost to 
VIC 282 (White 63, Gotch 41; Meredith 4/61, Webster 2/21) & 
4/276 (Harris 67, Gotch 66*, Bird 2/65, 1/59) by six wickets.

A superb 137 from Matthew Wade lifted the Tigers into 
a winnable position at stumps on Day 3 versus Victoria 
at Blundstone Arena, having been rolled for just 81 in 
their first innings.

His 13th First-Class ton helped set the visitors a target 
of 276 to win on the final day's play on a pitch which 
was beginning to deteriorate.

The Tigers took the wickets of Travis Dean & Peter 
Handscomb in the day's first hour before a steadying 
partnership between Marcus Harris and Cameron White 
began to swing the game.

Though our Tigers gave themselves a real chance when 
they restricted Victoria to 4/145 after dismissing Harris 
& White within seven deliveries to have young duo Matt 
Short and Seb Gotch at the crease.

This pair got through the tough going initially before 
getting themselves bedded at the crease to take the 
game away from the Tigers and earn a deserved win 
following their first day dominance.

Tasmania v Queensland
Blundstone Arena | 7-10 December 2018 

Toss QLD | POM Michael Neser

TAS 167 (Wade 63, Bailey 25; Steketee 3/35, Neser 3/43) & 353  
(Bailey 109, Silk 54; Swepson 4/99, Neser 1/45) lost to QLD 107  
(Neser 27, Labuschagne 21; Pyecroft 5/28, Bird 3/40) & 6/414  

(Labuschagne 78, Neser 76*; Meredith 3/70, Milenko 1/71) by four wickets.

Queensland posted a record run chase by any team at 
Blundstone Arena to defeat Tasmania by four wickets in 
Round 6 of the JLT Sheffield Shield.

The Bulls were 8/86 at stumps on Day 1 before conceding 
a 413-run lead to the Tigers on second innings, but 
swung the game back dramatically in the remaining day 
and a half.

Riley Meredith was the pick of the Tigers bowlers in the 
Bulls' second dig, snaring 3/70 from 27 overs.

The Tigers had their chances in the final session to give 
themselves a greater shot at maximum points, but some 
catching opportunities were grassed once the new ball 
was taken.

George Bailey’s 24th First-Class century inspired the 
Tigers to what look liked a match-winning position mid-
way through Day 3, after a maiden five-wicket haul to Alex 
Pyecroft made short work of the Bulls in the first innings.

Tasmania v South Australia
Blundstone Arena | 27-30 November 2018 

Toss SA | POM Jordan Silk

TAS 185 (Wade 43, Bailey 28; Worrall 4/42, Mennie 3/27)  
& 8d/353 (Silk 113, Bailey 63; Worrall 3/83, Head 2/37) def. 

SA 136 (Head 49, Lehmann 28; Bell 4/29, Pyecroft 3/36) & 213 
(Ferguson 111, Carey 31; Bird 4/65, Bell 3/44) by 189 runs.

In-form quick Jackson Bird helped bowl Tasmania to a win 
over South Australia late on the final day in Hobart.

Rain and a stubborn Callum Ferguson century threatened 
to deny the Tigers but Bird struck twice in the shadows 
of stumps.

Set a mammoth 403 for victory, the Redbacks were 
eventually bowled out for 213.

Players were forced from the field for almost two hours 
in the final session of match with SA teetering at 7-192.

Once they returned, Bird had Nick Winter (26) edging 
before trapping Ferguson plumb in front for 111.

Paceman Gabe Bell claimed the final wicket to complete 
a 189-run win and give him seven scalps for the match.

A century to Jordan Silk and three first innings wickets 
to debutant, Alex Pyecroft - including a caught and 
bowled with just his fifth delivery, were the highlights of 
the opening three days.

South Australia v Tasmania
Adelaide Oval | 23-26 February 2019 

Toss SA | POM Jackson Bird

SA 257 (Head 50, Mennie 43*; Bird 4/53, Meredith 2/25) &  
3/19 (Weatherald 150, Ferguson 60; Bird 7/59, Rogers 3/42)  

lost to TAS 467 (Wakim 160, Wade 77; Mennie 3/53, Sayers 3/85)  
& 4/110 (Silk 36, Wakim 22; Head 2/33, Winter 1/22) by six wickets.

Debutant Charlie Wakim's gigantic ton laid the foundation 
and then spearhead Jackson Bird's fifth 10-wicket match 
in his First-Class career marched the Tigers to an outright 
win in the JLT Sheffield Shield at the Adelaide Oval.

The Redbacks lost 6/3 in 21 deliveries just before the tea 
break to set the Tigers 110 from 45 overs for victory.

Tom Rogers sparked the collapse when he yorked 
Weatherald and then Bird took over, finishing with match 
figures of 11/112.

The Tigers top five each contributed in the chase as they 
cruised to the total four wickets down, Matthew Wade fell 
when scores were level for 15 after he scored 77 in the first 
innings batting up the order at number four.

Aside from Bird's haul which rightly grabbed the 
headlines on the final day, it was first-gamer, 27-year-
old Charlie Wakim who received the bulk of the plaudits 
through the first three days.

His magnificent 160 (from 333 deliveries) lifted the Tigers 
to a mammoth 467 in the searing Adelaide heat.
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Victoria v Tasmania
Junction Oval | 5-8 March 2019 
Toss VIC | POM Nic Maddinson

VIC 454 (Maddinson 136, Harris 94; Meredith 4/86, Bird 3/85)  
& 3d/307 (Pucovski 131*, Maddinson 61; Meredith 1/30, Bell 1/46)  

drew with TAS 286 (Wade 86, Rainbird 59; Boland 4/63,  
Fekete 3/104) & 5/197 (Doolan 88, Silk 41; Holland 2/42, Fekete 2/44).

A defiant display with the willow on Day 4 earned 
Tasmania a share of the spoils with the JLT Sheffield 
Shield ladder leaders Victoria at the Junction Oval.

Set a mammoth 476 runs for victory at 4.5 runs an over 
through 107 overs, the Tigers began Day 4 in superb 
fashion with Alex Doolan and Jordan Silk carrying their 
bat through the entire first session.

When Silk fell on the second ball after lunch, there was a 
partnership of 48 between veteran Doolan and second-
gamer Charlie Wakim before the Tigers went from 1/160 
to 5/189 in 28 overs to give the hosts some hope of an 
outright victory late in the day.

Ben McDermott (5* from 98 deliveries) and rookie 
allrounder, Jarrod Freeman 4* (27) successfully saw off 
enough deliveries to see the match called seven overs 
early by skippers Travis Dean and Matthew Wade.

It was Victoria who had the better of the first three days 
of the game. Wade continued to pile on the runs with 86 
in the first innings, Sam Rainbird contributed an invaluable 
59 with his second half-century in First-Class cricket.

Tasmania v Western Australia
Blundstone Arena | 12-15 March 2019 

Toss TAS | POM Sam Whiteman

TAS 197 (Doolan 46, Wade 38; M. Marsh 3/21, Paris 3/33) &  
402 (Wade 134, McDermott 69; Paris 3/64, M. Marsh 3/76) lost to  
WA 367 (Philippe 76, Cartwright 66; Bird 5/70, Meredith 3/91) & 

8d/283 (Whiteman 93, Short 61*; Bell 3/72, Wade 2/20) by 51 runs.

The Tasmanian Tigers very nearly pulled off an incredible 
run chase in their JLT Sheffield Shield Round 9 clash 
versus Western Australia at Blundstone Arena, only to 
fall 52 runs short of the mammoth 454 target.

With each side's season on the line. WA controlled the 
game effectively for three and a half days before the 
Tigers roared back into contention via an incredible 
partnership of 183 from 195 balls between Matthew Wade 
and Ben McDermott.

Alas, as is so often the case with a big run chase - a side 
may get to the point where they seem on track for a 
remarkable victory, only for a couple of quick wickets to 
highlight just how far they still were from home.

When Wade and McDermott fell, the best efforts from 
Tim Paine (47) and Jackson Bird and Alex Pyecroft 
couldn't rally the Tigers over the line.

Jackson Bird notching his 16th five-wicket haul in First-
Class cricket was the Tigers’ highlight with the ball, 
debutant Sean Willis claimed a diving catch in gully with 
his first touch at the top level.

Tasmania v New South Wales
Blundstone Arena | 20-23 March 2019 

Toss TAS | POM Sean Abbott

TAS 255 (Doolan 72, McDermott 53; Copeland 6/88, Conway 2/44) & 120 (Wade 64, Kingston 14; Abbott 7/45, Copeland 2/31) lost to  
NSW 375 (Larkin 67, Hughes 61; Bird 3/85, Milenko 2/39) & 5d/149 (Henriques 49, Larkin 33; Bell 2/22, Meredith 1/26) by 149 runs.

The Tasmanian Tigers finished the JLT Sheffield Shield 
season in fifth place after falling to a 149-run defeat v 
New South Wales at Blundstone Arena.

The Blues, chasing a win for their spot in the Shield Final, 
routed the Tigers on the morning of Day 4.

With rain expected on the final afternoon of the match 
and a draw not enough for the Blues, they declared at 
5/149 in their second innings with a seemingly underpar 
chase of 270 ahead for Tasmania.

Though when Sean Abbott got the ball hooping, it was 
only Matthew Wade - who passed 1,000 runs for the 
Shield season in this innings, who offered any resistance 
as his side fell for 120.

On Day 3, it was spearhead Jackson Bird who reached his 
own remarkable milestone for the summer when he had 
Nick Larkin caught behind the wicket by Tim Paine. This 
was Bird's 50th wicket of the season.
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Brisbane Heat v Hobart Hurricanes
Metricon Stadium | 22 December 2018 

Toss Heat | POM D’Arcy Short

Heat 144 (Cutting 58, Bryant 30; Faulkner 3/25,  
Archer 2/23) lost to Hurricanes 6/159 (Short 67,  

McDermott 25; Ur Rahman 2/23, Steketee 2/36) by 15 runs.

The Hobart Hurricanes opened their BBL|08 account 
in triumphant fashion, defeating the Brisbane Heat by 
15 runs at Metricon Stadium.

D’Arcy Short picked up where he left off last season, 
blasting 67 runs from just 52 deliveries as Tasmania’s 
Team posted 6-159 from a reduced 19 overs.

The Hurricanes attacked the contest from the beginning 
in the field, with four bowlers claiming multiple wickets 
as they bowled out the hosts after 18.4 overs.

The match started with a bang, as Short blasted four 
boundaries and four sixes to claim the Player of the 
Match award, with his showing reassuring fans that 
he’ll again be a player to watch again this season. 

Ben McDermott (25 runs from 16 balls) and George Bailey 
(22 from 12) provided support throughout the innings, 
with Simon Milenko’s final-ball six ensuring the visitors’ 
total was a defendable one.

Ben Cutting was best for the Heat, clubbing 58 from 
just 32 deliveries, including two fours and five sixes. 
When he fell to Jofra Archer just seven deliveries 
after Riley Meredith skittled the stumps of Jimmy  
Peirson, it was the Hurricanes’ match to lose.

MATCH 1

Hobart Hurricanes v Melbourne Stars
Blundstone Arena | 24 December 2018 

 Toss Hurricanes | POM D’Arcy Short

Hurricanes 4/156 (18.4) (Wade 52, Short 34;  
Lamichhane 3/24, Boland 1/23) def. Stars 5/155  

(Maxwell 47, Larkin 45; Archer 3/25, Short 2/23) by six wickets.

Matthew Wade, D'Arcy Short and Jofra Archer led 
Tasmania’ s Team to a six-wicket win over the Melbourne 
Stars on Christmas Eve afternoon at Blundstone Arena.

Short - who was named Man of the Match for the second 
consecutive game to begin BBL|08, took two wickets 
with the ball as Wade elected to field first before bashing 
34 from 22 to get our Hurricanes off to the best possible 
start in the run chase.

Wade anchored the Hurricanes throughout their pursuit 
of 156 - in front of a crowd of 9,132, a score which looked a 
little under par on the back of Archer's three wickets.

George Bailey 27* (18) and Ben McDermott 28 (24) 
also contributed valuable runs as the former guided the 
Hurricanes home with eight balls to spare with Simon 
Milenko not out up the other end.

Hobart Hurricanes v Sydney Thunder
Blundstone Arena | 28 December 2018 
Toss Hurricanes | POM Matthew Wade

Hurricanes 3/196 (19.1) (Wade 85, Short 58;  
Rainbird 2/25, Green 0/26) def. Thunder 6/193  

(Buttler 89, Green 26; Rose 2/30, Faulkner 2/34) by seven wickets.

The Hobart Hurricanes chased down a big first-innings 
total against the Sydney Thunder at Blundstone Arena 
to remain undefeated from their opening three matches 
of BBL|08.

Some heavy hitting from Jos Butler (89 from 54 balls) saw 
the visitors post a formidable 6-193, with Clive Rose and 
James Faulkner the standouts on what was a punishing 
night for the bowlers.

Enter D’Arcy Short and Matthew Wade. Both batsmen 
were on fire, sending the crowd ducking for cover as they 
peppered the boundary on a regular basis en route to an 
opening partnership of 120.

George Bailey picked up where the duo left off, 
taking 22 runs alone from the 19th over to ensure that 
Tasmania’s Team reached their target, incredibly with 
five balls to spare.
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Hobart Hurricanes Mens 
2018-19 BBL|08 Season

Melbourne Renegades v Hobart Hurricanes
Marvel Stadium | 7 January 2019 

Toss Renegades | POM Sam Harper

Renegades 4/150 (19.2) (Finch 42, Harper 32; Rose 1/15,  
Botha 1/28) def. Hurricanes 5/145 (Bailey 70*,  

McDermott 50; Richardson 3/38, Shinwari 1/24) by six wickets.

The Hobart Hurricanes lost their first match of BBL|08 
against their sixth opposition, going down to the 
Renegades in the final over at Marvel Stadium.

After being sent in to bat, the Hurricanes' normally 
explosive top order slumped to 3-11 before George Bailey 
and Ben McDermott rescued their innings in fine style to 
ignite the fight back.

Their 112-run stand pushed Hobart to the highest score 
in three games this season at Marvel Stadium and when 
Clive Rose and Johan Botha dismissed Finch and Harper 
with work still to do, the Hurricanes looked a chance 
– before Mohammad Nabi, and former Hurricane, Dan 
Christian lifted the home side’s momentum once more 
to clinch victory.

Hobart Hurricanes v Perth Scorchers
University of Tasmania Stadium | 30 December 2018 

Toss Hurricanes | POM Riley Meredith

Hurricanes 4/110 (17.3) (Doolan 41*, Short 34; Agar 2/19,  
Coulter-Nile 1/21) def. Scorchers 8/107 (Agar 32,  

Cartwright 29; Meredith 3/15, Short 2/17) by six wickets.

The Hobart Hurricanes extended their winning streak to 
four matches and remained undefeated in BBL|08 after 
convincingly downing the Perth Scorchers at University 
of Tasmania Stadium in Launceston.

In a record-breaking night for Tasmania’s Team – holding 
the Western Australian side to their lowest-ever score 
batting first of 8-107, and turning in a team-best bowling 
powerplay performance of 4-32 from the opening six overs.

Six of the Scorchers’ batsmen fell to catches, with the sharp 
team effort a remarkable turnaround from the maligned 
fielding performance the Hurricanes put in at Blundstone 
Arena last time out versus the Sydney Thunder.

The home side made short work of the target with the 
bat in front of 12, 455 fans, losing just four wickets as they 
chased down the winning runs with 15 balls to spare.

Melbourne Stars v Hobart Hurricanes
Melbourne Cricket Ground | 14 January 2019  

Toss Stars | POM D’Arcy Short

Stars 126 (Gotch 35, Dunk 20; Meredith 4/21, Botha 2/21) lost to Hurricanes 
2/186 (Short 96*, Wade 41; O’Connell 1/17, Bowe 3/38) by 59 runs.

The Hurricanes stormed back onto the winners list by 
mauling the Melbourne Stars away at the MCG by 59 runs, 
to move even further clear atop the BBL Ladder with six 
wins from seven matches.

The Stars collapsed to be all out for 126 in the 18th over, 
chasing a mammoth 186 for victory set by the Hurricanes 
and opener D’Arcy Short, who made more than half the 
total runs himself.

It left Short with this Big Bash season’s highest innings 
score, as he and fellow opening batsman and skipper 
Matthew Wade built yet another powerful partnership 
through the powerplay and well beyond.

With the ball, Riley Meredith further strengthened his 
credentials as an emerging strike bowler with 4/21 and 
veteran off-spinner Johan Botha continued his strong 
start to the season.

Hobart Hurricanes v Sydney Sixers
Blundstone Arena | 4 January 2019 
Toss Hurricanes | POM D’Arcy Short

Hurricanes 5/162 (19.5) (Short 64, Bailey 30; Abbott 2/29,  
Curran 1/22) def. Sixers 8/161 (Hughes 61,  

Henriques 31; Botha 3/22, Faulkner 3/36) by five wickets.

A D’Arcy Short half-century alongside some big 
late hitting from George Bailey and Simon Milenko 
steered the Hurricanes home against a plucky Sydney 
Sixers outfit at Blundstone Arena, in front of a joyous 
12,920-strong home crowd.

Chasing 162 for victory on a good batting track – 
underneath some red Hobart skies after a long day 
of bushfires, the ladder-leading Hurricanes kept their 
unbeaten record intact, with the thrilling five-wicket victory 
that turned progressively tighter as the match progressed.

The inspiring win made it a perfect ‘five from five’ start 
across just 13 days in BBL|08 for Tasmania’s Team.

On the same day he was left out of Australia's ODI squad 
for the upcoming series against India, Short’s knock 
featured five boundaries and three sixes - to chase down 
the Sixers' total with one ball to spare to win yet another 
Player of the Match Award.

MATCH 6MATCH 4 MATCH 7MATCH 5
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Sydney Sixers v Hobart Hurricanes
Sydney Cricket Ground | 23 January 2019 

Toss Sixers | POM Josh Philippe

Sixers 1/173 (17.1) (Philippe 86*, Vince 74*; Faulkner 1/22,  
Archer 0/34) def. Hurricanes 4/172 (Wade 64,  

McDermott 41; Dwarshuis 1/25, Abbott 1/26) by nine wickets.

Josh Philippe fired the Sydney Sixers to a thumping nine-
wicket upset win over the Hobart Hurricanes to hand the 
ladder leaders their second loss of the summer.

The Sixers were struggling at 1-6 after James Faulkner 
struck with just the fourth ball of the innings to remove 
Daniel Hughes caught behind for six.

However, Philippe and James Vince with 74* put on a 
game-turning partnership.

Earlier, Matthew Wade sent yet another message to the 
Australian selectors with his fourth 50 of the tournament.

Wade had 387 runs for the tournament to be second on 
the scorers' list behind only his opening partner D'Arcy 
Short, who helped the Hurricanes get off to a flying start 
with 32 from 26 balls.

Wade and Ben McDermott (41 off 31) put on 67 runs 
for the third wicket partnership to put their side in a 
commanding position, after being sent in to bat by the 
Sixers - however they had no answer to Philippe.

Perth Scorchers v Hobart Hurricanes
Optus Stadium | 18 January 201 

 Toss Hurricanes | POM George Bailey

Scorchers 9/177 (Whiteman 68, Coulter-Nile 31*; Faulkner 
3/36, Meredith 2/19) lost to Hurricanes 6/178 (19.3) (Bailey 69, 

Jewell 32; Hardie 2/25, Coulter-Nile 1/23) by four wickets.

James 'The Finisher' Faulkner was the hero as the ladder-
leading Hurricanes pulled off yet another thrilling four-
wicket win over the Perth Scorchers at Optus Stadium.

In reply to the Scorchers' intimidating 9-177, Hobart 
reached the victory target with three balls to spare, 
thanks to some miracle last over hitting from Faulkner.

Hobart needed 16 runs off the final Andrew Tye over, 
and Faulkner achieved the feat in the first three balls 
going six, four and six having taken three wickets in his 
first two overs earlier in the clash.

Veteran George Bailey who made 69 off just 39 balls 
was also critical in the amazing triumph in front of a 
36,612-strong and very parochial Perth crowd.

Hurricanes debutant Caleb Jewell - who replaced Jake 
Doran in the line-up after he was chosen in the Cricket 
Australia XI Tour Match versus Sri Lanka - was the next 
highest scorer making an exciting 32 off just 20 balls 
including six boundaries and a six.

Hobart Hurricanes v Brisbane Heat
Blundstone Arena | 29 January 2019 
Toss Hurricanes | POM D’Arcy Short

Hurricanes 1/146 (14.2) (Short 68*, Jewell 61*;  
Cutting 1/29, Renshaw 0/12) def. Heat 6/145 (Ross 62,  

Pierson 50; Moody 2/27, Faulkner 2/27) by nine wickets.

A breathtaking Jofra Archer grab on and over the 
boundary rope - coupled with yet another unbeaten half 
century from star opener D'Arcy Short, helped the Hobart 
Hurricanes make light work of the Brisbane Heat.

The ladder-leading Hurricanes cruised past the Heat's 
6-145 with just one wicket down and more than five overs 
to spare at Blundstone Arena, to return to being two wins 
clear atop the table.

Short smashed 68 not out from 41 balls including eight 
boundaries and one maximum, in a 132-run partnership 
with Canes rookie Caleb Jewell, who kept pace with 61 
not out from 38 balls – also with eight boundaries and 
one maximum.

Hobart finished with 1-146 in their clinical nine-wicket 
victory, making it their ninth win of the season from 
11 games. David Moody and James Faulkner each 
finished as the pick of the Hurricanes bowlers with 2/27, 
Northern Tasmanian product, Jarrod Freeman, finished 
with 0/11 (2) on his debut.

Adelaide Strikers v Hobart Hurricanes
Adelaide Oval | 21 January 201 

Toss Hurricanes | POM Matthew Wade

Strikers 5/154 (Ingram 67*, Wells 28; Archer 2/23,  
Faulkner 2/24) lost to Hurricanes 0/158 (16.5) (Wade 84*, 

Short 73*; Khan 0/36, O’Connor 0/12) by 10 wickets.

A Matthew Wade whirlwind powered the Hobart 
Hurricanes to a record-equalling 10-wicket win against 
the Adelaide Strikers.

The Hurricanes became just the second BBL team to 
notch a 10-wicket win, cruising to their 155-run target 
with 19 balls to spare at Adelaide Oval.

Wade smacked 84 from 49 deliveries and D'Arcy 
Short made 73 from 52 as the Hurricanes emphatically 
stretched their lead atop the ladder.

They finished 0-158, banking an eighth win from nine 
games and putting a six-point gap between them 
and second spot.

It was a mixed bag with the ball for Tasmania’s Team 
with all bowlers contributing to tie down the Strikers’ 
throughout their 20 overs.
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Sydney Thunder v Hobart Hurricanes
Manuka Oval | 9 February 2019 

Toss Thunder | POM Pat Cummins

Thunder 6/166 (18.2) (Ferguson 47, Khawaja 36;  
Qais 2/22, Short 2/27) def. Hurricanes 4/165  

(Bailey 53, Wade 45; Cummins 2/28, Green 1/20) by four wickets.

Australian cricket stars Pat Cummins and Usman Khawaja 
returned from Test duties to help steer the Sydney 
Thunder home by four wickets against the Hobart 
Hurricanes at Canberra's Manuka Oval.

Cummins, playing his first game for the Thunder in two 
years, dismissed in-form power openers D'Arcy Short 
and Matthew Wade to help restrict the ladder leading 
Hurricanes to 4/165, one third of which came from the 
willow of veteran George Bailey.

In reply, the Thunder needed to reach the target in 11 
overs to surge into the top four but the economical 
bowling of Qais Ahmad and D’Arcy Short ensured that 
was a bridge too far, even if the partnership between 
Callum Ferguson and Khawaja did guide the hosts home 
to finish their season on a high.

Hobart Hurricanes v Adelaide Strikers
University of Tasmania Stadium | 31 January 2019 

Toss Strikers | POM Jake Weatherald

Hurricanes 7/169 (Wade 88, Short 26; Laughlin 3/31,  
Khan 2/28) lost to Strikers 3/170 (17.5)  

(Weatherald 82, Carey 54; Milenko 1/19, Freeman 1/26) by seven wickets.

The Adelaide Strikers re-enacted some BBL|07 
Grand Final pain on the Hurricanes in Launceston, 
comfortably chasing down the Hurricanes’ 7-169 with 
seven wickets in hand.

The Hurricanes were chasing the one victory they 
needed to finish atop the standings and guarantee 
a home Semi-Final.

But in reply, Adelaide cruised to victory – a major 
turnaround from these teams’ Adelaide Oval clash 
back on 21 January when the Hurricanes romped away 
with a 10-wicket win.

Matthew Wade starred with the willow, nearly single-
handedly powering the hosts to their competitive target. 

With the ball, wickets were tough to come by with second-
gamer Jarrod Freeman capturing his own moment to 
remember in front of his hometown crowd when he 
trapped Jake Lehmann leg before.

Hobart Hurricanes v Melbourne Stars 
Blundstone Arena | 14 February 2019 

Toss Stars | POM Dan Worrall

Hurricanes 7/153 (McDermott 53, Bailey 37; Worrall 4/23,  
Zampa 1/31) lost to Stars 4/157 (18.5)  

(Maxwell 43*, Handscomb 35; Qais 3/33, Archer 1/33) by six wickets.

The BBL Semi-Final ‘hoodoo’ continued with the fourth-
placed Melbourne Stars cruising to victory against the 
top-placed Hobart Hurricanes at Blundstone Arena.

It was reminiscent of last season’s semi-final, when 
the Hurricanes shocked in-form Minor Premiers, the 
Scorchers over in Perth, after falling into fourth place 
on Net Run Rate with five wins and five losses.

But this time it was the Stars with just seven wins and 
seven losses who bumped off the purple Minor Premiers 
who boasted ten wins and four losses.

To add insult to injury, fan favourite George Bailey 
suffered a serious right shoulder injury diving in the 
field to stop a ball on the off-side boundary.

Afghani teen sensation Qais Ahmad kept the Hurricanes 
in the match with 3-33 (4.0) in the middle overs after 
a Ben McDermott half-century put a respectable total 
on the board.

But the night belonged to Maxwell who hit an 
unbeaten 43 from 33 balls, as the Stars reached the 
target of 154 with seven balls to spare.

Hobart Hurricanes v Melbourne Renegades
Blundstone Arena | 7 February 2019 

Toss Renegades | POM Matthew Wade

Hurricanes 6/183 (Wade 58, McDermott 39*;  
Gurney 2/40, Richardson 2/55) def. Renegades 8/167  

(Cooper 44, Finch 35; Archer 2/19, Short 2/20) by 16 runs.

A thrilling 16-run victory over the third-placed Melbourne 
Renegades guaranteed Tasmania’s Team finished on top 
of the BBL|08 Ladder and host a Home Semi Final for 
the first time since BBL|01.

Player-of-the-Match Matthew Wade responded to 
an Australian ODI selection snubbing by smacking yet 
another Big Bash half century.

In reply, an equally fast-starting Renegades outfit led 
by Australia’s star openers Aaron Finch and Marcus 
Harris largely kept pace with the Hurricanes’ run-rate 
before being choked by some superbly tight spin bowling 
from D’Arcy Short and Afghani debutant Qais Ahmad  
(2-34 from 4.0 overs).

In-form skipper Wade hit 58 from just 30 balls – including 
four sixes and six fours, in an 87-run opening stand 
with partner-in-crime D'Arcy Short, for the former Test 
wicketkeeper's sixth half century of the BBL season so far.

He became the second player to pass 500 runs this 
tournament, behind fellow big-hitter Short.

MATCH 14MATCH 12 SEMI-FINALMATCH 13

38 39Cricket Tasmania Annual Report 2018-19 Cricket Tasmania Annual Report 2018-19



Tasmanian Tigers Women v ACT Meteors
Allan Border Field, Brisbane | 21 September 2018 

Toss ACT | POM Corinne Hall

Tasmania 5/222 (46.0) (Hall 86, Thompson 60; Brown 2/30, Burns 1/28) def. ACT 218 (Mack 57, Iemma 35; Phillips 3/37, Webb 2/40) by five wickets.

Tasmania's female State side won its first game for 
670 days, defeating the ACT Meteors by five wickets 
in their Women's National Cricket League (WNCL) season 
opener at Brisbane's Allan Border Field.

It was also their first official tournament match as the 
newly rebranded Tasmanian Tigers Women.

The Tigers took all 10 Meteors wickets for 218 runs in the 
47th over after they elected to bat first, with Meg Phillips 
chief destroyer, ably assisted by 'young gun' newcomer 
Courtney Webb.

The mighty middle order duo of Emma Thompson 
and Corinne Hall were pivotal in the Tigers’ chase 
which looked shaky to begin with.

The slow run rate may have worried fans initially, but 
the team's new mantra for this season of competing for 
longer periods of every game, was shining through with 
their ability to stop the flow of Tigers' wickets falling.

Their fourth wicket partnership of 139 - the WNCL 
outfit's second highest ever - brought Tasmania 
within sight of victory. 

Meg Phillips completed a brilliant all-round game with  
23* and Veronica Pyke 8* at the opposite end, when  
a boundary was hit to seal a brilliant start  
to the season for the female Tigers.

MATCH 1

Tasmanian Tigers Women v NSW Breakers
Bill Pippen Oval, Gold Coast | 23 September 2018 

Toss NSW | POM Ellyse Perry

Tasmania 158 (Satterthwaite 39, Redmayne 28; Perry 3/25, Carey 2/13) lost 
to NSW 5/344 (Haynes 89, Healy 85; Pyke 2/59, Moloney 2/62) by 186 runs.

It may have taken four matches combined across the 
men's and women's sides, but the Tasmanian Tigers were 
on the wrong side of the win-loss ledger for the first time 
in Season 2018-19 on the Gold Coast.

Nevertheless, the Tigers, buoyed by their season-opening 
win against the ACT Meteors, still had their moments. 

The Breakers' top three of Rachael Haynes, Alyssa Healy 
and Ellyse Perry are always tough to contain, let alone 
after a loss, and put the Tigers on the back foot from 
the beginning.

Veronica Pyke (2/59) and Sasha Moloney (2/62) made 
short work of NSW's middle order but the wicket of Perry 
proved elusive and some big late hitting from Rachel 
Trenaman and Rene Farrell put NSW in a commanding 
position with 345 the target.

Tasmania's best moments with the bat - was a partnership 
of 58 for the second wicket between Georgia Redmayne 
and Amy Satterthwaite. There was also some much-
needed resistance with the willow for the eighth wicket 
with Corinne Hall (23) and Sasha Moloney (16) battling 
well against a seriously talented bowling attack.

Tasmanian Tigers Women v QLD Fire
TCA Ground, Hobart | 9 November 2018 

Toss TAS | POM Meg Phillips

Tasmania 6/247 (Daffara 75, Redmayne 70; Birkett 2/48,  
Johnson 1/39) def. Queensland 237 (Short 83*,  

Johnson 54; Hartley 2/28, Phillips 2/33) by 10 runs.

Buoyed by the signing of English World Cup-winning 
spinner, Alex Hartley, in the days leading up to their 
first home game, the Tigers won a thriller against the 
Queensland Fire at the TCA Ground in Hobart.

Stefanie Daffara and Georgia Redmayne were 
impenetrable at the top of the order for much of the 
game’s first innings as the Tigers put on a competitive total.

In reply, Meg Phillips was the catalyst as the Fire slipped 
from 3/103 to 6/104 in seven deliveries, but the game 
wasn’t done yet. 

Sammy-Jo Johnson combined with opener Kirby Short 
to maintain the Fire’s chase before Phillips struck again 
to cap a thrilling win for the hosts in their first home 
game as Tigers.

MATCH 2 MATCH 3
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Victoria v Tasmanian Tigers Women
Junction Oval, Melbourne | 3 February 2019 

Toss VIC | POM Meg Lanning

Victoria 7/260 (Lanning 105, Strano 46*; Moloney 2/31, Pyke 2/43) def. Tasmania 246 (Pyke 53, Daffara 49; King 2/39, O’Donnell 1/6) by 14 runs.

Final game of the season heartbreak hit the Tasmanian 
Tigers Women at the Junction Oval, missing out on a first-
ever WNCL Final by 14 runs versus Victoria.

The 'win and you're in' challenge was set-up following 
Friday's win over Western Australia and with a Tigers 
defeat meaning they could still advance to final and just 
not host it, they were in the box seat for the big dance.

Queensland's bonus point victory over WA put a stop to 
the latter scenario though and the challenge soon became 
'chase 261 and you're in' at Junction Oval.

The Victorian's total may have been less if it weren't for 
a Meg Lanning masterclass of 105 from 101 and some late 
hitting from Molly Strano and Nicole Faltum.

Our best bowlers in the first innings were veteran Veronica 
Pyke and Hurricanes WBBL skipper, Sasha Moloney. 

With the bat, Daffara played a steady hand throughout as 
wickets fell around her when the scoreboard pressure was 
applied and Veronica Pyke very nearly pulled the Tigers 
into the Final with a fine lower order half-century in what 
would be her final Tigers appearance.

Tasmanian Tigers Women v SA Scorpions
TCA Ground, Hobart | 10 November 2018 

Toss TAS | POM Georgia Redmayne

Tasmania 4/158 (39.2) (Redmayne 56, Hall 55*; McGrath 1/15, Pope 1/21)  
def. South Australia 157 (McPharlin 37, McGrath 29; 

Phillips 2/25, Hepburn 2/25) by six wickets.

The Tasmanian Tigers Women’s side rose to the top 
of the WNCL standings for the first time ever following 
a crushing, bonus point win over South Australia at the 
TCA Ground in Hobart.

Meg Phillips was again among the wickets as her great 
season continued and she and skipper Brooke Hepburn, 
broke through the Scorpions’ middle order, taking 5/6 
in 27 balls to roll the visitors for 157.

In reply, left-hander Georgia Redmayne was again the 
star at the top of the order, taking the game away from 
the visitors’ and their underpar score with Corinne Hall 
finishing 55* when the winning runs were hit.

Tasmanian Tigers Women v WA Fury
Casey Fields, Melbourne | 1 February 2019 

Toss WA | POM Georgia Redmayne

Tasmania 9/242 (Redmayne 77, Hall 51; Hempenstall 3/39,  
Cross 2/33) def. Western Australia 164 

(Edgar 67, Piparo 32; Hartley 3/27, Moloney 2/25) by 78 runs.

The Tigers' Women's English superstar, Alex Hartley, 
and gun wicketkeeper, Georgia Redmayne, were the 
stars of the show at Casey Fields, leading the top-of-
the-table Tigers to a convincing 78-run victory over 
the Western Fury.

A special mention for Tigers debutant, Amy Smith.  
At just 14 years of age Amy is the youngest player ever 
to play for the Tigers senior teams, men or women, 
and she claimed a wicket on her debut. 

The previous record was set by teammate Meg Phillips 
who was just 15 years of age. 

The Tigers lost wickets at regular intervals late in 
their innings but via Redmayne and Hall once more,  
had a competitive target to defend.

Hartley and Sasha Moloney were the chief destroyers 
with the ball, as the Tigers remained within touching 
distance of their first-ever WNCL Final following this 
bonus point victory.

MATCH 6
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MATCH 1 MATCH 2

Perth Scorchers v Hobart Hurricanes
Junction Oval 1 December 2018 

 Toss Scorchers | POM Elyse Villani

Scorchers 4/147 (19.3) (Villani 58, Ebsary 40*; Moloney 2/19,  
Phillips 1/28) def. Hurricanes 7/143 (Redmayne 49,  

Fazackerley 38; Graham 3/25, Peschel 1/24) by six wickets.

An ultra-competitive Hurricanes outfit - without their 
three internationals, nearly stunned last year's finalists the 
Perth Scorchers in their rebel WBBL|04 season opener.

After being sent in by Meg Lanning's Scorchers, 20-year-
old all-rounder Erin Fazackerley - a surprising choice to 
open the batting, got the Hurricanes off to a dream start, 
smashing three sixes and four boundaries to guide her 
team to their best-ever powerplay.

She laid the perfect platform for Georgia Redmayne to 
build her innings via support from new skipper Sasha 

Moloney (22 from 24).

Despite losing a few wickets late searching for more 
runs, the Hurricanes total meant the crowd was in 

for a tense second dig.

Some disciplined bowling led to a couple 
of big breakthroughs in the Scorchers' 
powerplay but last year's runner-up 
Scorchers completed their chase with 
three balls to spare.

Hobart Hurricanes v Melbourne Stars
West Park | 8 December 2018 
Toss Stars | POM Erin Osborne

Hurricanes 6/158 (Knight 82*, Hall 26; Sutherland 2/30,  
Osborne 1/20) lost to Stars 5/159 (19.5) (Osborne 67,  

du Preez 59*; Matthews 2/23, Phillips 2/37) by five wickets.

A determined WBBL Hurricanes side fell just short of the 
fast-finishing Melbourne Stars in the first of back-to-back 
games at West Park in Burnie.

With the Hurricanes on 4-48 after seven overs, England 
captain Heather Knight and Corinne Hall went to work, 
compiling a solid partnership of 51 while increasing the 
run rate.

The 1136-strong crowd was left holding their collective 
breath when Hall departed on 26, but soon became vocal 
as Knight lit up West Park late in the innings.

She finished on a remarkable 82 not out from 55 deliveries, 
guiding the hosts to a competitive total of 6-158 from 
20 overs.

A Veronica Pyke maiden set the scene for the Hurricanes' 
early fortunes in the field, with Meg Phillips claiming the 
key wicket of last weekend's century-maker Lizelle Lee 
when the renowned boundary-hitter was on just two runs. 

From then on, the tempo of the innings shifted, as Stars 
duo Erin Osborne and Mignon Du Preez dug deep to rally 
the visiting side to victory.

Hobart Hurricanes Womens
2018-19 WBBL|05 Season
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Sydney Sixers v Hobart Hurricanes
Blundstone Arena | 16 December 2018 

Toss Hurricanes | POM Ellyse Perry

Hurricanes 141 (Redmayne 47*, Knight 23; Kapp 4/27, Smith 2/20) lost to 
Sixers 3/158 (Perry 72*, Burns 44; O’Donnell 1/27, Knight 1/30) by 17 runs.

A WBBL-record ninth-wicket partnership of 55 took 
the Hurricanes to the final over of the match versus 
the reigning champion Sydney Sixers for the second 
day running.

For the first time this season, Sasha Moloney's charges 
were in the field to begin the game and kept the Sixers at 
bay. 159 was the target and there was a feeling inside the 
ground that the Sixers would need all 10 wickets to win.

The international stars of the Tasmania’s Team top order, 
Smriti Mandhana and Heather Knight, came and went 
relatively cheaply but kept the required run rate in check.

A steady flow of wickets soon followed, though, with four 
falling inside the powerplay and eight by the 11th over.

When Brooke Hepburn fell from the final ball of the 
19th over, it was down to Redmayne to find 18 from six 
deliveries with Alex Hartley at the other end.

Some eager off-strike running from our World Cup-
winning off-spinner saw her caught short of her ground 
and that was all she wrote for The Big Weekend in Hobart.

Melbourne Stars v Hobart Hurricanes
West Park | 9 December 2018 

 Toss Hurricanes | POM Smriti Mandhana

Hurricanes 6/196 (Mandhana 69, Matthews 42; King 2/22 Osborne 1/22) def. 
Stars 124 (Reakes 31, Sutherland 23; Knight 3/10, Pyke 2/19) by 72 runs.

The WBBL Hurricanes claimed their first win of the rebel 
WBBL|04 season in Burnie in record-breaking fashion, 
defeating the Stars by 72 runs at West Park.

Indian star Mandhana found the boundary quickly and 
at regular intervals, with Hayley Matthews matching her 
in scoring pace at the rotation of strike, as the Hurricanes 
surpassed their previous best-ever powerplay to reach 
1-55 after six overs.

They put on 98 for the second wicket before Matthews 
was run out at the non-striker’s end. The West Indian fell 
awkwardly while attempting to quick turn, immediately 
clutching her leg, appearing to have hurt her knee and 
was assisted from the field by medical staff.

Mandhana continued to bat superbly, the Hurricanes’ 
total was not only their highest-ever score, but the third-
highest in the competition’s history overall.

The Hurricanes hunger in the field and disciplined bowling 
matched their dynamism with the bat and all of a sudden, 
the Stars found themselves facing an uphill task at 6-90 
after 12 overs.

Brooke Hepburn was rewarded for a tireless bowling 
effort with the final wicket of Makinley Blows, sealing the 
Hurricanes’ victory to the cheers of the 879 faithful fans.

Hobart Hurricanes v Perth Scorchers
Blundstone Arena | 18 December 2018 

Toss Hurricanes | POM Heather Graham

Hurricanes 7/173 (Mandhana 38, Fazackerley 36; Bolton 3/20, Graham 2/38) 
& 2/10 (Super Over) lost to Scorchers 6/173 (Graham 44*, Villani 41; Hepburn 
2/22, Moloney 2/26) & 0/16 (Super Over) by six runs on Super Over Method.

The WBBL Hurricanes fell to the Perth Scorchers by the 
narrowest of margins, with a super over defeat deciding 
the result of a tense encounter.

Nicole Bolton was the hero at the death for the visitors, 
smashing a boundary and a six as the Scorchers set the 
Hurricanes a 16-run target from the extra six deliveries.

The hosts would ultimately fall short, making just 2-10 as 
eventual Player of the Match Heather Graham held her 
nerve with ball in hand.

The Hurricanes top order all chipped in with starts to put 
the scoreboard pressure right on the chasing Scorchers, 
who rallied with a lower order partnership between 
Graham, Lauren Ebsary and then Chloe Piparo to tie the 
game with 16 runs off the final over.

Hobart Hurricanes v Sydney Sixers
Blundstone Arena | 15 December 2018 

Toss Sixers | POM Ashleigh Gardner

Hurricanes 5/133 (Knight 51*, Daffara 27; Kapp 2/20,  
van Niekerk 1/13) lost to Sixers 3/155 (Gardner 79*, Burns 43; Pyke 1/14, 
Hartley 1/25) by seven wickets on Duckworth-Lewis System Method.

The Hobart Hurricanes went down in a rain-affected 
match against the Sydney Sixers at Blundstone Arena.

Heather Knight seized control of the contest in the early 
going, with the England captain smashing an undefeated 
51 from 35 balls including five boundaries and a big 
crowd-pleasing six, before combining with captain Sasha 
Moloney to ensure the Hurricanes finished in a hurry.

Veronica Pyke got the Hurricanes off to a good start in 
the field by claiming the wicket of the dangerous Alyssa 
Healy in the first over.

The Sixers scratched along at a run-a-ball pace thereafter, 
and when English import, Alex Hartley, Perry for just 10, 
the visitors looked to be positioned behind the mark on 
2-58 after seven overs.

From then on, it was the Ashleigh Gardner and Erin Burns 
show, with the former Hurricane smashing her way to 
Player of the Match honours, a knock which included 
a stunning 12 boundaries and three sixes.
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Hobart Hurricanes v Brisbane Heat
University of Tasmania Stadium | 30 December 2018 

Toss Hurricanes | POM Corinne Hall

Hurricanes 5/133 (18.2) (Hall 48, Hinkley 45*;  
Harris 3/23, Kimmince 2/31) def. Heat 129 (Harris 23,  
Short 19; Phillips 3/16, Hartley 2/21) by five wickets.

The WBBL Hurricanes claimed a thrilling five-wicket 
win over a highly-favoured Brisbane Heat outfit at the 
University of Tasmania Stadium in Launceston.

Tasmania’s Team were on their game in the field, hanging 
onto four early catches, and eight overall, to bowl out the 
visitors for just 129 in 19 overs.

The run chase got off to a shaky start, with the Hurricanes 
4-29 after the powerplay, before 50-gamer Corinne 
Hall and Mikayla Hinkley combined for a stoic 98-run 
partnership to guide the home side to their second win 
of the season with ten balls to spare.

With the ball, it was Northern local Meg Phillips and 
Alex Hartley who combined for five wickets in a brilliant 
team effort.

Sydney Thunder v Hobart Hurricanes
Manuka Oval | 21 December 2018 

Toss Thunder | POM Stefanie Taylor

Hurricanes 9/153 (Fazackerley 35, Knight 34; Taylor 3/24, 
Bates 2/16) lost to Thunder 4/156 (17.2) (Stalenberg 55, 

Priest 40; Knight 25, Pyke 1/20) by six wickets.

The Hobart Hurricanes were convincingly defeated by 
the Sydney Thunder at Manuka Oval in Canberra, largely 
due to the contributions of Thunder trio Stafanie Taylor, 
Sam Bates and Naomi Stalenberg.

Sent into bat, Tasmania’s Team got off to an impressive 
start to be 2-82 from just nine overs – through quick-
fire starts from Erin Fazackerley, Smriti Mandhana and 
Heather Knight, before a mini collapse at the hands of 
Taylor and Bates saw them post an attainable 9-153.

The total always looked under-par for a flat Manuka 
Oval pitch despite some impressive hitting inside 
the power play. 

Veronica Pyke, in her 50th Hurricanes appearance, 
was the best with the ball, picking up Australian star 
Rachael Haynes in the first over of the Thunder’s chase.

Brisbane Heat v Hobart Hurricanes
University of Tasmania Stadium | 31 December 2018 

Toss Hurricanes | POM Grace Harris

Hurricanes 80 (Hinkley 16, Moloney 13; Jonassen 2/11, Johnson 2/14) lost 
to Heat 8/138 (Dooley 44*, Harris 32; Phillips 3/22, Pyke 2/17) by 58 runs.

The Hurricanes’ Launceston trip ended on a 
disappointing note, falling to the Brisbane Heat by 
58 runs despite holding the visitors to a seemingly- 
attainable first innings total.

Meg Phillips backed up her three-wicket haul with another 
three scalps to spearhead a bowling attack that restrained 
the Queensland side to a score of 8-138, but a batting 
collapse in response left the Hurricanes well short of their 
required target, posting just 80 runs in all.

Mikayla Hinkley, who finished undefeated on 45 in 
Sunday's win, was the only batter in purple who looked 
comfortable at the crease, but when she fell to an errant 
pull shot the pressure became too much for the home side 
as they fell away quickly.

Hobart Hurricanes v Sydney Thunder
Spotless Stadium | 24 December 2018 
Toss Thunder | POM Rachael Haynes

Thunder 4/136 (16.4) (Haynes 68*, Priest 22; Hepburn 1/13,  
Knight 1/18) def. Hurricanes 135 (Mandhana 35,  

Knight 35; Farrell 2/20, Gibson 1/13) by six wickets.

The Hobart Hurricanes fell to the Sydney Thunder by 
six wickets at Spotless Stadium on Christmas Eve.

A late batting collapse resulted in a total of 135 that 
was always going to be tough to defend.

Smriti Mandhana was in dominant form early, smashing 
five boundaries and a six before falling on the third-last 
ball of the powerplay with the score on 53.

Stef Daffara (26 runs) and Heather Knight both made 
bright starts but were unable to bat long enough for the 
Hurricanes to see out their 20 overs.

Three late run-outs cost Tasmania’s Team crucial runs, 
as their total was overrun inside the 17th over largely 
due to the contributions of openers Rachael Haynes 
and Rachel Priest.

Priest hit five boundaries in her eleven-ball innings, but it 
was Haynes’ unbeaten 68 that really hurt the Hurricanes, 
with the national star earning Player of the Match honours 
for her display.

MATCH 9MATCH 7 MATCH 10MATCH 8
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Hobart Hurricanes v Adelaide Strikers
Karen Rolton Oval | 9 January 2019 
Toss Strikers | POM Tahlia McGrath

Strikers 5/165 (McGrath 65, Devine 40; Knight 2/31, Hepburn 2/34) def. 
Hurricanes 9/141 (Knight 55, Daffara 24*; Schutt 3/21, Price 2/10) by 24 runs.

Tahlia McGrath stroked her second half-century in as 
many days as the Adelaide Strikers Women kept their 
faint WBBL finals hopes alive with a 24-run victory over 
the Hobart Hurricanes.

McGrath thumped a quickfire 65 off 39 balls to underpin 
the Strikers' 5-165 total.

Hurricanes Vice-Captain Brooke Hepburn took 2-34 from 
her four overs, claiming the scalps of McGrath and Megan 
Schutt as England skipper Heather Knight claimed 2-31 
from her four overs, as the Hurricanes swapped between 
six different bowlers.

Veteran pace-bowler Veronica Pyke remained very 
economical taking 1-17 from her three overs.

The brave Hurricanes Women were held to 9-141 in reply, 
with no repeat of yesterday's heroics where Hobart belted 
their way to 189 to force a Super Over.

Melbourne Renegades v Hobart Hurricanes
GMHBA Stadium | 3 January 2019 

Toss Hurricanes | POM Sophie Molineux

Renegades 5/119 (18.1) (Satterthwaite 28, Webb 22*;  
Moloney 3/20, Fryett 1/5) def. Hurricanes 8/115 (Hall 37*, 
Knight 19; Molineux 2/22, Tahuhu 2/28) by five wickets.

Some brilliant performances from our WBBL captains 
both past and present wasn't enough to get our 
Hurricanes across the line at GMHBA Stadium in Geelong.

WBBL|03 skipper Corinne Hall's 37* from 30 deliveries 
lifted our total to our mildly defendable 8/115 before 
our current leader, Sasha Moloney, kept us in with a shot 
of victory with 3/20 from four fine overs.

Unfortunately, with little margin for error with the ball in 
hand, our hosts the Renegades passed our total five down 
with 11 deliveries to spare.

It was another performance full of fight but another 
which will leave our WBBL side wondering what might've 
been if a few more key moments went their way.

Hobart Hurricanes v Melbourne Renegades
Junction Oval | 12 January 2019 

Toss Hurricanes | POM Amy Satterthwaite

Renegades 6/146 (Satterthwaite 66, Duffin 30;  
Hartley 3/21, Pyke 1/26) def. Hurricanes 6/143  

(Fazackerley 52, Knight 28 u 1/18, Wareham 1/23) by three runs.

The Melbourne Renegades hung onto a nail-biting three-
run victory over the Hobart Hurricanes Women to secure 
a spot in the WBBL Finals for the first time.

Former Hurricane, Amy Satterthwaite, produced a 
fine captain's knock in the red and black to inspire 
the Renegades to 6-146 before the Hurricanes were 
frustratingly held to 6-143 in a last-ball heart-stopper.

With the Hurricanes needing nine to win off the last over, 
the ever-economical Molly Strano held her nerve and 
ultimately, with five required off the final ball or four to 
force a super over, Corinne Hall could only muster a single.

Hurricanes opener, Erin Fazackerley, played the best 
innings of her life and together with Indian star Smriti 
Mandhana bludgeoned the Renegades attack during 
the power play after fellow import, Alex Hartley, was the 
best with the ball for Tasmania’s Team.

Adelaide Strikers v Hobart Hurricanes
Karen Rolton Oval | 8 January 2019 

Toss Hurricanes | POM Sophie Devine

Strikers 5/189 (Devine 99*, McGrath 63; Hepburn 2/28,  
Moloney 1/32) & 0/16 (Super Over) def. Hurricanes 8/189  

(Redmayne 54, Mandhana 52; Coyte 3/32, Wellington 1/26)  
& 1/12 (Super Over) by four runs on Super Over Method.

Heroic hitting from Sophie Devine at the beginning 
and the end propelled the Adelaide Strikers Women 
to a dramatic Super Over win over the valiant Hobart 
Hurricanes Women.

Devine's 99 not out underpinned the Strikers' 5-189, 
which the Hurricanes bravely matched when they 
responded with 8-189.

Katelyn Fryett's boundary off the last ball, with five 
required for victory, tied the scores after their star Indian 
import opener Smriti Mandhana smoked 52 off just 25 
balls to set up their strong run chase.

Mandhana belted the first ball of the Super Over from 
Sarah Coyte high onto the marquee roof as the visitors 
scored 1-12 (1.0).

But Devine was even better, heaving Hurricanes pace-
bowler Brooke Hepburn for back-to-back maximums, 
before edging an off-side boundary to give the Strikers 
a remarkable win with three balls remaining.

MATCH 13 MATCH 14MATCH 11 MATCH 12
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Cricket Tasmania Premier League 

The 2018-19 Detail First Cricket 
Tasmania Premier League (CTPL) 
First Grade competition was 
contested over 21 rounds which 
included seven two-day, six 
one-day and seven Twenty20 
rounds. The season was 
highlighted by the inclusion of 
the Greater Northern Raiders.

It was an intriguing season with the top two positions 
not settled until the very last round, however, all 4 teams 
that featured in the 2017-18 finals again featured in the 
2018-19 finals. 

Ultimately, Clarence claimed their third consecutive 
Minor premiership on 83 points ahead of Lindisfarne on 
79 points, South Hobart Sandy Bay on 68 points and 
North Hobart on 57 points. 

In the bottom half of the competition, University again 
finished in fifth position on 47 points over Kingborough 
(35 points), Glenorchy (27 points), Greater Northern (23 
points) and New Town (5 points). 

Semifinal action saw a repeat of the 2017-18 grand final 
with Clarence defeating North Hobart thanks to a fine 
century from Jesse Dinnie getting his side to 285 just 
before lunch on Day 2. The Roos bowlers got the job done, 
bowling the Demons out for 146 to progress to the final. 

In the other semi-final, Lindisfarne dominated South Hobart 
Sandy Bay, defeating the Sharks by 165 runs thanks to an 
all-round captains performance by Matthew Wilkie who 
knocked 66 with the bat and took 3-8 with the ball.

2018-19 Men’s CTPL First Grade Grand Final

The Detail First Premier League Grand Final lived up to 
the hype on day one, near perfect conditions in the first 
session giving way to some exciting cricket. Clarence 
won the toss and elected to bat, however were soon in 
strife as Rodwell Medalist Harry Allanby was dismissed 
by Nathan Ellis for a duck.

The Lindisfarne bowling attack came out ready to put 
pressure on the reigning premiers, as Matt Wilkie and Ellis 
rampaged through the Clarence top order, Jesse Dinnie 
(3), Alec Smith (1) and Ben Rohrer (14) all falling in quick 
succession leaving the Roos 4/52 early in the match. As 
the conditions became overcast throughout the day, 
an impressive stand between Michael Jones and Daniel 
Salpietro kept Clarence in the match as Jones brought 
up his 50 and the pair reached a 95-run partnership. 
However, as Salpietro (44) lost his wicket to Ellis break the 
partnership and was soon followed by Jones (73) off the 
bowling of Wilkie, the tail end soon fell away under the 
Lightning's impressive and consistent form with the ball.

Absolom was out almost as quickly as he was in, 
dismissed for a duck after facing three deliveries. Ellis 
cleaned up the remainder of the Clarence tail order as 
Clarence were all out for 209, Ellis finishing with figures of 
5/73, while playing coach Wilkie finished his innings 4/35. 

As Lindisfarne took the crease with all the pressure on 
the opposition, Mac Wright and Matthew Dance looked 
dangerous early before falling to Lawrence Neil-Smith 
for 15 and Sam Rainbird for 18 respectively. With the 
aim being to get through the remainder of the session 
without losing another wicket, captain Charlie Wakim 
(21*) and Ben McDermott (33*) managed to bat it out 
and leave the Lightning in a commanding position, 
2/94 at the end of the day’s play.

Lindisfarne came out swinging after seeing out the 
final session of play on Day 1 with Charlie Wakim and 
Ben McDermott still at the crease.

The pair left no doubt as to their intentions as both 
players brought up their half centuries well before lunch. 
A frustrated Clarence bowling attack were unable to 
put a halt to the partnership that soon developed into 
centuries for both players after lunch, Ben McDermott 
hitting his ton as Lindisfarne cruised to 2/241. Lightning 
captain Wakim was soon to follow, notching his own ton 
as the side sped to figures of 2/280. 

It was Lawrence Neil-Smith that finally took the scalp 
of the captain, Wakim caught in front of the stumps 
on 117 off 236 deliveries. However, the jubilation of the 
Roos was short-lived, as McDermott took up a new 
partnership with the incoming Keegan Oates. McDermott 
simply couldn’t be stopped, hitting glorious shots all 
around the ground off the entire Clarence bowling 
attack. His magnificent effort of 217* with the bat broke 
the 35-year-old record for the highest individual score 
in a Grand Final, which was previously held by Lindsay 
Davison of Glenorchy Cricket Club. 

Clarence could do little to stem the flow of runs, Oates 
himself putting in a strong performance to finish with 53* 
off 106 deliveries. The Lightning finished 3/460 at the 
end of the days play, losing only the three wickets across 
their 124 overs. For his record-breaking performance with 
the bat, Ben McDermott was awarded the Roger Woolley 
Medal for Player of the Final.

2018-19 Men’s CTPL First Grade Season Review
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North Hobart and Clarence emerged as two of the top sides 
early, while University had a fantastic season, finishing at the top 
of the table after 14 rounds only to bow out of the finals early on 
to open the competition up to the other sides.

Kingborough enjoyed another quality season finishing third 
on the ladder, though were knocked over by the quality North 
Hobart side in the semi-final.

Lindisfarne were a close fifth behind Clarence, dropping their 
last game to miss the finals by only three points.

New Town showed some good form throughout the season, 
finishing ahead of SHSB and Glenorchy who rounded out the 
eight in seventh eighth position respectively.

Finishing second after 14 rounds and with four more wins than 
the Roos, North Hobart would’ve confident of securing some 
silverware yet would’ve been wary of a Clarence side brimming 
with energy after a massive upset win against University to 
advance to the decider.

2018-19 Women’s CTPL First Grade Season Review

The Women’s competition 
in 2018-19 once again 
comprised 14 rounds of 
Twenty20 cricket that 
culminated in finals in March.

2018-19 Women’s CTPL First Grade Grand Final

In the CTPL Women’s Twenty20 Grand Final played 
at the TCA Ground, the Roos won the toss and sent 
in the home side to bat. 

The Demons got off to a quick start, however some 
classy bowling by captain Emma Thompson kept 
Clarence in the game. 

Coming off an impressive win in the semi finals over 
University, the Roos would have been confident that 
their batting talent could chase down the required runs. 

Stefanie Daffara looked strong with the bat for the 
Demons (31) and while her opening partner Taylah 
Purton fell for 5, the incoming captain Hannah Short 
steadied the ship with an impressive 45 as Clarence 
struggled to take a wicket for ten overs. 

The breakthrough came when Emma Thompson 
(2/15) stepped up and led by example, bowling Short 
and triggering a quick succession of wickets. Melodie 
Armstrong managed a solid 20 before being run out by 
Katie Cole, while Belinda Page, Beth Langston, Ella Marsh 
and Kirstin Palfrey all to make an impact with the bat as 
the demons finished their 20 overs 6/121. 

Set a reasonably solid target to chase, Clarence 
looked in trouble early on losing opener B Grant (2) at 
the end of the of the third over. Maddison Brooks (15) 
joined captain Emma Thompson (40) at the crease 
to pile on the runs, as Thompson backed up her form 
with the ball to get her side back in the match and with 
a fighting chance of achieving the required run rate. 
Some great keeping by Taylah Purton off the bowling 
of Kirstin Palfrey (1/21) finally broke the partnership as 
Brooks was dismissed after facing 26 balls, and Thompson 
was soon to follow with Jayde Davis taking the big wicket. 

 
The run rate slowed from there for the Roos, the 
partnership of Olivia McDonald (20*) and Natalie Pearce 
(15) looking promising before Beth Langston (1/16) 
once again stepped up for the Demons, knocking over 
Pearce and stopping the run chase in its tracks. The 
middle order couldn’t push through the classy bowling 
of North Hobart as they fell 14 runs short of the required 
total for victory, their innings concluding 5/108.

North Hobart captain Hannah Short was awarded Player 
of the Final for her 45 runs off 47 balls.
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2018-19 Kim Fazackerley Medal Leaderboard

PLAYER CLUB 
ROUND

TOTAL 1 K1 K2 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 K3 11 12 13 14

A. Day Uni 22 2 3  – 2  – 3  – 3  – 3 1  – 2  – 3 – –
E. Mifsud NT 20  – 2  –  – 1  – 2 2  –  – 2 3  – 3  – 2 3
E. Thompson Clar 20 3 3 3  –  –  – – –  – 2 3  –  –  – 3  – 3
B. Dodd SHSB 16  – 2 1  – 2 1 1  – 1 –  –  – 2 3 2 1 –
B. Langston NH 16  –  –  – 2 – 2  –  – 2  – 3 3  – 3 1 – –
B. Hepburn King 16  –  – 3 – 3 3  –  – –  – 2 – 2  –  –  – 3

2018-19 Rodwell & Fazackerley Medals

2018-19 Emerson Rodwell Medal Leaderboard

PLAYER CLUB 
ROUND

TOTAL 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

H Allanby Clar 21 – 3 – – 2 – – – – – – 2 3 3 – – – 3 – – 3
M. Wright Lind 19 – 2 2 – 1 3 3 – – – – – – 3 – – – 3 – – 2
C. Wakim Lind 15 – 3 – – – – – 3 – 2 3 – 2 – – – 2 – – – –
F. Raja Glen 13 – – – – – 1 – – 1 2 – – 3 3 2 1 – – – – –
D. Salpietro Clar 11 3 2 – – – – – – –  3 3 – – – – – – – – –
N. Matthews Glen 10 – – – – 3 – – – – 1 –  – – – – – – – 1 3 2
C. Murfet NH 10 – – – – – – 2 –  – 1  – 2 – – – – – – – – 3
C. Rose King 10 – 2 – – – 3 – – – – – – – – – – – – 2 – 3

2018-19 CTPL Teams of the Year

Lindisfarne’s dynamic opening pair – Mac Wright 
and Charlie Wakim headline the CTPL Men’s Team 
of the Year following outstanding individual seasons 
in season 2018-19.

Wright (913 runs @ 70.23) and Wakim (739 @ 52.79) 
were both pivotal in Lindisfarne’s charge to three Grand 
Final appearances in the CTPL 1st Grade competitions. 
Wakim was also duly rewarded with selection in 
Tasmania’s Sheffield Shield team and proved his selection 
was warranted after scoring 160 on debut and helping the 
Tigers to an excellent victory against South Australia.

A late season flurry of runs from Sean Willis (583 @ 44.85) 
ensured his selection for the third time while dual 2017-18 
Rodwell Medallists Caleb Jewell (658 @ 47.00) and Harry 
Allanby (561 @ 33.00 and 28 wickets @ 17.79) also backed 
up from topping the leaderboard last season to help lead 
North Hobart and Clarence to another finals appearance.

The evergreen Nathan Matthews (641 @ 58.27) finished 
the season with two fantastic centuries to slot in at 
number six while Michael Jones (31 dismissals) had 
another stellar season behind the stumps.

Nathan Ellis (41 wickets @ 15.51 continued his fine 
form in 2018-19, claiming the CTPL 1st Grade bowling 
aggregate award while Ben Fraser (30 @ 20.57), 
Ryan Lees (32 @ 18.47) and leg-spinner Joel Logan  
(27 @ 12.96) all had fine seasons with the ball.

Lindisfarne CC coach Matthew Wilkie was acknowledged 
after leading Lindisfarne to three Grand Finals and Greg 
Beechey and Jamie Mitchell were also recognised as 
CTPL 1st Grade Umpires of the Year. 

Unsurprisingly, 2018-19 Fazackerley Medalist Ashley 
Day heads the CTPL Women’s Team of the Year after 
a sensational campaign across both formats.  
The New South Wales product who was offered a full 
Tasmanian Tigers contract last May left no stone unturned 
in pursuit of higher honours and amassed 774 runs @ 
110.57 at the top of the order for University. Day, alongside 
Stefanie Daffara (524 @ 74.86) open the batting for the 
Team of the Year, with the North Hobartian’s consistent 
form leading her side to the T20 Premiership in the 
2018-19 season. Corinne Hall and Emma Thompson both 
shone, each averaging over 100 with Hall 455 @ 113.75 and 
Thompson 535 @ 107.00. This strong start to the middle 
order is boosted by Thompson’s effectiveness with the 
ball, taking 11 wickets @ 11.55 throughout the season.

Captain Sasha Moloney is an obvious inclusion, having led 
her side to the minor premiership in the 2019-19 season. 
With 433 runs @ 113.75, Moloney rounds out the strong 
batting order. Emily Mifsud continues to star with bat 
and ball; with 499 runs @ 41.58 and 20 wickets @ 15.95 
she is a clear standout all-rounder in any side. Emma 
Manix-Geeves was the pick of the keepers this year, 
with 8 dismissals and 195 runs, while all-rounder Brooke 
Hepburn continues to impress with 349 runs @ 38.78 and 
10 wickets @ 16.00. Beth Dodd, Beth Langston and Leah 
Wierenga make up the bowling attack, Dodd’s versatility 
with 406 runs and 22 wickets @ 12.77 a testament to her 
skill and effort throughout the season. Langston, the 
top Women’s Bowling average and aggregate for the 
season had another exceptional year, taking 26 wickets 
@ 8.73 and cementing her position as the top bowler 
in the competition. Wierenga rounds out the team with 
fantastic figures of 18 wickets @ 13.83. Coach Todd 
Pinnington gains selection after leading his side to a 
Premiership victory and maintaining a fantastic record 
throughout the season.

Kim Fazackerley Medal

University of Tasmania CC’s 
Ashley Day claimed the 
Kim Fazackerley Medal for 
2018-19. Day was named in 
the Female Tigers’ Squad 
and represented the Hobart 
Hurricanes in the WBBL over 
the 2018-2019 season.

Day had a blistering start to the CTPL season, with 
53 runs in the opening Twenty20 round and following 
up in the new One-Day format with an unbeaten 182*. 
She would go on to score another six half centuries 

throughout the season, almost reaching triple figures 
again in Round 4 against Clarence with 96 not out.

The stand-out run-scorer for the season, Day scored a total 
of 499 runs in T20 matches with an average of 83.17, while 
in the Kookaburra Cup she averaged 275 with an aggregate 
score of 275, thanks to her unbeaten 182* in Round 1.

Mifsud and Thompson both continued their excellent 
form in the 2018-2019 season, polling 20 votes apiece 
and having great finishes to their seasons. Beth Dodd, 
Beth Langston and Brooke Hepburn were again high 
in the count.

Emerson Rodwell Medal

Clarence gun all-rounder Harry 
Allanby became the first player 
since Mark Divin (2010-11 and  
2011-12) to win back-to-back 
Rodwell Medals. Leading from the 
front once again, Allanby backed 
up a sensational 2017-18 season 
to help Clarence to another CTPL 
1st Grade Finals appearance.

Starring with both the bat and ball throughout the season, 
the number of games in which Allanby polled 3 votes is 
a testament to his form and versatility. Scoring 561 runs 
@ 33.00 and taking 28 wickets @ 17.79 throughout the 
2018-19 season, Allanby’s match winning performances 
regularly got his side out of trouble.

A high score of 74 in Round 20 against Glenorchy, 
followed up by 69 against New Town the following 
week were two of five half centuries scored by Allanby 
consistently managed to pile on runs towards the back 
of the Clarence line-up. With bowling figures that often-
featured multiple wickets, Round 2 saw his season’s best 
figures as he took 5/47 against University. 

Mac Wright (913 runs @ 70.23) and Charlie Wakim  
(739 runs @ 52.79) both had stand-out performances 
with the bat with the latter debuting at First-Class level 
for the Tigers towards the end of the season. 

Allanby joins an illustrious group of players including 
Divin (Kingborough), Adam Polkinghorne (SHSB) and 
Ian Beven (Clarence) to claim back-to-back medals. 
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Emerson Rodwell Medalists

SEASON WINNER SEASON WINNER

1975-76 Ian James (Glenorchy) 1997-98 Mark Colegrave (Clarence)
1976-77 Gary Maynard (North Hobart) 1998-99 Brad Thomas (University)
1977-78 Brent Palfreyman (Sandy Bay) 1999-00 J. Marquet (Uni) & S Jurgenson (Lind)
1978-79 Michael Allen (South Hobart) 2000-01 Adam Polkinghorne (SHSB)
1979-80 David Hughes (Sandy Bay) 2001-02 Adam Polkinghorne (SHSB)
1980-81 Ray Brown (University) 2002-03 Adam Polkinghorne (SHSB)
1981-82 Michael Allen (South Hobart) 2003-04 M Colegrave (Clar) & G Cunningham (Uni)
1982-83 Stephen Henley (New Town) 2004-05 Adam Polkinghorne (SHSB)
1983-84 Michael Tame (Clarence) 2005-06 Jamie Cox (Lindisfarne)
1984-85 Ian Beven (Clarence) 2006-07 Stuart H Clark (Kingborough)
1985-86 Ian Beven (Clarence) 2007-08 Alex Doolan (SHSB)
1986-87 Ian Beven (Clarence) 2008-09 Adam Polkinghorne (SHSB)
1987-88 Kevin Treweek (New Town) 2009-10 Andrew Kealy (University)
1988-89 Ian Beven (Clarence) 2010-11 Mark Divin (Kingborough)
1989-90 Neil Lenham (Brighton) 2011-12 Mark Divin (Kingborough)
1990-91 Scott Smith (Glenorchy) 2012-13 Brett Geeves (Glenorchy)
1991-92 Mark Atkinson (New Town) 2013-14 Jonathon Wells (Clarence)
1992-93 Roger Hughes (Glenorchy) 2014-15 Luke Butterworth (Glenorchy)
1993-94 Brad Thomas (University) 2015-16 Daniel Salpietro (Clarence)
1994-95 Martin Kelly (Lindisfarne) 2016-17 Harry Evans (Kingborough)
1995-96 Brad Thomas (University 2017-18 Harry Allanby (Clar) & Caleb Jewell (NH)
1996-97 Andrew Dykes (Clarence) 2018-19 Harry Allanby (Clarence)

Average and Aggregate Award Winners

CRICKET TASMANIA CHAIRMAN’S MERIT AWARDS

CT Chairman’s Merit Award Greg Beechey New Town CC & TCUSA
CT Chairman’s Merit Award Jill Taylor North Hobart CC
CT Chairman’s Merit Award Mark Divin Kingborough DCC
CT Chairman’s Merit Award Mark Wickham TCUSA

FIRST GRADE AWARDS – MEN

Emerson Rodwell Medal Harrison Allanby Clarence DCC
Batting Average Macalister Wright Lindisfarne CC
Batting Aggregate Macalister Wright Lindisfarne CC
Bowling Average Joel Logan University CC
Bowling Aggregate Nathan Ellis Lindisfarne CC
Wicket Keeping Michael Jones Clarence DCC

FIRST GRADE AWARDS – WOMEN

Kim Fazackerley Medal Ashley Day University CC
Batting Average Corinne Hall SHSB CC
Batting Aggregate Ashley Day University CC
Bowling Average Beth Langston North Hobart CC
Bowling Aggregate Beth Langston North Hobart CC

SECOND GRADE AWARDS

Allan Newman Medal Liam Rice Clarence DCC
Batting Average Jake Steele Kingborough DCC
Batting Aggregate Mark Brazendale SHSB CC
Bowling Average Shane Holland Kingborough DCC
Bowling Aggregate Luke Swinton Lindisfarne CC

THIRD GRADE AWARDS

Jim Stevens Medal Clayton Braddick University CC
Batting Average Marcus Campopiano Brighton DCC
Batting Aggregate Marcus Campopiano Brighton DCC
Bowling Average Clayton Braddick University CC
Bowling Aggregate Clayton Braddick University CC

BOYS U17 AWARDS

Michael Di Venuto Medal Tom Willoughby SHSB CC
Michael Di Venuto Medal Sam Wright New Town CC
Batting Average Nicholas Davis North Hobart CC
Batting Aggregate Zac Phair University CC
Bowling Average Jack Willmott New Town CC
Bowling Aggregate Cameron Walter Kingborough DCC

BOYS U15 AWARDS

Tim Paine Medal Zac Curtain Kingborough DCC
Tim Paine Medal Jesse Willmott New Town CC
Batting Average Will Clifford University CC
Batting Aggregate Zac Curtain Kingborough DCC
Bowling Average Jesse Willmott New Town CC
Bowling Aggregate Ozzie Warmbrunn Clarence DCC

GIRLS U17 AWARDS

Player of the Year Ella Marsh North Hobart CC
Batting Average Sarah Breckweg SHSB CC
Batting Aggregate Ella Marsh North Hobart CC
Bowling Average Clare Scott University CC
Bowling Aggregate Clare Scott University CC

OTHER AWARDS

Player of the U18 Competition Samuel O’Mahony Kingborough DCC
Ground of the Year Ferguson Park Brighton Council
CTPL Club Championship Kingborough DCC – 409 points
Lord Taverner’s Spirit of Cricket Greater Northern – 6.61 average

MEN’S TEAM

NO PLAYER CLUB MATCHES RUNS HS AVG WKTS BB AVG

1 Mac Wright Lindisfarne 18 913 111* 70.23 19 3/11 18.79
2 Charlie Wakim (C) Lindisfarne 16 739 121* 52.79 2 1/13 36.00
3 Caleb Jewell Nth Hobart 16 658 119* 47.00  - - -
4 Sean Willis SHSB 18 583 150 44.85 3 2/33 38.00
5 Harry Allanby Clarence 18 561 74 33.00 28 5/47 17.79
6 Nathan Matthews Glenorchy 17 641 134 58.27 5 2/18 43.80
7 Michael Jones (WK) Clarence 17 398 81 28.43 31 Dismissals
8 Nathan Ellis Lindisfarne 18 224 64 22.40 41 5/52 15.51
9 Ben Fraser Nth Hobart 17 76 18* 25.33 30 6/70 20.57
10 Ryan Lees New Town 16 73 16 8.11 32 5/47 18.47
11 Joel Logan University 12 24 6 6.00 27 6/11 12.96

Coach Matthew Wilkie Lindisfarne
Umpires Greg Beechey & Jamie Mitchell 

WOMEN’S TEAM

NO PLAYER CLUB MATCHES RUNS HS AVG WKTS BB AVG

1 Ashley Day University 13 774 182* 110.57 - - -
2 Stefanie Daffara Nth Hobart 11 524 103* 74.86 3 2/7 42.00
3 Corinne Hall SHSB 7 455 157* 113.75 - - -
4 Emma Thompson Clarence 9 535 105* 107.00 11 4/5 11.55
5 Sasha Moloney (C) University 10 433 145* 113.75 9 2/7 16.00
6 Emily Mifsud New Town 17 499 71 41.58 20 4/12 15.95
7 Emma Manix-Geeves New Town 10 195 56 27.86 8 Dismissals
8 Brooke Hepburn Kingborough 12 349 90* 38.78 10 3/9 16.00
9 Beth Dodd SHSB 17 406 125* 27.07 22 4/20 12.77
10 Beth Langston Nth Hobart 16 235 44* 33.57 26 6/4 8.73
11 Leah Wierenga Kingborough 16 23 10 3.83  18 3/16 13.83

Coach Todd Pinnington Nth Hobart

Kim Fazackerley Medalists

SEASON WINNER

2009-10 Amanda Silva (University)

2010-11 Lauren Hepburn (New Town) &  
Jessica Wuetschner (Lindisfarne)

2011-12 Jessica Wuetschner (Lindisfarne)
2012-13 Lauren Hepburn (New Town)
2013-14 Belinda Page (North Hobart)

SEASON WINNER

2014-15 Paris Crowe (New Town)
2015-16 Veronica Pyke (North Hobart)
2016-17 Erin Fazackerley (Clarence)
2017-18 Sterre Kalis (University)
2018-19 Ashley Day (University)

58 59Cricket Tasmania Annual Report 2018-19 Cricket Tasmania Annual Report 2018-19



Men’s Kookaburra Cup One-Day Competition

A man-of the-match performance by Simon Milenko 
guided South Hobart-Sandy Bay to a comfortable 105-
run win over Lindisfarne in the Kookaburra Cup Final. 
The Lightning started the day with a win however with 
Matt Wilkie calling the toss and electing to bowl first. 
The opening bowling attack of Nathan Ellis and Tom 
Briscoe were economical early, restricting the Sharks to 
just 11 runs from the first four overs before Ellis got the 
breakthrough with the key wicket of Trent Keep for just 1.

This brought the Sharks captain Sean Willis to the crease 
and the pair looked good from the onset, hitting 27 runs 
from 7 overs before matt Wilkie produced a gem of a ball 
to have Nichols caught behind for 17. 

This brought the ever-reliable Simon Milenko to the crease 
who took the game by the scruff of the neck, dispatching 
the Lightning bowlers to all parts of Blundstone Arena. 
With Willis by his side, the pair added a further 65 runs 
before Hurricane Jarrod Freeman got the crucial wicket 
of captain Sean Willis for 35, caught by Tom Briscoe. 

On the first ball of the very next over, Mac Wright got 
another breakthrough and this time it was the soon to be 
Danny Buckingham medalist Simon Milenko for 45 (49). 
With the Lightning disrupting the Sharks’ momentum, 
South Hobart-Sandy Bay needed someone to step up.  

In entered Hamish Kingston. Kingston then set the tempo 
for the rest of the innings blasting a hard-fought 48 in 
partnership with fellow middle order batsman Caleb 
Oakes. The pair added a further 75 before Tom Briscoe 
took the wicket of Oakes. This sparked a collapse with 
the Sharks adding another 33 runs for their last 5 wickets 
to fall on 213 from their 50 overs. 

The Lightning knew that the wicket was a 230+ and 
were confident from the outset with the ever-dangerous 
Mac Wright and Matt Dance looking in good touch 
before Wright was caught behind for 8. The Lightning 
needed someone to stand up and take the innings by 
the horns but just couldn’t find anyone in their lineup to 
do so until it was too late. 

A collapse of the Lindisfarne batting lineup was 
insurmountable and despite Jarrod Freeman chiming in 
at number 7 with a cameo of 40 off 51, it just wasn’t the 
Lightning’s day. Sharks quicks Milenko and Wisniewski 
worked well in tandem and proved to be the difference 
between the two sides with Wisniewski’s tight line 
bowling producing him an incredible 2-20 from his 
8 overs. However, it was Simon Milenko with a 4-25 from 
7 overs that earned SHSB the trophy and himself the 
Danny Buckingham Medal for Player of the Final. 

CTPL Twenty20 Competition Grand Final

With a place in the inaugural Fox Cricket National Premier 
T20 Championships on the line, both sides gave it their all 
and put on a fantastic show in what was the first time the 
two clubs had met in a first-grade Grand Final across all 
formats. The Demons won the toss and elected to chase, 
a decision which they have enjoyed success throughout 
the course of their T20 campaign. Openers Charlie Wakim 
and Mac Wright set a strong pace early and were cruising 
at 0/89 before a loose shot from skipper Wakim sent him 
packing for 48 after being caught by Kade Applebee off 
the bowling of Jack White.

The wicket of Wakim slowed the blistering Lightning run-
rate right down and it took a few overs for new batsmen 
Ben McDermott to find his feet with opener Wright. With 
the inclusion of Demon Robb Macmillan back into the 
attack, it was go time for the Lindisfarne duo with the pair 
taking 8 off his over. This then saw Tom Rogers back into 
the attack and with it 11 runs off the over.

The Lightning were back on track until Kade Applebee 
again got the ball in his hands, this time off the bowling 
of Ben Fraser to take the valuable wicket of McDermott 
for 29. The Lightning middle order tried to salvage the 
innings and bat around Mac Wright, who remained 
unbeaten on 67, but in the end were restricted to 
6/155 from their 20 overs. 

With the Demons needing 156 to win, at run-rate of 
7.8, they came out of the blocks firing thanks to some 
hard-hitting from Hurricanes teammates Caleb Jewell 
and Jake Doran. The pair put on a 100-run partnership 
before Doran fell for 61 off the bowling of Lindisfarne 
quick Tom Briscoe. Sydney Sixer Jordan Silk (17 not out) 
then joined Jewell at the crease finishing off the job in the 
18th over and guiding his side to an 8-wicket victory.

Captain Caleb Jewell’s dominant display of 75 with the 
willow crowned him Player of the Final in what was a 
fantastic finish to the Twenty20 season.

61Cricket Tasmania Annual Report 2018-1960 Cricket Tasmania Annual Report 2018-19



Men’s Second Grade Final

In the Second Grade Grand Final, Lindisfarne sent in the 
home side to bat in a display of confidence. The Knights, 
who finished the season in second place and were 
favourites to take out the Final, looked to be in trouble 
as openers Luke Doran (8) and Connor O’Brien (10) 
were back in the rooms early on, falling victim to some 
excellent bowling by Daniel Chapman and a run out by 
Declan Waddington respectively. 

The woes continued for the home side as Samuel Martyn 
was dismissed for a duck, again off the bowling of 
Chapman while Bryce Turnbull’s promising 35 off 135 
ground to a halt as he was caught by Daniel Morgan off 
the bowling of T McGann. However, the match winning 
innings of Joshua Henley, who smashed 141 off 250 
deliveries gave Kingborough the chance to pile on the 
runs, as Shane Holland hit an impressive 48 off 77 to 
leave the Knights 10/323. D Chapman (3/103) and A Marr 
(3/57) were the pick of the Lindisfarne bowlers, as was D 
Morgan (2/41) who’s 30 overs included 15 maidens.

Set a significant total to chase on the second day of 
play, Lindisfarne got off to a less than ideal start losing 
Kieran Gilbert cheaply for 9. Jed Steele put in a fantastic 
performance with the bat, belting 97 runs off only 104 
deliveries. However, his partners couldn’t manage to get 
going, Declan Waddington (10) and Jackson Grubb (5) 
both caught by Declan West off Bryce Turnbull and Shane 
Holland respectively. As Holland took the crucial wicket of 
Steele soon after, the rest of the Lightning’s batting line-
up soon fell away, reaching 228 runs before being bowled 
out. Shane Holland (4/83) and Declan West (4/57) were 
the standout performers with the ball for the Knights as 
they claimed the Premiership Cup.

Men’s Third Grade Final

Ferguson Park was home to the Detail First Premier 
League Third Grade Grand Final in a clash between 
sides that finished on equal points over the course of 
the season. Brighton won the toss and elected to bat first, 
though were off to a shaky start losing three wickets in 
quick succession within the first hour.

Ashton Arnold (2), Joshua Page (12) and Noah Holmes 
(0) were all out cheaply as Brighton were stuck on 
15 runs. The side struggled to put a solid partnership 
together as the Kingborough bowling attack shared the 
wickets around; Justin Direen (3/35), William Poland 
(2/21), Jake Hayers (2/31) and Samuel Oliver (2/39) all 
contributed to the demise of the Brighton batting line-up 
as they were all out for 163, off 71 overs.

In response Kingborough looked promising early with 
the bat, as George Mazengarb (29) and Blair Harrison (9) 
put on a solid 40 run partnership. However, both batsmen 
fell in quick succession to the bowling of Keegan Wylie 
and Joe Sorrentino respectively which triggered a middle 
order collapse for the Knights, Andrew Downton (4/28) 
ripping through the batting line-up with help from Jayden 
Wylie (2/25) and Keegan Wylie (2/19). Kingborough were 
knocked over for 115, Mazengarb and William Poland top 
scoring with 29 runs apiece leaving the Knights with some 
work to do to keep them in the game.

Brighton’s second innings was over quickly; while openers 
Joshua Page (0) and Ashton Arnold (6) were out early 
on Marcus Campopiano left no doubt as to the result, 
smashing 63 off 60 deliveries to lead his side to victory. 
Brighton finished their second innings 3/83 as the match 
concluded, leaving the side the winners of the Third 
Grade Premiership Cup.

Women’s Kookaburra Cup One-Day Competition

This season, the Kookaburra Cup was back following a 
successful return in the 2017-18 season. Based on the 
standings from 2017-18 the eight CTPL clubs were split 
into two pools of four. 

In the first round, 
University dismantled 
Lindisfarne hitting 
a staggering 0-400 
thanks to some hard 
hitting from Ashley 
Day (182*) and Sasha 
Moloney (145*). 
Lindisfarne lost early 
wickets and could 
never recover, being all 
out for 61. 

Kingborough also got 
off to a winning start 
defeating SHSB by 44 
runs at home. Beth 
Dodd was the best of the bowlers in a losing side taking 
4-20 off her 8 overs. For the victors, it was the bowling of 
Meg Harrison who produced incredible figures of 3-7 as well 
as Emily Divin who notched up a hard fought 34. 

In the other Round 1 match, New Town narrowly defeated 
Clarence away from home by 3 runs thanks to an all-round 
performance by Emily Mifsud who produced 71 with the bat 
and 4-23 with the ball. Emily’s performance was matched 
by Clarence star Emma Thompson who hit an incredible 
unbeaten 105 and took three crucial wickets. 

In Round 2, University travelled to Kangaroo Bay Oval to 
take on Clarence and it was again Emma Thompson who 
starred with the bat notching up another unbeaten 105, with 
Clarence posting 7-200 from their 40 overs. In response, 
University couldn’t get going with Thompson once again 
running rampant, claiming figures of 4-5. In the end, 
University came up 128 runs short. 

New Town played host to Lindisfarne with the visitors 
winning the toss and electing to bat first. New Town bowled 
tightly with Lawler (3-10) and Sullivan (3-9) both starring 
with the ball, restricting Lindisfarne to be all out for 67. In 
reply, New Town only lost one wicket, reaching the total in 
the 13 over with Phillips remaining 34 not out. 

In Pool B, Kingborough made light work of Glenorchy, 
defeating them by 114 runs. Emily Divin (43) and Brook 
Hepburn (49) were the stars for Kingborough who batted 
first and set a total of 194. In reply, Glenorchy could only 
manage 80 before being bowled out, Brooke Hepburn the 
spearhead with 3-18. 

In the match of the round, SHSB dispatched North Hobart 
by 7 wickets thanks to some fine batting by Alex Hartley 
(42) and Corinne Hall (84*). Stef Daffara was the best for the 
Demons notching 67 with the willow. 

In Round 3, University claimed a convincing nine-wicket win 
over New Town to finish top of the table and lock in a Grand 
Final. New Town won the toss and struggled from the outset 
against a rampant University bowling attack. Emily Mifsud 
(25) and Frances Sullivan (22) tried to post decent scores for 
the Bucks but it proved too much with the visitors bowled all 
out for 149. In reply, it was again Ashley Day (82*) and Sasha 
Moloney (47*) who reached the target and claimed victory 
in the 17th over. 

In Pool B, Kingborough continued their unbeaten streak 
in the Kookaburra Cup, making a powerful statement 
about their finals intentions at Kingston Twin Ovals. 

North Hobart won 
the toss and chose to 
bat first, getting to a 
strong start as opener 
Stefanie Daffara put 
on a steadfast 38, with 
the remainder of the 
top and middle order 
posting minor scores. 
However, a bottom 
order collapse at the 
hands of some superb 
bowling by Nikki Carter 
(4/23) and Lauren J 
Hepburn 3/23) saw 
North Hobart all out for 
158, unable to bat out 
their overs. 

Kingborough came out of the sheds swinging, Emily 
Divin smashing an unbeaten 70 from 86 to lead the 
charge. Strong performances from Brooke Hepburn 
(29) and Bonnie H Davies (23) allowed the home side 
to chase down the target with over ten overs to spare, 
guaranteeing them a Grand Final appearance. 

At KGV Oval, South Hobart/Sandy Bay took down 
Glenorchy on the back of some sensational batting by 
Corinne Hall and Beth Dodd, whose unbeaten partnership 
of 328 proved to be the batting performance of the 
season thus far. Hall’s 157 from 104 deliveries, and 
Dodd’s 125 off 99 was a record breaking performance 
and annihilated any hope of a Glenorchy victory as the 
Sharks cruised to a massive score of 2/362. Glenorchy 
faced an uphill battle from the outset, dominant bowling 
performances by Beth Dodd (3/10) and Linsey Da Costa 
(3/5) knocking over the home side for 66 off 18 overs. 

It was the Bonnie Davies show on Saturday as the 
Kingborough captain produced a stunning performance 
to guide her side to a 10-wicket Grand Final win over 
University. The Knights day started off in the right fashion, 
winning the toss and sending the students into bat. The 
formidable partnership of Ashley Day and Sasha Moloney 
looked good from on the onset and at 0/28 inside 4 overs 
were cruising until Leah Wierenga got the breakthrough 
and upended Moloney stumps for 13. Louise Maddock 
then joined Ash Day at the crease and the par looked solid 
adding another 19 before Weirenga again struck taking 
Day’s wicket for 25.

Maddock was then joined by Maddie Blazely and the par 
looked in phenomenal touch hitting to all parts and adding 
a further 44 before a collapse of sorts hit with the inclusion 
of Lauren Hepburn into the attack bringing wickets. 
Hepburn picked up the prized scalps of both batsmen and 
from this it was all downhill for University losing their last 7 
wickets for 41 runs to finish all out for 150.

It was then Bonnie Davies and Brooke Hepburn who 
starred from the very first ball to put on an unbeaten 
opening partnership and chase down the 151-run total in 
amazingly just the 24th over with Davis finishing on 67 
and Hepburn on 57.

Remaining CTPL Premierships
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Boys U15 Twenty20 Final

A solid knock from Bailey Jenkins and some fantastic 
bowling by Amy Smith and Benjamin Strong led New 
Town to victory over Clarence in the 2018-19 Boys 
Under 15 Twenty20 Final.

With New Town winning the toss and electing to bat, the 
Bucks looked strong early with openers Keegan Ryan and 
Bailey Jenkins blasting to all parts. Inside 5 overs, New 
Town were 0/41 and cruising before Josh Curtis caught 
Keegan Ryan in front for 25. This bought captain Jesse 
Wilmott to the crease with the pair adding 28 runs before 
Wilmott was run out for 8.

This brought newly crowned Women’s Tigers debutant 
Amy Smith to the crease. Bailey Jenkins then took 
matters into his own hands producing a fine half century 
before being caught by Clarence fielder Rogan Dobie off 
the bowling of Josh Curtis for 56. Bucks keeper Brayden 
Butler then took to the Clarence bowlers who blasted 
12 runs in the final over to get New Town 3/139 from 
their allotted 20 overs.

Clarence then set out to chase down the total set by 
New Town and looked strong early with openers Ozzie 
Warmbrunn and Patrick Kenna going at a consistent 
pace and run rate. Warmbrunn made it to 16 before 
being caught off the bowling of Amy Smith. This brought 
Brodie Gluskie in and with Kenna by his side, the pair 
added another 12 runs before Amy Smith again struck 
taking Gluskie’s wicket for 12. This started a Clarence 
batting collapse.

The Clarence middle order attempted to build 
partnerships to take down the total but, in the end, their 
running between wickets was what let them down losing 
their last 4 wickets all to run outs with the Roos finishing 
all out for 108 with 3 balls to spare in the innings. 

Boys U15 One-Day Final

The New Town Bucks faced off against the Kingborough 
Knights in the U/15 Boys One-Day Grand Final

Kingborough made the trip to Clare Street Oval to face 
a New Town side that were in fine form and looking to 
make it two from two after claiming the T20 Grand Final 
earlier in the season. Winning the toss and electing to bat 
first, the Knights struggled to put the runs on the board 
with James Scott the top scorer with 35. The New Town 
bowling attack looked deadly all throughout the innings, 
Willmott (2/17), Britten (2/18) and Smith (2/24) all 
sharing in the spoils as the visiting side put up a total of 
8/131 from their overs. All assumed that the Bucks would 
readily chase down the required runs, however a middle 
order collapse ended all hopes of victory. 

Keegan Ryan stayed strong at the top of the order, 
knocking 40 and top scoring for the Bucks, however 
the Knights claimed several wickets in quick succession 
to sap the confidence out of the home side. New Town 
seemed in shock as some desperate batting on their 
behalf and savage bowling by the Knights brought their 
batsmen unstuck. The Bucks limped to 74 runs as they 
were torn apart by some superb bowling by Kingborough 
bowlers Scott (3/12) and Lawless (3/17), and surely felt 
as though a great opportunity had slipped through their 
fingers. In an upset win, Kingborough managed to pull a 
victory out of the bag thanks to their prowess with the 
ball and fighting spirit. 

Boys U17 Final

The Detail First Premier League Boys U/17’s Grand 
Final was as close a game as you can ask for, some 
stellar performances with bat and ball from both sides 
making for an unforgettable match. Clarence took on 
Kingborough at Kangaroo Bay Oval, the home side 
winning the toss and sending the Knights in to bat first. 
The game looked to be well in the hands of Kingborough, 
as opener Mitchell Owen took to the Roos bowling 
attack with an incredible innings.

While captain Aidan Donovan fell for 5 off 40, Mitchell 
Owen remained at the crease to hit an impressive 
century, 138 off 180 deliveries. His partner throughout this 
magnificent knock, Jacob Glover, also put in a fantastic 
performance with the bat with 60 off 131. However, as 
both crucial wickets fell off the bowling of Colby Whitelaw 
(1/12) and Samuel Banks (3/44) in quick succession, the 
remainder of the batting line-up was cleaned up very 
quickly. None of the remaining seven batsmen were able 
to reach double figures as Lachlan Borsboom (3/31) 
and Ryan Borsboom (2/33) tore through the tail order, 
Kingborough bowled out for 250.

Clarence were in trouble early on in their innings, Tom 
Kemp out for 7 off the bowling of Jacob Glover. Archie 
Hurd (21 off 113), Thomas Vaughan (37 off 126) and 
Samuel Banks (27 off 55) all spent decent time at the 
crease slowly ticking over the total for the Roos, while 
captain Lachlan Borsboom (85) put in a fantastic effort, 
remaining at the crease as his partners fell around 
him. In what became a truly tight contest, Clarence 
managed to get within six runs of victory before losing 
Ryan Borsboom for 10. Needing one wicket to win, 
Kingborough couldn’t get past Connor Woolley, as he 
smashed a four to lead Clarence to victory. Mitchell 
Owen (3/62), Jacob Glover (2/53), Jack Ross (2/20) and 
Matthew Direen (2/20) all put in great efforts with the ball 
for Kingborough as they fell just short of victory, Clarence 
clinching the Premiership Cup in the tightest of victories. 

Girls U17 Final

North Hobart faced New Town in the Girl’s Under 17’s 
Grand Final at the TCA Ground.

Winning the toss and electing to bat first, the Demons 
looked in trouble early losing opener Jayde Davis on her 
third ball. The Demons middle order struggled to make an 
impact throughout the innings, Maya Armstrong the pick 
of the incoming batsmen with 17. Some quality bowling on 
the part of New Town by Kasey Gray (2/39) and Sophie 
Reid (2/14) ensured that the North Hobart batting line-up 
couldn't post an unreachable total. 

However, the stalwart of the Demons side Ella Marsh 
powered through the 20 overs, remaining at the crease 
throughout the entire innings and smashing an unbeaten 
54* off 31 deliveries. North Hobart finished with a 
respectable total of 7/152 and would have felt confident 
in their ability to defend the total. 

New Town came out swinging in their innings, as 
Cassandra McLoughlin (18) wasted little time in getting 
the runs on the board. The loss of Hannah Wilson for a 
duck put the pressure back on the Bucks before Kasey 
Gray (38*) and Matilda Waddington (31) took to the 
crease to put on a match winning partnership, smashing 
7 and 5 fours respectively off their 34 and 26 balls faced. 
Kasey Gray retired not out as Jezrelle Gray took the 
crease, continuing the Bucks mighty form with the bat 
with an unbeaten 25*. Kendylle Byers was the only bowler 
to make an impact for the Demons with figures of 2/24, as 
New Town raced to the target runs with 10 balls to spare. 
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U18 Vacation Competition Final

An unbeaten knock by Hamish James and some 
fantastic bowling by Andrew Smith led New Town 
to victory over Clarence in the 2018-2019 Under 18 
Vacation Competition Final.

With New Town winning the toss and sending in 
Clarence to bat, things looked bad for the Roos early on 
after losing four wickets in the opening twenty minutes. 
Andrew Smith starred for the New Town bowling attack 
and looked to close the Roos innings early, taking 3 
wickets for 12 off 8 overs, including 4 maidens. However, 
some stalwart batting and impressive patience by Samuel 
Banks, who remained at the crease for nearly two hours 
to post an unbeaten total of 80 from 103 deliveries kept 
the hopes of Clarence alive.

Partners Thomas Vaughan (17) and Ryan Borsboom (18) 
stayed in the match long enough for Banks to get to work, 
hitting five fours in his hard-fought innings before falling 
to the bowling of Hamish James, who ended his spell with 
figures of 2/39. Clarence managed to bat out their 40 
overs, finishing with a credible 8/142 and putting them in 
the hunt for a Grand Final victory.

While the New Town bowling attack looked dangerous 
all day, the Bucks batsmen got off to a less than 
desirable start, Chrisenthus Kahatapitikanamalage for 
2 (run out), Jayden Vince for 3 and Jye Menzie for 0 
(Ryan Borsboom). Things looked even worse when 
Sam Wright fell to Lachlan Borsboom for 19, after staying 
at the crease for 39 balls. Ryan Borsboom starred for 
Clarence with the ball, ending with figures of 3/11 off 8 
overs, including 3 maidens.

But it was the Bucks middle order who stood firm, 
forming several solid partnerships with contributions 
from many. Hamish James knocked an unbeaten 44 
from 78 deliveries, joined at the crease at various stages 
by William Sartori (11), Jaythan Poulson (31) and Joshua 
Jones (21), who smashed two sixes off his 14 balls faced 
to clinch what was a very close match. New Town came 
away from the match with a final score of 6/143, with 
1.4 overs to spare in the innings.

40 & Over Competition Final

The Detail First CTPL 40s and Over competition was 
once again contested this season with five CTPL clubs 
participating over four rounds and at the end of the 
regular season, Kingborough (13) finished atop of the 
ladder, followed closely by University (12), Clarence (4), 
Glenorchy (4) and South Hobart Sandy Bay (0).

With several former club stars on display for both teams, 
Kingborough and University clashed in the Grand Final 
at Kingston Twin Ovals.

Winning the toss and electing to bat first, the Knights 
looked shaky early as they lost multiple wickets early 
on, Tim Scott top scoring for the top seven batsmen 
with 13 runs. Damon Marsh (2/16), Nick Paine (2/19) and 
Graeme Cunningham starred for University with the 
ball and looked to have the home side out very cheaply 
before Paul Vincent and Warwick Ashlin took the crease. 
Smashing a quick 40* from 21, Vincent was aided by 
partner Ashlin (27) as they weathered the storm and 
allowed Kingborough to post a respectable total of 
9/138 off their 20 overs.

In response, the University batsmen came out swinging, 
looking to knock over the required total as quickly 
as possible. Damien Wright (37*), Gus Nandan (25) 
and Graeme Cunningham (38*) took to the Knights 
smashing their bowlers all over the park before a 
middle order collapse allowed Kingborough to take 
control of the match. 

The University batsmen were desperate as Josh Bean, 
Shaun Clifford and Benjamin Harrison were all run out 
trying to get their side across the line, falling 6 runs 
short of victory in the end as Kingborough ran away 
with the win.

CTPL First Grade Past Premiers 

SEASON PREMIERS CAPTAIN RUNNERS UP PLAYER OF THE FINAL

1954-55 Glenorchy E Rodwell North Hobart Bert Brownlow (NH)
1955-56 Glenorchy E Rodwell New Town Doug Walton (Glen)
1956-57 Glenorchy E Rodwell North Hobart Bill Murray (Glen)
1957-58 Kingborough K Schmidt Glenorchy Trevor Gordon (King)
1958-59 South Hobart J Murfett Glenorchy Robin Omond (SH)
1959-60 South Hobart J Murfett Glenorchy Ross Dufty (SH)
1960-61 Glenorchy L Smith North Hobart Doug Walton (Glen)
1961-62 New Town M Cashion Glenorchy Robert Doran (NT)
1962-63 Glenorchy E Rodwell North Hobart Emerson Rodwell (Glen)
1963-64 New Town M Cashion Glenorchy Len Maddocks (NT)
1964-65 New Town M Cashion North Hobart Brian Eade (NT)
1965-55 Sandy Bay B Patterson North Hobart (Drawn) Gary Brakey (NH)
1966-67 New Town L Maddocks North Hobart Ron Direen (NT)
1967-68 New Town L Maddocks University Brian Eade (NT)
1968-69 New Town L Maddocks Sandy Bay Peter Fyfe (NT)
1969-70 New Town B Eade Clarence (Washout) Leon Braslin (NT)
1970-71 North Hobart B Eade South Hobart Les Appleton (NH)
1971-72 Kingborough M Elliott New Town Michael Elliott (King)
1972-73 North Hobart A Benneworth Sandy Bay Tony Beneworth (NH)
1973-74 Glenorchy B Richardson Sandy Bay Mike Hyland (Glen)
1974-75 University G Mansfield Clarence Ray Brown (Uni)
1975-76 Glenorchy K Cobern New Town Michael Rodwell (Glen)
1976-77 Glenorchy B Neill South Hobart (No Play) –
1977-78 University M Norman Clarence Ray Brown (Uni)
1978-79 North Hobart D Hughes Sandy Bay David Smith (SB)
1979-80 South Hobart C Tully Clarence (Washout) Kevin Treweek (SH)
1980-81 Sandy Bay B Neill South Hobart Steve Allie (SH)
1981-82 Clarence R Hyatt Glenorchy (No Play) –
1982-83 Clarence R Hyatt Glenorchy Ian Beven (Clar)
1983-84 Clarence R Hyatt Glenorchy (Washout) Lindsay Davidson (Glen)
1984-85 Clarence R Hyatt North Hobart Ian Huck (Clar)
1985-86 University M Street Clarence Ray Brown (Uni)
1986-87 University M Street Clarence Eldine Baptiste (Uni)
1987-88 Clarence B Davison New Town Roger Woolley (Clar)
1988-89 Clarence M Tame Glenorchy Greg Campbell (Clar)
1989-90 Clarence G Shipperd Brighton Peter McPhee (Clar)
1990-91 Clarence P Schofield Glenorchy Mark Colegrave (Clar)
1991-92 North Hobart M Taylor Clarence Joe Holyman (NH)
1992-93 North Hobart D Green University Michael Di Venuto (NH)
1993-94 North Hobart D Green Glenorchy Chris O’Neill (NH)
1994-95 Clarence R Woolley North Hobart Roger Woolley (Clar)
1995-96 North Hobart A Judd Clarence Myles Harry (NH)
1996-97 Kingborough P Di Venuto Clarence Michael Di Venuto (King)
1997-98 Kingborough P Di Venuto Clarence Gerard Denton (King)
1998-99 North Hobart D Marsh University Ben Donaldson (NH)
1999-00 University B Thomas Kingborough Martin Brown (Uni)
2000-01 Lindisfarne R Allanby SHSB Shane Watson (Lind)
2001-02 North Hobart M Harry Kingborough Adam Griffith (NH)
2002-03 Clarence A Dykes Glenorchy Ben Harris (Clar)
2003-04 Clarence A Dykes Glenorchy Ben Harris (Clar)
2004-05 North Hobart A Griffith Clarence Jon Dakin (NH)
2005-06 North Hobart A Griffith Clarence Sean Clingeleffer (NH)
2006-07 Kingborough A French SHSB David Dawson (King)
2007-08 Kingborough A French Clarence David Dawson (King)
2008-09 University G Cunningham North Hobart James Faulkner (Uni)
2009-10 North Hobart M Dighton University Rhys Owen (NH)
2010-11 Lindisfarne B. Drew Clarence Brendan Drew (Lind)
2011-12 Clarence S Tubb Kingborough Scott Kremerskothen (Clar)
2012-13 Glenorchy B Geeves SHSB Henry Terry (Glen)
2013-14 Glenorchy B Geeves SHSB Luke Butterworth (Glen)
2014-15 Kingborough A. Maher University Jackson Bird (King)
2015-16 SHSB J. Smith Kingborough George Bailey (SHSB)
2016-17 SHSB S. Willis North Hobart Alex Doolan (SHSB)
2017-18 Clarence H. Allanby North Hobart Daniel Salpietro (Clarence)
2018-19 Lindisfarne M. Wilkie Clarence Ben McDermott (Lindisfarne)
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CTPL Women’s Past Premiers

SEASON PREMIERS CAPTAIN RUNNERS UP PLAYER OF THE FINAL

2009-10 Clarence L. Walker North Hobart Washout
2010-11 North Hobart B. Page University Belinda Page (NH)
2011-12 Kingborough K. Coppleman Lindisfarne Sasha Moloney (King)
2012-13 Kingborough K. Coppleman North Hobart Sasha Moloney (King)
2013-14 North Hobart B. Page Kingborough Sarah Birch (NH)
2014-15 North Hobart B. Page New Town Veronica Pyke (NH)
2015-16 North Hobart B. Page New Town Belinda Page (NH)
2016-17 North Hobart B. Page Clarence Veronica Pyke (NH)

2017-18 Kingborough (T20)
North Hobart (OD)

E. Divin
H. Short

SHSB
SHSB

Emily Divin (King)
Stef Daffara (NG)

2018-19 North Hobart (T20)
Kingborough (OD)

H. Short
B. Davies

Clarence
University

Hannah Short (NH)
Bonnie Davies (King)

CTPL Past Premiers

SEASON 2ND GRADE 3RD GRADE 4TH GRADE U18’S / U17’S U15’S GIRL’S U17’S

1961-62 University South Hobart – – – –
1962-63 Clarence North Hobart – – – –
1963-64 Clarence New Town – – – –
1964-65 Glenorchy Clarence – – – –
1965-66 Kingborough New Norfolk – – – –
1966-67 Glenorchy New Norfolk – – – –
1967-68 Glenorchy Glenorchy – – – –
1968-69 Glenorchy Glenorchy – – – –
1969-70 Glenorchy Glenorchy – – – –
1970-71 Clarence Glenorchy – – – –
1971-72 Kingborough New Town – – – –
1972-73 Glenorchy New Town – – – –
1973-74 Sandy Bay Glenorchy – – – –
1974-75 Sandy Bay Glenrochy – – – –
1975-76 Glenorchy Sandy Bay – – – –
1976-77 University Sandy Bay – – – –
1977-78 Glenorchy Glenorchy – – – –
1978-79 Glenorchy Kingborough – – – –
1979-80 Glenorchy Kingborough – – – –
1980-81 Clarence Glenorchy – – – –
1981-82 Kingborough Glenorchy – – – –
1982-83 Clarence North Hobart – – – –
1983-84 Glenorchy Glenorchy – – – –
1984-85 Glenorchy Clarence – – – –
1985-86 Clarence Glenorchy – – – –
1986-87 Clarence Clarence – – – –
1987-88 Clarence Clarence North Hobart – – –
1988-89 Clarence Clarence Clarence – – –
1989-90 Clarence Glenorchy SHSB – – –
1990-91 Glenorchy Clarence Clarence – – –
1991-92 North Hobart Glenorchy Glenorchy – – –
1992-93 University Glenorchy New Town – – –
1993-94 University North Hobart – Kingborough – –
1994-95 SHSB SHSB – New Town – –
1995-96 Lindisfarne Glenorchy – Clarence – –
1996-97 Clarence Lindisfarne – North Hobart – –
1998-99 North Hobart Kingborough – Kingborough Glenorchy –
1999-00 University Kingborough Kingborough University North Hobart –
2000-01 Kingborough Clarence Glenorchy Clarence North Hobart –
2001-02 SHSB Clarence Clarence Clarence Lindisfarne –
2002-03 Clarence Lindisfarne L’farne/St Virgil’s Glenorchy Glenorchy –
2003-04 Clarence SHSB – Kingborough Kingborough –
2004-05 Clarence Lindisfarne – Kingborough Kingborough –
2005-06 Clarence Lindisfarne – Clarence Clarence –
2006-07 North Hobart North Hobart – Lindisfarne Lindisfarne –
2007-08 SHSB Kingborough – Glenorchy Glenorchy –
2008-09 Kingborough SHSB – Clarence Clarence –
2009-10 University Lindisfarne – Clarence Clarence –
2010-11 Kingborough Lindisfarne – Clarence New Town –
2011-12 Clarence Clarence – North Hobart SHSB –
2012-13 Glenorchy Lindisfarne – New Town North Hobart –
2013-14 SHSB Glenorchy – Clarence Kingborough –
2014-15 Glenorchy SHSB – Kingborough Kingborough New Town
2015-16 SHSB Kingborough – Kingborough North Hobart Clarence
2016-17 SHSB Kingborough – North Hobart North Hobart New Town

2017-18 Kingborough Clarence – Kingborough OD Kingborough
T20 New Town North Hobart

2018-19 Kingborough Brighton – Clarence OD Kingborough
T20 New Town New Town

CTPL Hall of Fame Inductees 2018-19

Lyndon J. Stevens� UMPIRE 1965-66 to 1980-81 

Jim Stevens was the best and most decorated umpire in the TCA grade competition from 1965 until 
his retirement in 1981, reflected by his appointment in a remarkable twelve 1st Grade Grand Finals 
during his fifteen years officiating in Tasmania. Over that period, he umpired more than 150 1st 
Grade matches.

His first Grand Final, in his first season following his transfer from Victoria, was the 1965-66 decider 
standing with Fred Hay where Sandy Bay held on for a draw against North Hobart to claim the premiership, and last was in 
1980-81 standing with Alan Jones when Sandy Bay defeated South Hobart by 25 runs.

He umpired at First Class level, stood in the famous Gillette Cup Final at the TCA Ground in 1979, won by Tasmania, and, 
also in 1979, became the first Tasmanian umpire to stand in a One-Day International in a match between Australia and 
England in Sydney. 

Raymond K. Brown

CLUB CAREER SPAN MTCHS RUNS HS AVG WKTS BEST AVG 5WI

University 1970-71 to 1988-89 241 3,413 79 19.39 495 6/31 17.89 19

Beginning his 1st Grade career with University in 1971, Ray Brown became a renowned finals 
specialist over 241 games. This was first demonstrated in the 1974-75 season, when in the Grand 
Final against Clarence, which University won by an innings, he scored 33 and claimed 4/9 and 3/30 

to cap off a season total of 43 wickets @ 14.12.

Further success came in 1977-78 in what his most dominant all-round season was possibly. From 15 games he took 38 
wickets @ 13.55 including four 5WI, and scored 410 runs @ 41.00, culminating in another Grand Final win over Clarence by 
119 runs when he scored 74 and followed up by 5/24 with the ball.

In 1980-81 he was voted Player of the Year, becoming University’s first ever recipient of the award later named the Emerson 
Rodwell Medal, after taking 34 wickets @ 18.79.

Grand Final success came again in 1985-86 winning his third Player of the Final award after claiming a career best 6/31 in 
University’s comfortable win. This success was repeated the following year, also against Clarence.

His contribution to the competition continued off-field post-player career, becoming Chairman of the Grade Cricket 
Committee (later Premier League Committee) in 2003 and continuing until 2007, and remaining a Committee member for a 
further decade.

Mark D. Colegrave

CLUB CAREER SPAN MTCHS RUNS HS AVG WKTS BEST AVG 5WI

Clarence 1986-87 to 2008-09 296 2,079 100* 14.24 744 9/42 17.13 45

A tall fast swing bowler with a smooth action, Mark Colegrave was the dominant bowler in the 
competition during his era.

After debuting as an eighteen-year-old late in the 1986-87 season, he went on to play 296 games and claim 744 wickets, 
before retiring 23 seasons later as a two-time Player of the Year (Emerson Rodwell Medallist).

He was a key member of Clarence’s success throughout his career, highlighted by the dominant teams winning four 
premierships in a row from 1987-88 to 1990-91, the famous Grand Final of 1994-95, and the star-studded teams of 2002-03 
and 2003-04.

In the 1990-91 win over Glenorchy, he was named Player of the Final after scoring 100 not out having batted as the night 
watchman at number three. He also took 2/35 with the ball.

His most prolific season was 1999-00 taking 71 wickets @ 13.92 including seven five-wicket innings. Two seasons earlier in 
1997-98 he was voted Player of the Year claiming 68 wickets @ 17.78, and late in the season took career best figures of 9/42 
against Lindisfarne. He became a multiple Player of the Year recipient in 2003-04, tieing with Graeme Cunningham, after 
taking 35 wickets at the miserly average of 10.51. 
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Community Cricket
Ben Smith General Manager

A Sport for All – Community Cricket Awards

Australian cricket’s community heroes for season 2018-19 
have been honoured at Cricket Australia’s A Sport for All Awards 
in Melbourne on May 23. 

National awards in twelve categories recognised members of 
the cricket community from around the nation who demonstrated 
excellence in strengthening clubs, growing participation and 
building community through diversity and education. 

Tasmanian doctor and president of the University of Tasmania 
Cricket Club, Charles Rose took out the coveted Volunteer of the 
Year Award.

Charles worked tirelessly to create a culture of inclusion at his club 
and throughout the greater community, hosting the ‘Don’t Give 
Up, Give Back’ Cup – a cricket tournament for people seeking 
asylum, refugees and international students from south Asia.

Former Australian fast bowler, Glenn McGrath was on hand to 
inspire the gathering of volunteers from across the country and 
to present awards. 

The Tasmanian Winners of each section were: 

Community Cricket Club of the Year St Annes CC

Cricket Association of the Year  
Western Tasmania Cricket Association

Premier Cricket Club of the Year Clarence DCC

Initiative of the Year SCA Women’s Competition

Junior Cricket Program of the Year  
SHSB CC Woolworths Cricket Blast

Partner Organisation of the Year Burnie City Council

Community Facility Project of the Year  
Shoobridge Park, Glenorchy City Council  
and Glenorchy Cricket Club

Ambassador of the Year Susan Underwood, Devonport CC

Volunteer of the Year Charles Rose, University of Tasmania CC

Junior Cricket Champion of the Year  
Paul Guinane, North Hobart CC

Community Match Official of the Year  
Gilbert van der Steege 
Tasmanian Cricket Umpires and Scorers Association

Community Coach of the Year Suzanne Gale, Burnie CC

National Finalists from Tasmania: 

Volunteer of the Year  
Charles Rose, University of Tasmania CC

Community Facility Project of the Year  
Shoobridge Park, Glenorchy City Council 
and Glenorchy Cricket Club

The Community 
Cricket team at Cricket 
Tasmania is committed 
to the strategic goal for 
Cricket to be Tasmania’s 
Favourite Sport and a 
Sport for All Tasmanians. 

We strive to lead and serve the community 
to unite and inspire through Cricket. 

The department continues to strive to deliver 
high quality experiences for all Tasmanians, 
with the aim of linking participants to a 
variety of playing options whilst encouraging 
progress along the pathway.

Woolworths Cricket Blast

The revamped entry level programs through the new partnership with Woolworths were a 
key feature of the 2018-19 season. Following extensive market research and feedback from 
community cricket stakeholders across the country, the updated programs better reflect 
the vital role that community clubs and associations play in the delivery of these programs 
and further strengthen the junior cricket pathway.

School Programs

The Woolworths Cricket Blast T20 Schools Cup program 
gives schools and students the opportunity to engage in 
the game in the style of the Big Bash League. Boys and 
girls in grade 3-6 take part in small-sided action-packed 
games where the ball is always in play and every player 
has their moment in the spotlight.

The program plays a vital role linking schools participating 
in the Woolworths Cricket Blast skill development 
programs with the opportunity to put these skills to 
the test in game situations. This season 4,000 students 
competed for their school in local events and regional 
finals with winners progressing through to the State 
final, which was played at University of Tasmania 
Stadium in Launceston.

The Woolworths Blast School Cup - state finals were 
played on UTAS Stadium on Friday 30 November with 
24 teams competing across three divisions.

The winners were:

Grade 5/6 Boys	 Launceston Church Grammar School
Grade 5/6 Girls	 Corpus Christi
Grade 7/8 Girls	 Mt Carmel College

This season saw ongoing development of the Woolworths 
Cricket Blast skills program with students at schools all 
over the state taking part. This program is a curriculum 
aligned unit of cricket designed to encourage and assist 
Health and Physical Education teachers to incorporate 
cricket into their delivery of the curriculum.

The school-based program also provided an excellent 
link to community Woolworths Blast centres with students 
encouraged to join their local centre and play Woolworth 
Master Blaster matches in a club environment. The 
program provides an ideal match format for developing 
cricketers and allows young players the time and space to 
develop their skills in preparation for junior club cricket. 
The Woolworths Master Blaster centres allowed teams 
from clubs all over the state to begin their journey in the 
game and provides an ideal bridging and development 
program between Woolworths Junior Blast and junior 
club cricket combined with the fun, excitement, sounds 
and family friendly timeframes of the Big Bash League.

Charles Rose
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Women’s Club Cricket

In 2018-19 the Kookaburra Southern Cricket Association 
expanded its successful women’s competition with 7 
teams competing throughout the year. The competition 
featured a game format that ensured every player was 
involved in every match, every week and was extremely 
popular with the participants.

The Cricket North West women’s competition also 
expanded with the introduction of a 2nd division 
featuring modified games and a relaxed environment 
creating an ideal landscape for players exploring 
cricket for the first time.

The Club based competitions are being supported by 
increasing school involvement with high school girls’ 
competitions being developed and expanding in each 
region. These competitions provide a relaxed and social 
introduction to cricket and aim to inspire girls to take their 
game to a new level. These were supported by regular 
visits from Roar and Hurricanes WBBL players.

Facilities

The National Community Facilities Funding Scheme, 
with support from Cricket Tasmania’s grassroots 
funding program, saw support provided for a range of 
community facility developments targeted at facilitating 
participation growth. The program engages funding from 
Cricket Australia, Cricket Tasmania and other supporting 
partners such as local & state governments to ensure 
community facilities can meet the demand of ongoing 
participation growth. This season, projects were funded 
at the Scamander Cricket Club, Churchill Park Recreation 
Ground, Shoobridge Park, TCA Ground, KGV Oval and 
Launceston Grammar School.

Australian Cricket 
Infrastructure Fund (ACIF)

Cricket Tasmania received 15 completed applications 
for a total value of over $330,000 for the $237,000 
of funding available with a range requests from Turf & 
Synthetic centre and practice wickets, change room 
upgrades, lighting, scoreboards and grandstands.

11 of the projects (detailed below) received 
funding from the ACIF with the total value of the 
projects worth $4.4 million upon completion.

Northern Tasmania

�� Female friendly improvements to  
NTCA Ground changerooms and facilities.

�� Devonport Oval indoor  
training facility upgrades.

�� Stanley Recreation indoor  
cricket net development.

�� Installation of turf practice wickets  
at Invermay Park.

�� Centre wicket redevelopment  
at Westbury Recreation Ground.

�� Expansion of centre pitch block  
at UCI Oval, Ulverstone.

�� Expansion of centre pitch block  
at Latrobe Recreation Ground.

Southern Tasmania

�� University Oval pavilion redevelopment.

�� Synthetic pitch replacements at  
Boyer Oval Reserve and  
Tynwald Park Reserve.

�� Synthetic pitch replacement  
at Abbotsfield Park.

�� Synthetic pitch replacement  
at Kingston Beach Oval.

Growing Cricket for Girls –  
Funding and new competitions

The Growing Cricket for Girls funding scheme continued 
to support the growth and development of junior girls 
teams in 2018-19. Grants supported associations, clubs 
and schools developing new teams and competitions 
in Hobart, Launceston and the North West. As the age 
groups expand the range of competitions and pathway 
progressions continues to develop to ensure girls have 
every opportunity to play and enjoy cricket and pursue 
the game to their full potential.

Overall, 42,267 Tasmanians 
participated in cricket programs 

during the 2018-19 season. 
This included over 14,000 

female participants including 
over 3,000 in regular school 

& club competitions.
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Indigenous Cricket

Indigenous Cricket & National Indigenous Cricket Championships (NICC)

The Tasmanian team at this year’s championships was 
once again focussed on emerging talented young 
cricketers with Tasmanian Underage representative 
players Rhys & Liam Ward, Jackson Clifford, Blake 
Sculthorpe and Brodie Hayes.

In the female competition three Tasmania players 
represented Victoria and NT (Emma Manix-Geeves, 
Tayla Wigg – Victoria & Hannah Wilson - NT) with 
Emma Manix-Geeves having an outstanding tournament 
to be selected in the Black Caps and finished the 
week as the Player of the Tournament. Taylor Wigg 
(Burnie CC) won the fielding award for her wicket-
keeping performance and was also selected in the 
Black caps team.

The NICC was again staged in Alice Springs and 
Tasmania’s team coached by Paul Collins & Guy Grey 
and captained by Kingborough’s Rhys Ward.

The team finished the tournament in 4th place losing a 
semi-final against eventual winners NSW. Previously they 
had recorded three wins (WA, SA, and NT) and three 
losses (NSW, QLD & narrowly to Victoria) in the T20 
format. Unfortunately, due to the unavailability of Traeger 
Park, no 50-over games were feasible in the time-frame.

Callan Morse was an excellent player for Tasmania 
opening the batting and excelling in the field and 
was recognised with selection in the Black Caps team 
of the tournament.

Tasmania’s Male Indigenous player of the Year was Josh 
Barry for his strong all-round performance during the 
NICC carnival, whilst the team overall was also recognised 
for its contribution to the Community with their ongoing 
support and engagement with the Community Divisions 
of the competition. This process is led by Guy Grey whose 
contribution as volunteer for Tasmanian Indigenous 
cricket has been significant over 15 or more seasons.

The Hurricanes Indigenous Academy played a series of 
matches against the Sydney Thunder in Latrobe with 
the Hurricanes winning the men’s matches 2-1, whilst 
Sydney Thunder won the women’s matches 2-0 meaning 
Sydney Thunder won on overall aggregate. The exchange 
featured cultural components with a welcome ceremony 
conducted by the Devonport branch of the Tasmanian 
Aboriginal Council.

Thank you to Kartanya Maynard for her Welcome to 
Country performing a ceremony prior to the Hurricanes 
first home BBL match.

The Captain’s Challenge

This fundamental motor skills program aligns directly with the school curriculum and gives classroom teachers the 
opportunity to develop basic ball skills in a fun engaging program indoors or out whether there is rain, hail or shine.

Woolworths Cricket Blast Program

Over 70 volunteer coordinators from different clubs, schools and communities committed themselves to deliver a 
Woolworths Cricket Blast program, ensuring Tasmanian youngsters had a great first experience in the game. The program 
focusses on fun, and developing a skill base through games in preparation for further engagement through the fun and 
excitement of Woolworths Master Blaster matches.

Woolworths Cricket Blast Master Blaster

The Woolworths Master Blaster program continues to be a significant step in the Junior Cricket Pathway. Kids aged 7-11 
took part in the program, getting the opportunity to be their own Big Bash League Star on their local oval with their friends.

Woolworths Cricket Blast School Ambassadors program

The School Ambassador Program continues to serve as a strong link to introduce kids across the state to cricket. This year 
saw schools across the state engage with the program. The School Ambassadors were thanked, celebrated and recognised 
at two functions – one at UTAS Stadium and one at Blundstone Arena during Hurricanes matches.

Hurricanes Holiday Camps and Entry Level Programs

During the Summer School holidays, we offered Holiday Camps and Entry Level Programs in all 3 regions providing an 
opportunity for kids to continue to enjoy their cricket and engage with the Hurricanes throughout their school holidays.

School and Entry Level Programs

Super Clinics

Following matches in Launceston the 
Hurricanes Men’s players hosted super clinics 
for hundreds of excited kids in Launceston 
and Latrobe. Combining skills, coaching 
and fun activities with autograph and photo 
sessions proved a hit and will no doubt help 
inspire the next generation of Hurricanes 
players and fans.
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National Cricket Inclusion 
Championships - Tasmanian Team 

With the ongoing support of the NEW Horizons 
Organisation, Tasmania again fielded a team in the 
National Inclusion Cricket Championships in Geelong 
in January.

The team competed with great enthusiasm and amazing 
team spirit recording one win over five matches.

Every player in the team supported each other and 
displayed the best of what playing cricket can develop – 
skills, inclusion, collaboration and sportsmanship.

Justin Nilon and Connor Sheppard were selected in the 
Australian ID squad and will compete in a tri-nations 
series in Brisbane in October 2019.

The group can be challenging to manage and the 
tournament would not be possible without the support of 
volunteers Jason Schmidt, Liam Devlin and Stuart Schultz 
from New Horizons.

A special mention to Simon Aufder-Heide for his work 
developing the program to this point before moving onto 
his new role outside of cricket.

The Cricket Tasmania Club Development program also 
encourages clubs to pursue inclusive practices and 
ensure their clubs can cater for the vast majority of 
cricketers with a disability who are already integrated 
into the mainstream.

The combination of the Hurricanes Inclusion Cup and an 
increased player pool part of longer term strategies to 
identify junior and female players and improve integration 
of players into mainstream cricket at every opportunity.

The Lord’s Taverners North-South Challenge took the 
Intrastate component of the competition to new levels 
with a series of matches held throughout the year 
creating more opportunities for new players to get 
involved. These matches had great support from High 
Performance Cricket Tasmania and the Trevallyn Cricket 
Club in Launceston.

Indoor Cricket – “Beastwear” 
National Indoor Cricket League 

In the second year of the National Indoor Cricket League, 
the Eastern Shore Bombers won the Tasmanian Division.

They progressed to the National finals and travelled to 
Adelaide to compete, where they were competitive in all 
6 of their games recording two wins in the pool matches

A committed group of stakeholders are currently working 
to establish a Tasmanian Indoor Cricket Association to 
further foster and coordinate the development of the 4th 
format of the game in the state.

Hurricanes T20 Champions League - 
Inter Cultural Sports League (ICSL)

A committed band of volunteers headed by the 
indefatigable Raj Chopra have developed the Intercultural 
Sports League to bring local communities from diverse 
backgrounds together for the love of sport.

With assistance from Cricket Tasmania, the 
competition continues to grow with 11 teams competing 
in the T20 cricket competition.

The competition in its 3rd season was won by the 
Thunderballs Cricket team. The competition is looking 
to continue to expand next season and aims to 
further celebrate and develop inclusion and diversity 
through sport.

Club Cricket

Junior Club Cricket

The Junior Formats continued to deliver great results for 
junior competitions around Tasmania with the revised 
formats providing more fun, more action and better skills 
development for all players involved completed in less 
time to fit into busy lifestyles.

Over 3700 underage club cricketers are the future of the 
game in Tasmania with players competing across multiple 
formats and age groups providing the transition and skill 
development environment crucial in nurturing our young 
players through to senior cricket.

T20 Blast program was further embedded into the 
junior pathway with players making the transition from 
Woolworths Cricket Blast towards junior club cricket.

Safeguarding Children

Aligned to the Cricket Tasmania Affiliation program the 
updated National Safeguarding Children policy was rolled 
out across Junior Club Cricket during the 2018-19 season. 
The policy seeks to ensure all children participate in a 
safe environment and clubs and their players, parents 
and volunteers are aware of the processes and education 
programs required to provide this safe environment.

Grassroots Cricket Fund

Sixty-four Affiliated Tasmanian clubs applied for funding 
for equipment purchases through this fund with up to 
$2500 available per club. These clubs stand to share 
around $160,000 in extra revenue to support their 
ongoing operations.

Electronic Scoring

45% of all cricket matches held in Tasmania were scored 
using electronic scoring. This saves significant volunteer 
time and provide direct upload of results to MyCricket 
saving countless further hours for volunteers. Further, 
when scored online progress of matches can be followed 
in real time from anywhere in the world enabling 
our players and their supporters to stay connected 
throughout the season.

Senior Club Cricket

Cricket Tasmania commenced a new partnership with 
the Tasmanian Cricket League to provide competition 
administration support. Based on the successful model 
with the Kookaburra Southern Cricket Association 
further partnerships are being forged with Community 
Associations across the state aimed at alleviating 
volunteer workload to support greater investment into 
the development of each associations clubs.

All associations and clubs rely on countless hours of 
volunteer work to deliver their programs from one season 
to the next. The Cricket Tasmania Volunteer Recognition 
program seeks to empower clubs with further opportunities 
to recognise this valuable resource for Tasmanian cricket.

Huon Channel Bushfire relief match – Cricket Tasmania 
supported the Huon Channel Cricket Association to host 
a Bushfire Relief fundraising match in the aftermath of 
the extensive bushfires that affected the region during 
January. We received outstanding support from George 
Bailey who assisted with a childrens’ clinic prior to the 
match held at Huonville.

Further volunteer and club support is provided across 
competitions through areas such as coach and umpiring 
education, club development, facility developments, 
administrative support and assistance with grants.Les
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Hurricanes Community T20 Cup

The Hurricanes Community T20 Cup provides the 
opportunity for the T20 Champions from each association 
to test themselves against the best community teams 
from around the state. 

Built into the overall season the competition culminated 
in a series of finals matches on Monday 11th March in 
Launceston. Forest/Stanley CC, Wellington CC, Kingston 
Crows CC and Launceston CC competed at the NTCA 
Complex with games played in good spirit. Launceston 
CC proving too strong on the day recording comfortable 
victories in both their semi-final and finals matches.

Club Development Expos

The Club Development expos are designed to support 
clubs with their ongoing administrative and compliance 
challenges. The Expos in each region were well 
supported with over 250 volunteers attending covering 
72 clubs and 11 associations.

Topics Included:

�� Club Health Sessions inc. Mental Health, 
Volunteer Support, A Sport for All 
Workshop & Safeguarding Children

�� Financial Management & Sponsorship

�� Marketing & Promotion including Social media

�� Community (Level One) Coaching Course

�� Competition Management & Electronic Scoring

�� Junior Formats Upskill Sessions

�� Association pre-season meetings

Strategic and Operational Consultant -  
Cricket Clubs

The role of Strategic and Operational Consultant - 
Cricket Clubs was created this season to help cricket 
clubs in Tasmania grow and thrive by providing additional 
strategic and operational guidance over and above what 
is supplied through existing roles and channels such as 
the Club Development Expos.

Cricket Tasmania identified Glenorchy CC, Brighton 
DCC, Riverside CC and Wynyard CC as four strategically 
significant clubs for Tasmanian Cricket that for various 
reasons required additional support. The strategic and 
operational consultant has worked closely with the four 
clubs to undertake a qualitative stakeholder engagement 
survey. The results of the survey are then presented to the 
club with recommendations on strategies and practices 
that the club can put in place to address the stakeholder 
perceptions of the club. When the club determines 
which recommendations are priorities to action, Cricket 
Tasmania endeavours to provide further support to 
internal resources as well as case studies for clubs to 
use as a reference.

Feedback from the clubs involved so far has been 
positive with clubs actioning recommendations within 
the report. Cricket Tasmania will be looking to further 
increase the program in future years to support more 
clubs around Tasmania.

Veterans Cricket Tasmania

Veterans Cricket Tasmania continues to grow with more 
interstate and international competitions for Over 50’s 
and over 60’s males and interstate competitions for over 
40’s females and over 70’s males.

Tasmania was represented by Glen Richardson and Pat 
Healy in the Australian Over 60’s team that toured New 
Zealand and is currently touring England. The UK Over 
60’s team is visiting Australia in October and November 
and with Tasmania hosting matches as part of this tour. 
Veteran’s Cricket Tasmania now fields separate over 50’s, 
over 60’s and over 70’s teams with a coordinator for 
each program.

The game continues to evolve and grow at “grassroots” 
levels and we strive to provide leadership and service 
to our army of volunteers as they work to meet the 
challenges of the 21st century for community sport and 
community sporting clubs and competitions. For all of 
our volunteers and their amazing work, we say thank you.
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100 Games	� Nigel Wilson, Gilbert van der Steege 
and Muhammad Qureshi

150 games	 Alan Tyne

200 games	� Greg Beechey, David Matthews 
and Harvey Wolff

250 games	 Simon Burns

350 games	� Martin Betts, Bruce Parker

500 games	 Steve Gibson

2018-19 TCUSA 
Umpire Milestones

Gilbert van der Steege was recognized by winning 
the Cricket Australia Sport for All Community 
Official of the Year in Tasmania. Gilbert also travelled 
to Shepparton as the Tasmanian representative for 
the Australian Country Cricket Championships.

Sam Burns travelled to Victoria to umpire 
in the National Female 18’s Carnival.

Simon Burns officiated at the State Schoolboys 
15’s carnival in Queensland and was selected to 
stand in the Grand Final. Simon also relocated 
to Launceston, and assisted the NTUSA in 
a training capacity, while juggling umpiring 
commitments at both ends of the State. 

Roy Loh was awarded the TCUSA most 
improved scorer while Nigel Wilson 
won the best first year scorer. 

Craig Seabourne received great reviews 
for his efforts on the Cricket NSW 
umpire exchange program.

Steve Jewell was awarded the CTPL Scorer of the 
Year for his outstanding work as a State Panel 
and North Hobart scorer. A very worthy winner.

Jamie Mitchell and Greg Beechey 
were worthy selections as umpires in the 
CTPL Team of the Year. Jamie is a repeat 
winner, but this was Greg’s first time.

Greg Beechey and Mark Wickham were presented 
with Chairman’s Awards for their services to cricket 
umpiring at the Rodwell/Fazackerley dinner.

Andrew Ikin did an outstanding job in the 
heat officiating at the National Indigenous 
Cricket Championships in Alice Springs.

The inclusion of Cricket North umpires into the 
CTPL. Scott Whitters, Bryan Dryden, Russell 
and Craig Johns all stood in CTPL games, 
with Whitters in particular, being promoted 
to First Grade and performing well.

Match Officials 
Season Highlights

For the 2018-19 season, 
Tasmanians Sam Nogajski and 
Mike Graham-Smith retained 
their positions on Cricket 
Australia’s National Umpire 
Panel for the seventh and sixth 
years respectively with Sam 
also standing in his second 
consecutive Sheffield Shield Final. 

Umpiring & Scoring
From Match Officials Manager Gerry O’Dea

Both men also had outstanding seasons at an 
International, National and Domestic level where Sam, 
was awarded his ninth Tasmanian Umpire of the Year 
Award at the Cricket Tasmania Awards Night while 
Mike stood in his sixth CTPL Grand Final. Sam was also 
named as one of the twelve on-field umpires for the 
2018 ICC Women's World Twenty20.

Darren Close, from the North-West continued his fine 
form on the CA Supplementary Umpire Panel and was 
a stand-out in the WBBL officiating in a semi-final and 
standing in the WNCL grand final. Darren continues to 
put back into cricket at a grassroots level, working as 
the umpire educator for Cricket Tasmania North-West. 
Darren also stood in his fourth consecutive CTPL Grand 
Final, accompanied by Mike Graham-Smith. Mike also 
had the distinction of travelling to New Zealand on an 
CA umpire exchange trip.

In mid May 2019, Cricket Australia released their updated 
squad members for the 2019-20 austral summer. Overall 
the new arrangements mean that of the 18 umpires on 
CA’s top two domestic panels, eight are from NSW, 
four Victoria, three Tasmania, and one each from South 
Australia, Queensland and Western Australia. For 
Tasmania, this once again confirmed the good work 
done by CT State Umpire Coach, Richard Widows.

This season gone, we also welcomed into the fold, 
former ICC umpire Jerry Matibiri, who moved to Hobart 
from Zimbabwe. Jerry was quickly added to the CT 
State Panel and moved into the WBBL ranks as well 
as travelling to Adelaide to officiate in the CA Premier 
Cricket T20 tournament.

Of the other State Panel umpires, Muhammad Qureshi 
officiated in the National 19’s Championships and Greg 
Beechey went to the National 17’s Championships 
representing Tasmania. 

At seasons end, Wade Stewart was recognised as the 
CTPL Umpire of the Year, and also won the Heapy/Pollard 
Medal in first grade. New umpire Brett Walker had an 
outstanding season, and easily won the Best First Year 
Umpire Award while it was also pleasing to see our only 
female umpire, Soniya Sharma, recognized as the Most 
Improved Umpire in the CTPL. 

It was another busy season, with increases in the number 
of games requiring officiating. The inclusion of Brighton 
CC and the Northern Raiders were a welcome addition 
and it was pleasing to see Cricket North umpire Scott 
Whitters quickly establish himself as a first-grade umpire 
of quality. There is no doubt that with the introduction of 
the Northern Raiders, the opportunity for umpires to join 
the pathway to CTPL cricket increased for those umpires 
based in the North and North-West. It is now incumbent 
on Cricket Tasmania to provide sufficient training 
opportunities for those umpires who want to grasp it. 

It is worth mentioning the success of our umpire recruiting 
pre-season program, with some 20 participants attending 
the New Umpire Law School, successfully run by Sam 
Nogajski and Richard Widows. Of these 20; 13 made 
their CTPL debut. This was off the back of a rejuvenated 
marketing strategy, using a range of promotional 
initiatives, including newspaper and radio advertisements 
and strong social media coverage. It is vital to now 
continue this trend and increase our efforts to attract 
quality umpires, in particular we need to recruit more 
former players and also improve our diversity and attract 
more female umpires to the fold.

Many thanks to the many people who contributed to the 
success of cricket this season – be they umpires or scorers, 
we had some outstanding contributions from the people 
who staff the Training, Education and Accreditation 
Committee, the CT State Umpire Panel, the CT State 
Scoring Panel and the CTPL Appointment Panel. Many 
thanks also to Ron Reinhard and Peter King, the Umpires 
Advisors for Cricket North and Cricket North-West for all 
their hard work on training and appointments this season.
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High Performance
From General Manager Drew Ginn

Elite Programs

Male Program

Adam Griffith led the Tigers and Hurricanes Male 
programs in 2018-19, with Gary Kirsten stepping down 
as Hurricanes Head Coach. 

Another leadership change happened early on in the 
season, with Matthew Wade replacing George Bailey as 
Tigers and Hurricanes captain after Bailey decided to 
step down from the positions. 

The season started positively for the Tigers in the One-
Day Cup finishing second on the table and defeating 
Queensland in the semi-final. The Grand-Final was played at 
Junction Oval where Victoria defeated Tigers by 110 runs.

Following the One-Day Cup results and finishing runner-
up the previous season in the Sheffield Shield, the Shield 
season started with much hope and two wins and a draw 
from the first five games. However, only one win came from 
the remaining five games, with the Tigers slipping to fifth 
on the Sheffield Shield ladder by the end of the season. 

The BBL season started brilliantly with the Hurricanes 
winning their first five games, before eventually finishing 
the roster season in first position on the ladder with ten 
wins and four losses. However, the Melbourne Stars upset 
the Hurricanes in the semi-final at Blundstone Arena 
winning by six wickets with seven balls remaining.

High Performance Pathway

Female Program

Salliann Briggs joined Cricket Tasmania ahead of the  
2018-19 season as Head Coach of the Tigers and 
Hurricanes Female programs, with Dan Marsh returning 
to the organisation as Assistant Coach. 

Ahead of the season there were also changes to the on-
field leadership, with Brooke Hepburn and Sasha Moloney 
becoming Tigers and Hurricanes captains respectively.

The WNCL was the Tigers most successful season 
since joining the competition, winning four of their six 
matches and finishing in the third position out of the Final 
separated from the top two by only bonus points. 

The WBBL season wasn’t as successful with the Hurricanes 
winning two of fourteen games, however this did include 
several narrow losses and the foundations firmly established 
for success in the standalone WBBL|05 in 2019-20. 

U15 Male

The National U/15 Championship were held on the Sunshine Coast in February 2019. The team performed admirably 
in trying conditions, staying competitive throughout the tournament. The team rewards came on the final day, where 
Tasmania defeated Northern Territory by 233 runs to record their only win of the tournament and finished ninth overall. 

Results aside, there were many performances that indicated that the group will be strong as it progresses through 
the pathway program. Nicholas Williams was the teams’ leading run scorer with 176 runs, whilst Ryan Borsboom 
claimed a massive ten wickets in total. 

There is a strong focus on talent identification at this Championship, and two Tasmanians, Cooper Anthes and Sam Voss, 
were recognised through selection in the Cricket Australia training squad. 

U15 Female

Canberra hosted the U/15 Female National Championships from 20–26 February 2019, with the Tasmanian side winning one 
match from its four T20 matches, and three one-day matches plus a final.

There were some standout individual performances, resulting in Melodie Armstrong, Maddison Brooks and Amy Smith 
being selected in the Australian Talent Squad.

Armstrong was the teams’ leading run scorer at the Championship with a total of 211 runs, Books the leading wicket 
taker with 12 wickets,in addition to scoring 197 runs, whilst Kate Sherriff (134 runs), Hannah Powe (eight wickets) and 
Cassie McLoughlin (six wickets) also making good contributions. 

U17 Male

The U/17 Male Championships commenced in Mackay on 1 October 2018, before moving to Brisbane for the second week 
of the competition. The team finished with four wins against the CAXI, Western Australia, NSW Metro and South Australia, 
three losses and a washout in challenging conditions. 

Will Collins was the teams’ leading run scorer (270) and wicket taker (13), with Mitchell Owen (219 runs) and Nicholas Davis 
(ten wickets and 186 runs) also leading individual contributors. 

Collins and Owen were both selected in the Australian U/17 side, with Owen captaining the team CAXI at the U/19 
Championships, whilst Davis was added to the U/16 Australian team on the back of his Championship performances. 

U18 Female

The U/18 Female National Championships were contested in Ballarat and Bendigo from 14-24 January 
2019, with the Tasmanian team winning three matches and finishing in sixth position from a total of 
ten teams in the one-day component, and further in their pool in the T20 competition. 

The teams’ best performers included leading run scorer Emma Manix-Geeves who scored 176 runs 
in total during the tournament and Amy Smith with 119 runs. Captain Sophie Parkin and Ella Marsh 
claimed 11 and ten wickets respectively, whilst Bonnie Davies scored 166 runs and took 12 wickets. 

U19 Male

The U/19 Championships were held in Adelaide during December 2018, with the Tasmanian 
side playing an outstanding brand of team cricket. All players at some point made 
important contributions to the team and this was reflected in our best result in many years. 
The young Tigers won five of their eight matches to finish ranked fifth. 

Outstanding performances from the captain, Keegan Oates saw him finish as the leading 
run scorer for the Championship with a total of 430 runs. Jake Williams also excelled 
with the bat to finish fifth with 348 runs, whilst Blake Cassidy and Jarrod Freeman 
were the team wicket takers with ten apiece. 

Oates was also named Player of the Championship, and together with Freeman was 
selected in the Australian Under 19 team. The Australian team toured Sri Lanka and 
were joined by Wade Townsend, who was appointed assistant coach for the tour.

Jarrod Freeman made his debut for the Hobart Hurricanes, and both he 
and Keegan represented Tasmania in the Futures League (Second XI).
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Hurricanes State Championships & Regional Academy

U14 Boys Hurricanes State Championships

Continuing with the new fixturing in the U/14 boys, there 
was plenty of good cricket being played. The competition 
consisted of two Southern Storm teams (Black and 
Purple), the Northern Force and the North West Lightning. 
The three one-day and three T20 rounds gave all players 
a great opportunity to showcase their skills. This age 
group provided the only century in the male competitions, 
with a brilliant 110*off 82 balls by Ozzie Warmbrunn. 

These games also provided players with the chance to 
push for underage selection in the state U/15 side which 
played in Queensland in February 2019, with several of 
the players being selected despite their younger age. 

The two Southern Storm teams ended up battling it 
out in the final with the purple side coming out as the 
eventual winners.

Hurricanes State Championships & Regional Academies

After a success pilot of Hurricanes Youth U13 Academies 
in 2017-18, regional academies were developed state-
wide for girls (U/14 & U/17) and boys (U/13, U/14, U/15 
and U/16). The programs are designed to support skilled 
male and female cricketers who demonstrate talent and 
character traits required to succeed but may not have 
been selected into State level programs. 

On a state-wide level there were substantial efforts from 
all involved, including clubs and volunteers who ensured 
quality outcomes for both the players and coaches during 
the eight- to nine-month program. The Program included 
66 fixtured games of cricket throughout the state, and 
the extended format provided both players and coaches 
with ongoing learning opportunities.

Over 270 players progressed through the program and were 
well supported by a volunteer network of over 50 coaches.

A further advantage during this season came in the form 
of current and former Tasmanian players and coaches 
including, Tim Coyle, Roger Brown, Clive Rose, Katelyn 
Fryett, Brook Hepburn, Sasha Moloney and Nick Courtney 
who contributed through providing specialist coaching 
to squads with support of the ACA.

In a new initiative, Cricket Tasmania sent U/13 Girls and U/13 
Boys squads to Melbourne for a week-long tournament 
with Cricket Southern Bayside (Cricket Victoria). The 
week included a combination of turf and synthetic wickets 
with the girls and boys playing Junior Formats at a 
representative level. Through this opportunity, and what 
the players exhibited throughout the season, we believe our 
ongoing investment and commitment in both youth talent 
and coach development will continue to provide Tasmanian 
cricket with a strong foundation for the future.

U17 Girls Hurricanes State Championships

With a new format and fixturing spread across the season, 
the first round of Championship matches was played in 
October and November 2018 with the Northern Force, 
North West Lightning, Southern Storm and the State U/15 
Development Team competing in the competition. The 
format provided valuable preparation and opportunity for 
girls vying for selection in the State U/18 and U/15 sides 

to play in the National Championships in January and 
February 2019. The cricket was competitive over the six 
rounds with each region winning at least one match.

The final was played between the Southern Storm and 
North West Lightning, with the Southern Storm proving too 
strong after strong performances with the bat and ball.

U16 Boys Hurricanes State Championships

This was played on the North West Coast over four venues 
with in Launceston, Pontville and Ulverstone. Both the 
facilities and catering were fantastic for the hotly contested 
three-round competition and Final. The competing 
teams were the Northern Force, North West Lightning, 

Southern Storm Black and Southern Storm Purple.

After four very good days of cricket and terrific weather, 
the Northern Force proved too strong for the Southern 
Storm Purple, giving underage selectors a solid preview 
of next season’s U/17 State squad.

U15 Boys Hurricanes State Championships

The U/15 age group also consisted of four teams spread 
throughout the state with the best talent meeting in 
games between October 2018 and March 2019. The U15 
championships is one of the more important age groups, 
as all the players are competing for the 13 available 
spots in the State U/15 side. Unfortunately, through the 

season the fixture was plagued by rain with over half of 
the games being abandoned. This however didn’t stop 
the remaining six games from being very competitive. 
With some tight bowling figures to protect a respectable 
total of 183, Southern Storm Black restricted Northern 
Force to 142 off 45.4 to win the final.

U14 Girls Hurricanes State Championships

The U/14 girls competition had a strong focus on 
providing girls with further playing opportunities. The 
six-round competition was played throughout the state 
between October 2018 and January 2019, including 
Southern Storm Black, Southern Storm Purple and the 
Northern Force (combined team). There was some strong 

progression by several girls through being provided with 
more training opportunities in a dedicated program. 

The final was played between Southern Storm Purple and 
Southern Storm Black with Southern Storm Purple winning 
through an excellent bowling and fielding performance.

Talent & Player Development

Elite Player Development – Female

The last 12 months has seen work on a number of key 
areas in the female Player Development Program. 

The players worked hard to uncover the history of 
women’s cricket in Tasmania, having conversations 
with past players and coaches. As a result of this, three 
key team behaviours were developed. The behaviours 
are an integral part of the program both on and off the 
field and underpin everything. 

In weekly professional development sessions, a number 
of activities were undertaken to develop skills such 
as providing and receiving feedback, having difficult 
conversations and embracing vulnerability. Each of 
the players completed an Individual Development Plan 

and set objectives, actions and measures in relation to 
the development of their careers outside of cricket.

MyState were partnered closely with throughout the 
season, providing opportunities for the players to develop 
their financial literacy and network with women working 
in the finance industry.

After a huge amount of changes within the women’s 
program, a main objective for season 2018-19 was for 
the players to identify what balance looks like for each of 
them. In line with this, a number of workshops were held 
throughout the season in order for the players to explore 
various hobbies and interests outside of cricket.

Elite Player Development – Male 

The core purpose of the program is to empower players 
to be healthy, balanced and capable people leading 
successful lives on and off the field.

Since Ben Mabon started in the role in December 2018, 
there has been a focus to help players find off field 
activities that they are passionate about whether it is 
study, charity or work experience. Ben has also focused 

on building the trust and respect of the playing group.

The program aims to leverage on existing relationships 
with other professional sporting clubs across Australia to 
give players and staff the opportunity to gain exposure 
to and learn from other organisations. Looking forward, 
there will also be a focus to increase presence in the 
community through aligning with several charities.
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Many individuals and 
organisations provide 
valuable support to Cricket 
Tasmania each season. 
We sincerely thank the 
following who assisted 
us greatly in 2018-2019.

Acknowledgments

The Tasmanian Government and all Tasmanian Local 
Government Councils for their great assistance and cooperation, 
especially providing grounds and facilities at all levels of cricket.

City of Clarence for its support with Blundstone Arena 
and cooperation with ground bookings at all levels.

City of Launceston for its assistance and support hosting four 
Hurricanes matches at the University of Tasmania Stadium.

Bob Cotgrove and Richie Woolley our honorary grade 
statisticians for their dedicated work each season.

Ric Finlay for his wonderful work as a statistician for 
our State team fixtures and International matches.

The Independent Tribunal for its time and support adjudicating 
at Association hearings. The Tribunal consisted of Andrew 
Buckley (Chair), Jacqui Hartnett (Deputy Chair), Tony Daly, 
Dennis Bishop, Peter Thomas, Adam French and Ian Quaggin.

Premier League Committee Members Kelvyn Anderson,  
Simon Stebbings, Jane Crosswell and all Club Administrators 
without whose efforts the clubs and teams of our Associations 
could not compete.

Tasmanian Cricket’s Umpires and Scorers for their big 
contributions in running successful competitions.

The Cricket Tasmania Museum and Library Volunteers 
whose assistance and passion keeps the Blundstone 
Arena, Bellerive Oval Tours and Museum operating.

Rick Smith, Getty Images and AAP Photos for their many 
photos used throughout the year including this report.

Coach Development

Cricket Tasmania conducted a variety of coach 
accreditation courses, upskilling seminars and club 
visits in each region of the State.

State Coach Development Manager John Hayes and 
Coaching ant Talent Specialist Michael Farrell travelled 
the State working with coaches across the representative 
and community club landscape, with training courses 
being supplied to them.

This season saw the pilot of Representative Courses in 

Launceston and Hobart with over 30 attendees. The course 
supported by High Performance Staff including Drew Ginn, 
Salliann Briggs, Adam Griffith, Jeff Vaughan, and Ben 
Rohrer. Content experts, Ian Renshaw (Skill Acquisition), 
Tim Coyle (Fielding) and Brad Harman (Fielding) provided 
comprehensive and engaging presentations.

The Club Coaching Scheme was delivered to 20 clubs 
state-wide, providing a regular communication, planning 
and development channel to support those coaches 
working across these competitions.

Community Coaching Courses

Free community coaching courses were offered, leading 
to 100 coaches attending the Community Coaching 
Courses (Level 1) to equip themselves with skills and ideas 
for the best training and match-day management.

This in turn will maximise the participation rates and skill 
development levels of our young cricketers. Currently, 
Tasmanian cricket boasts 1,790 accredited coaches with 
over 90% of these coaches accredited at Introductory 
or Community Coach Level.

Junior, Representative & Premier Coach Recognition

Thousands of junior, representative and premier 
coaches across Australia are playing their part to help 
inspire, nurture and develop the next generation of 
stars, while enhancing the quality of their own cricket 
experience through coaching.

Cricket Australia recognised the contribution of some 
outstanding Tasmanian coaches.

Cat 1	� Suzannah Gale Community/Junior Coach 
Burnie Hurricanes CC 
January 2019, SCG, Australia v India ODI

Cat 2	� Nigel Horsley Representative Coach  
Clarence District CC &  
Hurricanes Youth Academy u15s  
January 2019, MCG, Australia v India ODI

Cat 3	� Andy Gower Premier Cricket Coach 
Greater Northern Raiders 
February 2019, Manuka Oval Canberra 
Australia v Sri Lanka Test Match

 

Obituaries
It is with sadness that Cricket Tasmania records the 
passing of Thomas Rocher and Wendy Gillies.
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JLT One Day Cup
Tasmanian Tigers 

2018-19 Scorecards

Tasmania v Victoria

Townsville | 19 September 2018
Tasmania won by 65 runs

TOSS Tasmania

UMPIRES SAJ Craig, MW Graham-Smith

POM MS Wade (Tas)

TASMANIA RUNS

BR McDermott c Maddinson b Sutherland 56

MS Wade+ lbw b Coleman 117

JR Doran c Handscomb b Coleman 32

JC Silk c Sutherland b O'Connell 23

GJ Bailey* c O'Connell b Tremain 25

SA Milenko c and b O'Connell 30

TS Rogers c Gotch b Sutherland 5

CA Rose run out 15

JM Bird not out 2

AW Summers

RP Meredith

Extras 3lb, 12w, 1nb 16

Total 223 min 50 ov 8-321

VICTORIA RUNS

SE Gotch+ c Silk b Bird 33

MS Harris c Bailey b Rose 69

CL White c Bird b Rogers 11

PSP Handscomb* c Doran b Meredith 22

GJ Maxwell c Summers b Rose 21

NJ Maddinson c Summers b Rogers 32

WJ Sutherland c Doran b Rogers 0

CP Tremain st Wade b Rose 16

TL O'Connell c and b Rogers 22

SM Boland not out 7

JR Coleman b Rose 0

Extras 5lb, 18w 23

Total 209 min 47.2 ov 256

VICTORIA BOWLING O M R W

CP Tremain 8 0 80 1

WJ Sutherland 10 0 51 2

SM Boland 8 0 52 0

GJ Maxwell 4 0 28 0

JR Coleman 10 0 47 2

TL O'Connell 10 0 60 2

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

JM Bird 10 0 36 1

TS Rogers 9 1 53 4

RP Meredith 10 0 60 1

AW Summers 9 0 60 0

CA ROSE 9.2 0 42 4

FALL

TASMANIA

1-170 (McDermott), 2-181 (Wade), 3-232 (Silk), 4-263 (Doran), 
5-286 (Bailey), 6-301 (Milenko), 7-306 (Rogers), 8-321 (Rose)
VICTORIA

1-72 (Gotch), 2-92 (White), 3-141 (Harris), 4-145 (Handscomb), 
5-193 (Maxwell), 6-195 (Sutherland), 7-207 (Maddinson),  
8-230 (Tremain), 9-256 (O'Connell), 10-256 (Boland)

1ST MATCH 2ND MATCH 3RD MATCH 4TH MATCH

New South Wales v Tasmania

North Sydney | 25 September 2018
New South Wales won by 88 runs

TOSS Tasmania

UMPIRES DM Koch, SJ Nogajski

POM SA Abbott (NSW)

NEW SOUTH WALES RUNS

DP Hughes c Doran b Meredith 3

JR Edwards c Sandhu b Rose 68

KR Patterson* b Rose 37

MC Henriques c Doran b Meredith 24

NCR Larkin c Rose b Bird 32

JS Lenton+ c Bailey b Sandhu 7

DR Sams c McDermott b Sandhu 4

CJ Green c Milenko b Bird 24

SA Abbott c Silk b Sandhu 17

BJ Dwarshuis c Rose b Sandhu 9

MW Edwards not out 7

Extras 3lb, 4w 7

Total 189 min 47.3 ov 239

TASMANIA RUNS

MS Wade+ lbw b Abbott 0

BR McDermott c Henriques b Abbott 28

JR Doran c Lenton b Abbott 12

JC Silk c Lenton b Sams 10

GJ Bailey* c Lenton b Sams 14

SA Milenko c Patterson b MW Edwards 16

CA Rose c Lenton b Abbott 35

GS Sandhu lbw b Green 10

JM Bird c Lenton b Dwarshuis 22

AW Summers b Abbott 0

RP Meredith not out 0

Extras 2lb, 2w 4

Total 136 min 31.3 ov 151

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

JM Bird 10 0 43 2

RP Meredith 10 0 45 2

GS Sandhu 8.3 0 42 4

AW Summers 4 0 40 0

CA Rose 10 0 35 2

SA Milenko 5 0 31 0

QUEENSLAND BOWLING O M R W

SA Abbott 8 1 43 5

BJ Dwarshuis 5.3 0 39 1

DR Sams 8 1 27 2

MW Edwards 4 0 20 1

CJ Green 6 0 20 1

FALL

NEW SOUTH WALES

1-16 (Hughes), 2-102 (JR Edwards), 3-133 (Henriques),  
4-140 (Patterson), 5-151 (Lenton), 6-158 (Sams), 7-200 (Green), 
8-216 (Larkin), 9-230 (Abbott), 10-239 (Dwarshuis)
TASMANIA

1-0 (Wade), 2-34 (Doran), 3-49 (McDermott), 4-63 (Silk),  
5-80 (Bailey), 6-82 (Milenko), 7-98 (Sandhu), 8-151 (Rose),  
9-151 (Summers), 10-151 (Bird)

South Australia v Tasmania

Bankstown | 27 September 2018
Tasmania won by 3 wickets 

TOSS South Australia

UMPIRES SD Fry, NR Johnstone

POM BR McDermott (Tas)

SOUTH AUSTRALIA RUNS

AT Carey+ lbw b Webster 27

JB Weatherald b Meredith 79

CJ Ferguson b Meredith 43

JS Lehmann* not out 58

TLW Cooper c Bird b Sandhu 4

AI Ross c McDermott b Sandhu 10

CT Valente c McDermott b Rogers 3

A Zampa c Meredith b Bird 5

JM Mennie not out 1

KW Richardson

NP Winter

Extras 1lb, 4w, 1nb 6

Total 214 min 50 ov 7-236

TASMANIA RUNS

MS Wade+ c Weatherald b Richardson 0

BR McDermott not out 102

BJ Webster b Valente 13

JC Silk run out 71

GJ Bailey* c Richardson b Zampa 3

SA Milenko lbw b Zampa 21

TS Rogers c Lehmann b Valente 2

CA Rose b Richardson 0

GS Sandhu not out 11

JM Bird

RP Meredith

Extras 5b, 4lb, 6w 15

Total 199 min 49 ov 7-238

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

JM Bird 9 1 40 1

RP Meredith 8 1 30 2

GS Sandhu 10 0 44 2

BJ Webster 6 0 33 1

TS Rogers 10 0 46 1

CA Rose 7 0 42 0

SOUTH AUSTRALIA BOWLING O M R W

KW Richardson 10 1 46 2

NP Winter 8 0 54 0

JM Mennie 10 2 28 0

CT Valente 10 1 46 2

A Zampa 10 0 47 2

JS Lehmann 1 0 8 0

FALL

SOUTH AUSTRALIA

1-77 (Carey), 2-128 (Weatherald), 3-168 (Ferguson),  
4-175 (Cooper), 5-207 (Ross), 6-219 (Valente), 7-233 (Zampa)
TASMANIA

1-0 (Wade), 2-33 (Webster), 3-156 (Silk), 4-164 (Bailey),  
5-210 (Milenko), 6-214 (Rogers), 7-216 (Rose)

Queensland v Tasmania

Townsville | 22 September 2018
Tasmania won by 4 wickets

TOSS Queensland

UMPIRES MW Graham-Smith, P Wilson

POM BR McDermott (Tas)

TASMANIA RUNS

SD Heazlett c Doran b Meredith 33

MA Bryant lbw b Meredith 36

CA Lynn c Wade b Rogers 70

CR Hemphrey c Bailey b Meredith 58

JA Burns not out 47

JJ Peirson*+ c Silk b Sandhu 22

JA Prestwidge c Meredith b Summers 16

MT Steketee not out 14

MJ Swepson

XC Bartlett

B Stanlake

Extras 1b, 3lb, 16w 20

Total 210 min 50 ov 6-316

QUEENSLAND RUNS

BR McDermott c Swepson b Steketee 117

MS Wade+ c Heazlett b Steketee 22

JR Doran c Peirson b Steketee 2

JC Silk c Peirson b Prestwidge 85

GJ Bailey* c Burns b Prestwidge 6

SA Milenko not out 50

TS Rogers c Peirson b Steketee 0

CA Rose not out 25

GS Sandhu

AW Summers

RP Meredith

Extras 3lb, 7w 10

Total 214 min 49 ov 6-317

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

TS Rogers 10 0 79 1

GS Sandhu 10 0 61 1

CA Rose 10 0 46 0

RP Meredith 10 0 62 3

AW Summers 8 0 54 1

SA Milenko 2 0 10 0

QUEENSLAND BOWLING O M R W

B Stanlake 9 0 65 0

MT Steketee 10 1 84 4

JA Prestwidge 10 0 62 2

XC Bartlett 10 0 52 0

MJ Swepson 6 0 30 0

CR Hemphrey 4 0 21 0

FALL

QUEENSLAND

1-70 (Heazlett), 2-73 (Bryant), 3-188 (Lynn), 4-236 (Hemphrey) 
5-270 (Peirson), 6-296 (Prestwidge)
TASMANIA

1-37 (Wade), 2-45 (Doran), 3-223 (Silk), 4-234 (Bailey),  
5-250 (McDermott), 6-250 (Rogers)
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5TH MATCH SEMI FINAL GRAND FINAL

Tasmania v Western Australia

Hurstville | 1 October 2018
Western Australia won by 5 wickets

TOSS Western Australia

UMPIRES AK Wilds, P Wilson

POM MP Stoinis (WA)

TASMANIA RUNS

MS Wade+ c Stoinis b Behrendorff 33

BR McDermott c Inglis b Behrendorff 76

BJ Webster lbw b Usman 0

JC Silk c Inglis b Usman 14

GJ Bailey* run out 79

SA Milenko c Short b Coulter-Nile 8

TS Rogers b Coulter-Nile 32

CA Rose c Stoinis b Tye 32

GS Sandhu not out 0

JM Bird not out 9

RP Meredith

Extras 3lb, 4w 7

Total 203 min 50 ov 8-290

WESTERN AUSTRALIA RUNS

JR Philippe c (sub) b Bird 50

JP Inglis+ c Wade b Bird 15

DJM Short b Sandhu 63

AJ Turner* c Meredith b Rose 33

MP Stoinis not out 93

HWR Cartwright c Wade b Sandhu 0

JA Richardson not out 29

JP Behrendorff

AJ Tye

Usman Qadir

NM Coulter-Nile

Extras 5lb, 4w 9

Total 167 min 40.3 ov 5-292

WESTERN AUSTRALIA BOWLING O M R W

NM Coulter-Nile 10 0 67 2

JP Behrendorff 10 0 60 2

AJ Tye 10 0 55 1

Usman Qadir 10 0 40 2

JA Richardson 10 0 65 0

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

JM Bird 8 0 58 2

RP Meredith 8 0 58 0

CA Rose 10 1 57 1

TS Rogers 5.3 0 31 0

GS Sandhu 9 0 83 2

FALL

TASMANIA

1-71 (Wade), 2-74 (Webster), 3-108 (Silk), 4-146 (McDermott), 
5-163 (Milenko), 6-224 (Rogers), 7-279 (Rose), 8-281 (Bailey) 
WESTERN AUSTRALIA

1-32 (Inglis), 2-79 (Philippe), 3-167 (Short), 4-167 (Turner),  
5-168 (Cartwright) 

Queensland v Tasmania 

Drummoyne | 6 October 2018
Tasmania won by 6 wickets.

TOSS Tasmania

UMPIRES GA Abood, SD Fry

POM GS Sandhu (Tas)

QUEENSLAND RUNS

SD Heazlett c Wade b Bell 22

MA Bryant b Bell 11

CA Lynn c Wade b Bird 15

CR Hemphrey b Sandhu 28

JA Burns c Wade b Rose 23

JJ Peirson*+ lbw b Rogers 16

MT Steketee b Bird 30

MJ Swepson b Rogers 8

MP Kuhnemann b Sandhu 1

LW Feldman c (sub) b Rose 10

B Stanlake not out 4

Extras 5lb, 4w 9

Total 193 min 44.5 ov 177

TASMANIA RUNS

BR McDermott c Peirson b Stanlake 14

MS Wade+ c Peirson b Stanlake 0

AJ Doolan lbw b Feldman 27

JC Silk c Peirson b Feldman 4

GJ Bailey* not out 70

SA Milenko not out 57

TS Rogers

CA Rose

GS Sandhu

JM Bird

GT Bell

Extras 3lb, 5w 8

Total 148 min 37.2 ov 4-180

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

JM Bird 10 2 41 2

GT Bell 10 1 47 2

TS Rogers 8 0 43 2

GS Sandhu 9 2 14 2

SA Milenko 4 0 13 0

CA Rose 3.5 0 14 2

QUEENSLAND BOWLING O M R W

B Stanlake 9 1 38 2

MT Steketee 10 2 45 0

LW Feldman 7 2 20 2

MJ Swepson 8.2 0 62 0

MP Kuhnemann 3 0 12 0

FALL

QUEENSLAND

1-25 (Bryant), 2-50 (Heazlett), 3-50 (Lynn), 4-98 (Hemphrey), 
5-112 (Burns), 6-131 (Peirson), 7-149 (Swepson), 8-163 (Steketee), 
9-167 (Kuhnemann), 10-177 (Feldman) 
TASMANIA

1-1 (Wade), 2-25 (McDermott), 3-39 (Silk), 4-52 (Doolan) 
 

Victoria v Tasmania

St. Kilda | 10 October 2019
Victoria won by 110 runs

TOSS Victoria

UMPIRES SJ Nogajski, P Wilson

POM PSP Handscomb (Vic)

VICTORIA RUNS

MS Harris c and b Milenko 45

CL White c Wade b Sandhu 88

TJ Dean c Bird b Rogers 35

GJ Maxwell c Bailey b Sandhu 9

PSP Handscomb*+ c and b Sandhu 49

NJ Maddinson b Meredith 0

MW Short c Doolan b Sandhu 37

CP Tremain c Silk b Sandhu 5

JR Coleman not out 0

Fawad Ahmed b Sandhu 0

AL Fekete c Bailey b Sandhu 0

Extras 1lb, 4w, 1nb 6

Total 224 min 50 ov 274

TASMANIA RUNS

MS Wade+ c Handscomb b Maxwell 15

BR McDermott c Maddinson b Fawad 34

AJ Doolan lbw b Tremain 46

JC Silk c Handscomb b Maddinson 4

GJ Bailey* c Handscomb b Fekete 11

SA Milenko c Maxwell b Fekete 1

TS Rogers lbw b Tremain 13

CA Rose c Handscomb b Coleman 1

GS Sandhu c White b Coleman 1

JM Bird b Fawad 26

RP Meredith not out 1

Extras 6lb, 5w 11

Total 166 min 40.4 ov 164

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

JM Bird 10 0 50 0

RP Meredith 10 1 58 1

TS Rogers 10 0 44 1

CA Rose 4 0 33 0

GS Sandhu 10 0 56 7

SA Milenko 6 0 32 1

VICTORIA BOWLING O M R W

JR Coleman 8 0 27 2

GJ Maxwell 6 0 23 1

AL Fekete 6 0 20 2

CP Tremain 9 0 33 2

Fawad Ahmed 9.4 0 45 2

NJ Maddinson 2 0 10 1

FALL

VICTORIA

1-88 (Harris), 2-171 (Dean), 3-171 (White), 4-193 (Maxwell),  
5-194 (Maddinson), 6-252 (Handscomb), 7-274 (Tremain),  
8-274 (Short), 9-274 (Fawad), 10-274 (Fekete)
TASMANIA

1-20 (Wade), 2-67 (McDermott), 3-72 (Silk), 4-93 (Bailey),  
5-101 (Milenko), 6-128 (Rogers), 7-133 (Rose), 8-133 (Doolan),  
9-137 (Sandhu), 10-164 (Bird)

Sheffield Shield
Tasmanian Tigers 

2018-19 Scorecards

Queensland v Tasmania

Brisbane | 16 - 19 October 2018 | Tasmania won by 246 runs

TOSS Queensland 

UMPIRES GA Abood, SA Lightbody

POM JM Bird (Tas)

CLOSE OF PLAY SCORES

DAY 1 Tasmania (1st inn) 5-257 MS Wade 37*, SA Milenko 9*

DAY 2 Queensland (1st inn) 5-74 NA McSweeney 24*, JJ Peirson 3*

DAY 3 Queensland (2nd inn) 2-29 CR Hemphrey 8*, SD Heazlett 2*

TASMANIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JC Silk c Peirson b George 22 c Peirson b Steketee 13

AJ Doolan c Peirson b George 115 lbw b Feldman 10

BJ Webster lbw b Steketee 43 c Burns b Steketee 8

JR Doran b George 7 run out 11

GJ Bailey* c Hemphrey b Feldman 11 c McSweeney b Steketee 1

MS Wade+ not out 72 c and b George 51

SA Milenko b George 17 c Peirson b Feldman 6

TS Rogers lbw b Steketee 18 c Truloff b Swepson 15

SL Rainbird b Steketee 0 b Swepson 0

JM Bird c Peirson b Feldman 30 not out 10

GT Bell b Feldman 0 c Truloff b Swepson 3

Extras 2b, 10lb, 7w, 1nb 20 2lb, 2w 4

Total 475 min 116.3 ov 355 221 min 52.4 ov 132

QUEENSLAND 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

SJ Truloff b Bell 11 b Bird 0

JA Burns b Bird 0 c Wade b Bell 16

CR Hemphrey c Wade b Bird 17 c Wade b Bird 9

SD Heazlett b Rainbird 1 c Doolan b Bird 6

NA McSweeney c Bird b Milenko 35 c Wade b Bird 7

JD Wildermuth b Rogers 10 c Doran b Bird 10

JJ Peirson*+ c Doolan b Rogers 42 c Webster b Bell 5

MT Steketee c and b Bird 12 c Webster b Bell 6

MJ Swepson c Webster b Bird 2 c Bell b Rogers 11

LW Feldman c Silk b Bird 0 not out 12

PR George not out 0 c Wade b Bell 3

Extras 11lb, 4w, 3nb 18 6lb, 2nb 8

Total 327 min 77 ov 148 130 min 29.2 ov 93

QUEENSLAND BOWLING O M R W O M R W

MT Steketee 30 5 97 3 13 3 34 3

LW Feldman 32.3 12 75 3 16 6 41 2

CR Hemphrey 4 1 15 0  

PR George 30 9 76 4 13 3 38 1

MJ Swepson 18 2 75 0 10.4 3 17 3

NA McSweeney 2 0 5 0  

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JM Bird 19 7 35 5 13 4 42 5

GT Bell 17 7 25 1 10.2 2 17 4

SL Rainbird 16 6 29 1 4 1 15 0

TS Rogers 17 4 44 2 2 0 13 1

SA Milenko 8 4 4 1  

FALL

TASMANIA

1ST INNINGS: 1-54 (Silk), 2-188 (Webster), 3-194 (Doolan), 4-195 (Doran), 5-230 (Bailey),  
6-273 (Milenko), 7-316 (Rogers), 8-316 (Rainbird), 9-355 (Bird), 10-355 (Bell)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-17 (Silk), 2-27 (Webster), 3-32 (Doolan), 4-36 (Bailey), 5-57 (Doran), 6-77 (Milenko), 
7-105 (Rogers), 8-105 (Rainbird), 9-123 (Wade), 10-132 (Bell) 
QUEENSLAND

1ST INNINGS: 1-5 (Burns), 2-11 (Truloff), 3-19 (Heazlett), 4-45 (Hemphrey), 5-70 (Wildermuth),  
6-130 (Peirson), 7-132 (McSweeney), 8-145 (Swepson), 9-145 (Feldman), 10-148 (Steketee)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-0 (Truloff), 2-20 (Burns), 3-33 (Heazlett), 4-40 (Hemphrey), 5-41 (McSweeney),  
6-58 (Wildermuth), 7-64 (Peirson), 8-65 (Steketee), 9-79 (Swepson), 10-93 (George) 
 

1ST MATCH
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New South Wales v Tasmania

Sydney | 5 - 8 November 2018 | Match Drawn

TOSS New South Wales

UMPIRES GJ Davidson, SA Lightbody

POM JJ Sangha (NSW)

CLOSE OF PLAY SCORES

DAY 1 New South Wales (1st inn) 5-285 JJ Sangha 70*, JR Edwards 50*

DAY 2 Tasmania (1st inn) 3-108 JR Doran 6*, GJ Bailey 1*

DAY 3 Tasmania (1st inn) 4-115 JR Doran 7*, MS Wade 6*

NEW SOUTH WALES 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

DP Hughes lbw b Bird 78 not out 21

NCR Larkin lbw b Bell 6 run out 1

KR Patterson c Bird b Meredith 56 not out 0

MC Henriques c Silk b Webster 7

JJ Sangha c Silk b Wade 117

PM Nevill*+ c Paine b Rogers 8

JR Edwards c Doolan b Meredith 101

SNJ O'Keefe c Paine b Bell 31

TA Copeland not out 27

SA Abbott c Rogers b Bell 0

NM Lyon

Extras 5b, 2lb, 4w 11

Total 579 min 144.4 ov 9-442 16 min 4 ov 1-22

TASMANIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JC Silk c Nevill b Copeland 39 c Larkin b Abbott 23

AJ Doolan c Edwards b Copeland 53 c Lyon b O'Keefe 90

BJ Webster c Nevill b Copeland 8 not out 80

JR Doran not out 7 c and b Lyon 33

GJ Bailey* c Nevill b Copeland 1 b Lyon 6

MS Wade not out 6 lbw b Abbott 16

TD Paine+ b Lyon 1

TS Rogers c Copeland b Lyon 0

JM Bird not out 6

GT Bell

RP Meredith

Extras 1lb 1 4b, 2lb, 2w, 1nb 9

Total 187 min 49.3 ov 4-115 423 min 105.4 ov 7-264

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JM Bird 22 6 60 1 2 0 6 0

GT Bell 24.4 6 75 3 2 0 16 0

BJ Webster 39 7 111 1  

RP Meredith 25 6 64 2  

TS Rogers 21 2 87 1  

MS Wade 8 1 31 1  

JC Silk 5 1 7 0  

NEW SOUTH WALES BOWLING O M R W O M R W

TA Copeland 14.3 6 27 4 12 3 29 0

SA Abbott 8 2 25 0 28 7 51 2

NM Lyon 18 3 44 0 34.4 6 88 4

SNJ O'Keefe 9 1 18 0 21 3 56 1

MC Henriques  3 0 13 0

JR Edwards  4 0 18 0

JJ Sangha  3 1 3 0

FALL

NEW SOUTH WALES 1ST INNINGS

1ST INNINGS: 1-12 (Larkin), 2-137 (Patterson), 3-147 (Hughes), 4-157 (Henriques), 5-181 (Nevill),  
6-361 (Edwards), 7-404 (Sangha), 8-432 (O'Keefe), 9-442 (Abbott)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-18 (Larkin)
TASMANIA

1ST INNINGS: 1-92 (Doolan), 2-93 (Silk), 3-100 (Webster), 4-108 (Bailey)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-66 (Silk), 2-145 (Doolan), 3-199 (Doran), 4-209 (Bailey), 5-239 (Wade), 6-248 (Paine), 
7-250 (Rogers)
 

Western Australia v Tasmania

Perth | 25 - 27 October 2018 | Western Australia won by 7 wickets

TOSS Tasmania

UMPIRES GJ Davidson, PJ Gillespie

POM SE Marsh (WA)

CLOSE OF PLAY SCORES

DAY 1 Western Australia (1st inn) 2-69 HWR Cartwright 28*, SE Marsh 10*

DAY 2 Tasmania (2nd inn) 2-82 JC Silk 46*, JR Doran 13*

TASMANIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JC Silk c Turner b Richardson 1 b Richardson 56

AJ Doolan c Turner b Moody 76 c Turner b Richardson 6

BJ Webster lbw b Green 15 c Inglis b Green 12

JR Doran c Inglis b Moody 9 b Stoinis 21

GJ Bailey* c Cartwright b Moody 0 lbw b Stoinis 8

MS Wade+ not out 66 c Moody b Green 50

SA Milenko c Richardson b Green 36 b Kelly 20

TS Rogers b Green 0 c Inglis b Kelly 0

SL Rainbird c Inglis b Green 0 c Turner b Moody 7

JM Bird c Inglis b Green 8 c Inglis b Green 5

GT Bell lbw b Green 0 not out 0

Extras 4b, 8lb, 1w, 2nb 15 8b, 13lb, 2w 23

Total 279 min 64.1 ov 226 342 min 82.3 ov 208

WESTERN AUSTRALIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JR Philippe c Milenko b Bell 4 c Wade b Bird 2

JW Wells run out 27 c Doran b Bell 3

HWR Cartwright c Wade b Bell 35 not out 84

SE Marsh c Silk b Rainbird 80 lbw b Webster 98

AJ Turner* lbw b Milenko 18 not out 4

MP Stoinis c Webster b Bell 18

JP Inglis+ lbw b Rainbird 13

CD Green c Doolan b Milenko 7

JA Richardson c Bird b Rogers 0

ML Kelly not out 26

DJM Moody c Bailey b Bird 11

Extras 3lb, 1w 4 1lb, 3nb 4

Total 345 min 82.4 ov 243 169 min 41 ov 3-195

WESTERN AUSTRALIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JA Richardson 15 3 67 1 16 7 26 2

ML Kelly 15 6 41 0 20 8 33 2

CD Green 11.1 2 30 6 14.3 7 12 3

DJM Moody 11 2 39 3 16 3 59 1

MP Stoinis 10 4 23 0 12 3 44 2

HWR Cartwright 2 0 14 0  

AJ Turner  4 1 13 0

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JM Bird 18.4 4 75 1 6.3 1 19 1

GT Bell 20 9 45 3 9 2 37 1

SL Rainbird 15 4 51 2 10.3 1 58 0

TS Rogers 18 6 41 1 6 1 38 0

SA Milenko 11 2 28 2 6 0 27 0

BJ Webster  3 0 15 1

FALL

TASMANIA

1ST INNINGS: 1-12 (Silk), 2-46 (Webster), 3-72 (Doran), 4-72 (Bailey), 5-124 (Doolan), 6-184 (Milenko), 
7-184 (Rogers), 8-184 (Rainbird), 9-212 (Bird), 10-226 (Bell)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-9 (Doolan), 2-31 (Webster), 3-104 (Doran), 4-106 (Silk), 5-118 (Bailey), 6-167 (Milenko), 
7-167 (Rogers), 8-191 (Rainbird), 9-199 (Bird), 10-208 (Wade) 
WESTERN AUSTRALIA

1ST INNINGS: 1-7 (Philippe), 2-54 (Wells), 3-82 (Cartwright), 4-123 (Turner), 5-177 (Stoinis),  
6-191 (Marsh), 7-202 (Inglis), 8-206 (Richardson), 9-206 (Green), 10-243 (Moody)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-5 (Wells), 2-5 (Philippe), 3-175 (Marsh)
 

2ND MATCH 3RD MATCH 5TH MATCH4TH MATCH

Tasmania v South Australia

Blundstone Arena | 27 - 30 November 2018 | Tasmania won by 189 runs 

TOSS South Australia

UMPIRES PJ Gillespie, DM Koch

POM JC Silk (Tas)

CLOSE OF PLAY SCORES

DAY 1 South Australia (1st inn) 0-0 JB Weatherald 0*, CJW McInerney 0*

DAY 2 Tasmania (2nd inn) 3-120 JC Silk 49*, GJ Bailey 0*

DAY 3 South Australia (2nd inn) 1-16 CJW McInerney 11*, CJ Ferguson 5*

TASMANIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JC Silk lbw b Worrall 11 c Cooper b Mennie 113

AJ Doolan c Carey b Worrall 8 lbw b Worrall 1

BR McDermott lbw b Winter 24 c Carey b Worrall 54

JR Doran c Ferguson b Mennie 26 c Carey b Worrall 10

GJ Bailey c Carey b Worrall 28 lbw b Mennie 63

MS Wade* c Carey b Winter 43 c Richardson b Winter 13

TD Paine+ c Carey b Mennie 16 not out 47

AB Pyecroft lbw b Mennie 0 lbw b Head 29

JM Bird c Lehmann b Richardson 11 b Head 9

GT Bell b Worrall 6 not out 2

RP Meredith not out 4

Extras 7lb, 1nb 8 1b, 9lb, 1w, 1nb 12

Total 373 min 85.4 ov 185 501 min 123 ov 8-353

SOUTH AUSTRALIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JB Weatherald c Silk b Bell 13 lbw b Bird 0

CJW McInerney c and b Pyecroft 8 b Bell 11

CJ Ferguson c Paine b Bell 6 lbw b Bird 111

TM Head* c Paine b Meredith 49 lbw b Bird 11

JS Lehmann c Silk b Pyecroft 28 c Paine b Pyecroft 3

TLW Cooper c Paine b Bird 0 lbw b Bell 10

AT Carey+ b Pyecroft 0 c Bailey b Meredith 31

JM Mennie c Pyecroft b Bird 0 c Paine b Meredith 0

NP Winter c McDermott b Bell 11 c Paine b Bird 26

KW Richardson c Doolan b Bell 0 c Silk b Bell 0

DJ Worrall not out 4 not out 2

Extras 9lb, 1w, 7nb 17 5lb, 3nb 8

Total 223 min 51.2 ov 136 353 min 87.5 ov 213

SOUTH AUSTRALIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

DJ Worrall 21.4 9 42 4 29 7 83 3

NP Winter 23 6 57 2 27 6 60 1

KW Richardson 20 2 52 1 28 4 93 0

JM Mennie 21 11 27 3 26 3 70 2

TM Head  13 1 37 2

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JM Bird 16 5 39 2 26 10 65 4

GT Bell 16.2 5 29 4 21.5 7 44 3

RP Meredith 7 0 23 1 16 2 63 2

AB Pyecroft 12 2 36 3 17 10 16 1

MS Wade  4 0 15 0

JC Silk  1 0 1 0

BR McDermott  2 1 4 0

FALL

TASMANIA

1ST INNINGS: 1 1-11 (Doolan), 2-20 (Silk), 3-63 (McDermott), 4-95 (Doran), 5-106 (Bailey), 6-136 (Paine), 
7-144 (Pyecroft), 8-157 (Bird), 9-175 (Wade), 10-185 (Bell)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-5 (Doolan), 2-90 (McDermott), 3-120 (Doran), 4-213 (Bailey), 5-250 (Wade),  
6-270 (Silk), 7-323 (Pyecroft), 8-337 (Bird)
SOUTH AUSTRALIA

1ST INNINGS: 1 1-17 (Weatherald), 2-27 (Ferguson), 3-36 (McInerney), 4-99 (Lehmann), 5-100 (Cooper), 
6-104 (Carey), 7-106 (Mennie), 8-125 (Head), 9-130 (Richardson), 10-136 (Winter)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-0 (Weatherald), 2-20 (McInerney), 3-31 (Head), 4-51 (Lehmann), 5-77 (Cooper),  
6-132 (Carey), 7-132 (Mennie), 8-196 (Winter), 9-211 (Ferguson), 10-213 (Richardson)
 

Tasmania v Victoria

Blundstone Arena | 17 - 20 November 2018 | Victoria won by 6 wickets

TOSS Victoria

UMPIRES MW Graham-Smith, AK Wilds

POM MS Wade (Tas)

CLOSE OF PLAY SCORES

DAY 1 Victoria (1st inn) 5-148 SE Gotch 23*, JL Pattinson 9*

DAY 2 Tasmania (2nd inn) 2-196 JC Silk 77*, JR Doran 0*

DAY 3 Victoria (2nd inn) 0-12 TJ Dean 7*, MS Harris 4*

TASMANIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JC Silk c Pattinson b Tremain 16 c White b Siddle 90

AJ Doolan lbw b Tremain 0 c White b Siddle 94

BJ Webster c Handscomb b Tremain 11 c Gotch b Holland 19

JR Doran c Gotch b Boland 2 c Gotch b Tremain 16

GJ Bailey* b Pattinson 15 c Gotch b Siddle 3

MS Wade c Gotch b Boland 14 c Handscomb b Siddle 137

TD Paine+ c White b Tremain 3 c White b Short 40

GS Sandhu c Gotch b Pattinson 0 c Gotch b Tremain 6

JM Bird b Pattinson 7 c White b Short 50

GT Bell b Tremain 4 lbw b Holland 1

RP Meredith not out 0 not out 4

Extras 9lb 9 11b, 2lb, 1w, 2nb 16

Total 131 min 29.5 ov 81 595 min 147.1 ov 476

VICTORIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

TJ Dean run out 5 b Bird 11

MS Harris c Paine b Meredith 22 lbw b Bell 67

PSP Handscomb* c Paine b Sandhu 4 c Bailey b Bird 23

CL White c Doran b Bird 63 c Paine b Meredith 41

MW Short b Meredith 16 not out 64

SE Gotch+ lbw b Meredith 41 not out 66

JL Pattinson c Paine b Webster 30

CP Tremain b Webster 5

PM Siddle c Sandhu b Meredith 42

SM Boland b Bird 16

JM Holland not out 29

Extras 1b, 2lb, 6nb 9 2lb, 2nb 4

Total 398 min 94.4 ov 282 343 min 83.1 ov 4-276

VICTORIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

PM Siddle 8 1 24 0 32.1 4 100 4

CP Tremain 9.5 4 13 5 31 5 118 2

SM Boland 7 2 22 2 33 6 97 0

JL Pattinson 5 1 13 3 12 1 49 0

JM Holland  27 4 80 2

MW Short  12 4 19 2

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JM Bird 24 6 68 2 24.1 7 66 2

GT Bell 19 9 49 0 15 3 53 1

GS Sandhu 22 3 65 1 19 2 69 0

RP Meredith 19.4 3 61 4 19 3 60 1

MS Wade 3 0 15 0 3 0 13 0

BJ Webster 7 2 21 2  

JC Silk  3 0 13 0

FALL

TASMANIA

1ST INNINGS: 1 1-10 (Doolan), 2-25 (Silk), 3-32 (Doran), 4-34 (Webster), 5-57 (Wade), 6-61 (Bailey), 
7-61 (Sandhu), 8-75 (Bird), 9-78 (Paine), 10-81 (Bell)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-170 (Doolan), 2-193 (Webster), 3-229 (Doran), 4-229 (Silk), 5-232 (Bailey),  
6-305 (Paine), 7-333 (Sandhu), 8-421 (Bird), 9-434 (Bell), 10-476 (Wade)
VICTORIA

1ST INNINGS: 1 1-17 (Dean), 2-21 (Handscomb), 3-59 (Harris), 4-95 (Short), 5-131 (White), 6-181 (Gotch), 
7-187 (Pattinson), 8-200 (Tremain), 9-232 (Boland), 10-282 (Siddle)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-26 (Dean), 2-58 (Handscomb), 3-143 (Harris), 4-145 (White)
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6TH MATCH 7TH MATCH

Tasmania v Queensland

Blundstone Arena | 7 - 10 December 2018 | Queensland won by 4 wickets 

TOSS Queensland

UMPIRES SJ Nogajski, JD Ward

POM MG Neser (Qld)

CLOSE OF PLAY SCORES

DAY 1 Queensland (1st inn) 8-86 MG Neser 17*, MJ Swepson 4*

DAY 2 Tasmania (2nd inn) 4-240 GJ Bailey 96*, MS Wade 40*

DAY 3 Queensland (2nd inn) 2-164 M Labuschagne 58*, CR Hemphrey 1*

TASMANIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JC Silk c Peirson b Wildermuth 13 lbw b Feldman 54

AJ Doolan lbw b Feldman 0 lbw b Neser 8

BR McDermott c Peirson b Neser 1 run out 6

JR Doran b Neser 0 b Wildermuth 26

GJ Bailey c Steketee b Neser 25 c Burns b Steketee 109

MS Wade*+ c Feldman b Wildermuth 63 run out 40

SA Milenko c Peirson b Steketee 10 c Hemphrey b Swepson 53

AB Pyecroft c Peirson b Steketee 0 c and b Swepson 29

JM Bird c Peirson b Steketee 9 b Swepson 3

GT Bell c Peirson b Feldman 22 not out 6

RP Meredith not out 13 c Burns b Swepson 3

Extras 7lb, 4w 11 6b, 7lb, 1w, 2nb 16

Total 252 min 55.4 ov 167 542 min 136.4 ov 353

QUEENSLAND 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

MT Renshaw c Silk b Bird 14 b Bird 27

JA Burns c Silk b Bell 18 b Meredith 74

M Labuschagne c Milenko b Meredith 21 b Pyecroft 78

CR Hemphrey c Wade b Pyecroft 0 lbw b Meredith 35

SD Heazlett c Doran b Pyecroft 2 c Doran b Milenko 37

JD Wildermuth c Wade b Pyecroft 0 b Meredith 0

JJ Peirson*+ c Wade b Pyecroft 0 not out 75

MG Neser lbw b Bird 27 not out 76

MT Steketee c Wade b Pyecroft 0

MJ Swepson not out 11

LW Feldman c Bailey b Bird 4

Extras 5lb, 5nb 10 6lb, 1w, 5nb 12

Total 164 min 36.4 ov 107 534 min 128.4 ov 6-414

QUEENSLAND BOWLING O M R W O M R W

MG Neser 15 4 43 3 27 9 45 1

LW Feldman 15.4 6 33 2 29 12 58 1

JD Wildermuth 12 2 49 2 24 7 49 1

MT Steketee 13 3 35 3 27 7 87 1

MJ Swepson  28.4 4 99 4

M Labuschagne  1 0 2 0

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JM Bird 15.4 4 40 3 34 10 99 1

GT Bell 6 1 22 1 26 5 92 0

AB Pyecroft 11 4 28 5 27.4 4 75 1

RP Meredith 4 1 12 1 27 8 70 3

SA Milenko  13 0 71 1

JC Silk  1 0 1 0

FALL

TASMANIA

1ST INNINGS: 1 1-4 (Doolan), 2-13 (McDermott), 3-13 (Doran), 4-21 (Silk), 5-60 (Bailey), 6-84 (Milenko), 
7-88 (Pyecroft), 8-104 (Bird), 9-130 (Wade), 10-167 (Bell)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-9 (Doolan), 2-22 (McDermott), 3-71 (Doran), 4-136 (Silk), 5-249 (Wade), 6-258 (Bailey), 
7-335 (Pyecroft), 8-339 (Bird), 9-344 (Milenko), 10-353 (Meredith) 
QUEENSLAND

1ST INNINGS: 1 1-25 (Burns), 2-41 (Renshaw), 3-48 (Hemphrey), 4-53 (Heazlett), 5-53 (Wildermuth), 
6-58 (Labuschagne), 7-66 (Peirson), 8-77 (Steketee), 9-103 (Neser), 10-107 (Feldman)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-37 (Renshaw), 2-163 (Burns), 3-208 (Labuschagne), 4-233 (Hemphrey),  
5-233 (Wildermuth), 6-271 (Heazlett)

South Australia v Tasmania

Adelaide | 23 - 26 February 2019 | Tasmania won by 6 wickets 

TOSS South Australia

UMPIRES AY Dandekar, JD Ward

POM JM Bird (Tas)

CLOSE OF PLAY SCORES

DAY 1 Tasmania (1st inn) 0-16 JC Silk 10*, AJ Doolan 6*

DAY 2 Tasmania (1st inn) 3-238 CA Wakim 79*, JR Doran 16*

DAY 3 South Australia (2nd inn) 2-132 JB Weatherald 64*, TM Head 45* 

SOUTH AUSTRALIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

CJW McInerney c Doran b Wakim 24 b Bird 0
JB Weatherald c Paine b Meredith 1 b Rogers 150
JS Lehmann c Silk b Bird 3 lbw b Bird 11
TM Head* c Paine b Rogers 50 c Pyecroft b Bird 50
CJ Ferguson c Paine b Bird 11 c Paine b Bird 60
TLW Cooper c Paine b Bird 5 c Pyecroft b Bird 8
HJ Nielsen+ c Pyecroft b Meredith 43 b Rogers 0
CT Valente c Bird b Wade 23 lbw b Bird 0
NP Winter c Paine b Pyecroft 5 b Bird 0
JM Mennie not out 43 c Doran b Rogers 1
CJ Sayers c Doolan b Bird 20 not out 2
Extras 4b, 8lb, 15w, 2nb 29 21b, 12lb, 2w, 2nb 37
Total 341 min 78.3 ov 257 375 min 90.5 ov 319

TASMANIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JC Silk c McInerney b Sayers 33 st Nielsen b Head 36
AJ Doolan lbw b Winter 25 c Weatherald b Winter 19
CA Wakim c Head b Mennie 160 run out 22
MS Wade* c Nielsen b Winter 77 lbw b Head 15
JR Doran st Nielsen b Head 47 not out 11
BR McDermott c Nielsen b Winter 63 not out 1
TD Paine+ c Nielsen b Sayers 14
TS Rogers c Weatherald b Sayers 5
AB Pyecroft lbw b Mennie 0
JM Bird not out 17
RP Meredith c Nielsen b Mennie 3
Extras 10b, 10lb, 3w 23 4b, 2lb 6
Total 663 min 165.2 ov 467 134 min 34.2 ov 4-110

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JM Bird 18.3 4 53 4 24.5 8 59 7
RP Meredith 15 3 25 2 19 5 54 0
TS Rogers 15 4 35 1 14 4 42 3
AB Pyecroft 17 2 78 1 17 3 57 0
CA Wakim 6 0 27 1 7 0 40 0
MS Wade 6 0 23 1 3 0 14 0
JC Silk 1 0 4 0  
BR McDermott  6 2 20 0

SOUTH AUSTRALIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

CJ Sayers 37 11 85 3  
NP Winter 35 8 91 3 7 1 22 1
JM Mennie 27.2 10 53 3 4 1 15 0
CT Valente 29 7 65 0 13 3 34 0
TM Head 28 3 95 1 10.2 0 33 2
CJW McInerney 1 0 5 0  
TLW Cooper 4 0 21 0  
JS Lehmann 1 0 2 0  
JB Weatherald 3 0 30 0  

FALL

SOUTH AUSTRALIA

1ST INNINGS: 1 1-7 (Weatherald), 2-16 (Lehmann), 3-69 (McInerney), 4-86 (Ferguson), 5-109 (Cooper), 
6-115 (Head), 7-171 (Valente), 8-193 (Nielsen), 9-193 (Winter), 10-257 (Sayers)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-0 (McInerney), 2-16 (Lehmann), 3-147 (Head), 4-298 (Ferguson), 5-316 (Weatherald), 
6-316 (Nielsen), 7-316 (Cooper), 8-316 (Winter), 9-317 (Mennie), 10-319 (Valente)
TASMANIA

1ST INNINGS: 1 1-58 (Silk), 2-62 (Doolan), 3-196 (Wade), 4-311 (Doran), 5-411 (McDermott),  
6-428 (Wakim), 7-444 (Paine), 8-447 (Rogers), 9-453 (Pyecroft), 10-467 (Meredith)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-38 (Doolan), 2-73 (Wakim), 3-94 (Silk), 4-109 (Wade)

8TH MATCH 9TH MATCH

Tasmania v Western Australia

Blundstone Arena | 12 -15 March 2019 | Western Australia won by 51 runs

TOSS Tasmania

UMPIRES PJ Gillespie, GC Joshua

POM SM Whiteman (WA)

CLOSE OF PLAY SCORES

DAY 1 Western Australia (1st inn) 7-334 JS Paris 25*, ML Kelly 9*

DAY 2 Western Australia (2nd inn) 0-2 CT Bancroft 0*, SM Whiteman 2*

DAY 3 Tasmania (2nd inn) 0-54 JC Silk 20*, AJ Doolan 20*

WESTERN AUSTRALIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

CT Bancroft c Paine b Bird 27 lbw b Bell 22

SM Whiteman c Paine b Bird 55 c Pyecroft b Bell 93

JP Inglis+ c Willis b Meredith 0 b Bell 0

MR Marsh* c Bird b Bell 6 lbw b Meredith 42

HWR Cartwright c Paine b Meredith 66 lbw b Pyecroft 10

JR Philippe b Bird 76 c Wade b Willis 36

DJM Short c Bird b Bell 49 not out 61

JS Paris c Paine b Meredith 26 c Bird b Wade 6

ML Kelly c Paine b Bird 22 b Wade 5

LCJ Guthrie b Bird 14 not out 0

DJM Moody not out 4

Extras 4b, 7lb, 5w, 6nb 22 5lb, 1w, 2nb 8

Total 441 min 108.2 ov 367 325 min 80 ov 8-283

TASMANIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JC Silk c Bancroft b Marsh 26 lbw b Kelly 20

AJ Doolan c Bancroft b Marsh 46 c Guthrie b Paris 20

CA Wakim c Inglis b Paris 0 lbw b Guthrie 28

MS Wade* b Marsh 38 c Marsh b Moody 134

SW Willis lbw b Kelly 5 c Bancroft b Paris 24

BR McDermott c Inglis b Moody 11 c Inglis b Paris 69

TD Paine+ c Philippe b Kelly 26 c Short b Marsh 47

AB Pyecroft c Inglis b Guthrie 3 lbw b Marsh 12

JM Bird c Cartwright b Paris 22 c Kelly b Moody 14

GT Bell b Paris 4 c Whiteman b Marsh 1

RP Meredith not out 0 not out 1

Extras 4b, 7lb, 1w, 4nb 16 7b, 15lb, 1w, 9nb 32

Total 304 min 72.3 ov 197 456 min 107.1 ov 402

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JM Bird 30.2 10 70 5 21 2 77 0

RP Meredith 24 5 91 3 13 2 53 1

AB Pyecroft 24 3 85 0 17 6 30 1

GT Bell 26 6 85 2 21 5 72 3

SW Willis 2 0 12 0 5 0 26 1

MS Wade 2 0 13 0 3 0 20 2

VICTORIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JS Paris 15.3 2 33 3 25 6 64 3

ML Kelly 19 9 35 2 21 7 63 1

DJM Moody 16 3 63 1 21 5 85 2

LCJ Guthrie 10 4 34 1 18 4 68 1

MR Marsh 12 2 21 3 19.1 4 76 3

DJM Short  3 0 24 0

FALL

WESTERN AUSTRALIA

1ST INNINGS: 1-41 (Bancroft), 2-49 (Inglis), 3-63 (Marsh), 4-146 (Whiteman), 5-184 (Cartwright),  
6-266 (Short), 7-302 (Philippe), 8-336 (Paris), 9-360 (Kelly), 10-367 (Guthrie)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-59 (Bancroft), 2-59 (Inglis), 3-126 (Marsh), 4-156 (Cartwright), 5-178 (Whiteman), 
6-242 (Philippe), 7-258 (Paris), 8-266 (Kelly)
TASMANIA

1ST INNINGS: 1-84 (Doolan), 2-85 (Silk), 3-85 (Wakim), 4-95 (Willis), 5-122 (McDermott),  
6-144 (Wade), 7-155 (Pyecroft), 8-183 (Bird), 9-197 (Paine), 10-197 (Bell)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-54 (Silk), 2-61 (Doolan), 3-102 (Wakim), 4-136 (Willis), 5-319 (Wade),  
6-335 (McDermott), 7-343 (Bird), 8-379 (Pyecroft), 9-385 (Bell), 10-402 (Paine)

Victoria v Tasmania

St. Kilda | 5 - 8 March 2019 | Match Drawn

TOSS Victoria

UMPIRES A Jacobs, GC Joshua

POM NJ Maddinson (Vic)

CLOSE OF PLAY SCORES

DAY 1 Victoria (1st inn) 7-376 SE Gotch 32*, SM Boland 6*

DAY 2 Tasmania (1st inn) 8-234 SL Rainbird 25*, GT Bell 1*

DAY 3 Tasmania (2nd inn) 0-27 JC Silk 7*, AJ Doolan 12*

VICTORIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

TJ Dean* b Meredith 2 lbw b Meredith 11

MS Harris c Doran b Freeman 94 c Wakim b Bell 44

WJ Pucovski c Wade b Meredith 0 not out 131

NJ Maddinson lbw b Bell 136 c and b Freeman 61

CL White b Meredith 41 not out 52

MW Short c Doolan b Bird 45

SE Gotch+ c Bird b Rainbird 93

CP Tremain lbw b Bird 4

SM Boland lbw b Meredith 10

JM Holland c Wade b Bird 1

AL Fekete not out 1

Extras 10lb, 7w, 10nb 27 6lb, 1w, 1nb 8

Total 479 min 115 ov 454 247 min 66 ov 3-307

TASMANIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JC Silk c Short b Fekete 7 c Gotch b Boland 41

AJ Doolan lbw b Boland 30 c Harris b Holland 88

CA Wakim c White b Fekete 17 c Short b Fekete 36

MS Wade*+ c Gotch b Tremain 86 c Gotch b Fekete 1

JR Doran c Maddinson b Boland 0 lbw b Holland 1

BR McDermott c and b Holland 9 not out 5

JA Freeman c Gotch b Fekete 22 not out 4

SL Rainbird c Holland b Tremain 59

JM Bird c and b Boland 16

GT Bell c White b Boland 15

RP Meredith not out 0

Extras 6b, 15lb, 4nb 25 14b, 5lb, 1w, 1nb 21

Total 361 min 88.5 ov 286 395 min 100 ov 5-197

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JM Bird 31 8 85 3 11 1 40 0

RP Meredith 27 6 86 4 8 1 30 1

SL Rainbird 22 0 95 1 12 1 66 0

GT Bell 21 2 86 1 12 2 46 1

JA Freeman 11 0 87 1 17 0 86 1

MS Wade 3 0 5 0 6 0 33 0

VICTORIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

CP Tremain 17.5 3 50 2 15 5 35 0

AL Fekete 26 5 104 3 25 11 44 2

JM Holland 23 6 36 1 39 20 42 2

SM Boland 20 3 63 4 18 4 51 1

MW Short 2 0 12 0 1 1 0 0

NJ Maddinson  2 0 6 0

FALL

VICTORIA

1ST INNINGS: 1-7 (Dean), 2-7 (Pucovski), 3-177 (Harris), 4-251 (White), 5-320 (Maddinson),  
6-347 (Short), 7-351 (Tremain), 8-384 (Boland), 9-391 (Holland), 10-454 (Gotch)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-27 (Dean), 2-78 (Harris), 3-207 (Maddinson)
TASMANIA

1ST INNINGS: 1-7 (Silk), 2-46 (Wakim), 3-84 (Doolan), 4-96 (Doran), 5-153 (McDermott), 6-179 (Wade), 
7-193 (Freeman), 8-217 (Bird), 9-284 (Bell), 10-286 (Rainbird)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-112 (Silk), 2-160 (Doolan), 3-161 (Wade), 4-183 (Wakim), 5-189 (Doran)
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10TH MATCH

Tasmania v New South Wales

Blundstone Arena | 20 - 23 March 2019 | New South Wales won by 149 runs

TOSS Tasmania

UMPIRES SJ Nogajski, P Wilson

POM SA Abbott (NSW)

CLOSE OF PLAY SCORES

DAY 1 New South Wales (1st inn) 7-311 BJH Holt 11*, TA Copeland 30*

DAY 2 Tasmania (1st inn) 2-117 AJ Doolan 54*, MS Wade 17*

DAY 3 New South Wales (2nd inn) 5-149 NL Bertus 16*, JR Edwards 0*

NEW SOUTH WALES 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

DP Hughes c Wade b Bird 61 c Wakim b Bell 26

NCR Larkin c Doolan b Milenko 67 c Paine b Bird 33

KR Patterson* b Kingston 14 b Bell 0

MC Henriques c Wakim b Milenko 10 c Bell b Meredith 49

JJ Sangha b Bird 37 run out 0

NL Bertus c Paine b Bird 17 not out 16

JR Edwards c Bird b Meredith 44 not out 0

BJH Holt+ c Paine b Bell 25

TA Copeland c Doolan b Kingston 30

SA Abbott not out 47

HNA Conway lbw b Bell 2

Extras 4b, 8lb, 7w, 2nb 21 16b, 3lb, 2w, 4nb 25

Total 457 min 110 ov 375 199 min 49 ov 5-149

TASMANIA 1ST INNINGS RUNS 2ND INNINGS RUNS

JC Silk c Patterson b Copeland 25 c Hughes b Abbott 6

AJ Doolan lbw b Copeland 72 lbw b Copeland 0

CA Wakim c Holt b Copeland 6 lbw b Abbott 4

MS Wade* c Hughes b Henriques 34 c and b Abbott 65

BR McDermott c Patterson b Copeland 53 b Abbott 0

TD Paine+ c Holt b Edwards 6 lbw b Abbott 2

SA Milenko c Holt b Copeland 22 c Holt b Edwards 9

HP Kingston c Holt b Copeland 0 c Holt b Abbott 14

JM Bird c Holt b Conway 10 c Holt b Copeland 13

GT Bell c Holt b Conway 0 c Sangha b Abbott 3

RP Meredith not out 2 not out 2

Extras 4b, 8lb, 12w, 1nb 25 2lb 2

Total 409 min 97.4 ov 255 158 min 35.4 ov 120

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W O M R W

JM Bird 30 9 85 3 11 2 28 1

RP Meredith 17 6 64 1 9 3 26 1

GT Bell 23 2 82 2 14 2 22 2

HP Kingston 20 5 55 2 5 0 22 0

SA Milenko 15 1 39 2 6 1 13 0

MS Wade 2 0 10 0 4 0 19 0

BR McDermott 3 0 28 0  

NEW SOUTH WALES BOWLING O M R W O M R W

TA Copeland 33.4 11 88 6 15 4 31 2

SA Abbott 26 5 67 0 12.4 4 45 7

HNA Conway 23 8 44 2 5 0 21 0

MC Henriques 9 1 27 1  

JR Edwards 6 1 17 1 3 0 21 1

FALL

NEW SOUTH WALES

1ST INNINGS: 1-99 (Hughes), 2-127 (Patterson), 3-159 (Larkin), 4-160 (Henriques), 5-189 (Bertus), 
6-263 (Sangha), 7-265 (Edwards), 8-311 (Copeland), 9-373 (Holt), 10-375 (Conway)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-81 (Hughes), 2-81 (Patterson), 3-98 (Larkin), 4-99 (Sangha), 5-149 (Henriques)
TASMANIA

1ST INNINGS: 1-53 (Silk), 2-67 (Wakim), 3-145 (Doolan), 4-173 (Wade), 5-190 (Paine), 6-232 (Milenko), 
7-232 (Kingston), 8-243 (Bird), 9-243 (Bell), 10-255 (McDermott)  
2ND INNINGS: 1-7 (Silk), 2-7 (Doolan), 3-11 (Wakim), 4-15 (McDermott), 5-23 (Paine), 6-56 (Milenko), 
7-100 (Wade), 8-115 (Bird), 9-115 (Kingston), 10-120 (Bell)

WNCL
Tasmanian Roar 

2018-19 Scorecards

1ST MATCH

ACT v Tasmania

Allan Border Field | 21 September 2018
Tasmania won by 5 wickets

TOSS ACT

UMPIRES SE Dionysius, SJ Farrell

POM CL Hall (Tas)

ACT RUNS

CJ Koski c Redmayne b Hepburn 9

KM Mack c Redmayne b Webb 57

EA Osborne* c Thompson b Phillips 31

EA Burns b Phillips 11

HNK Jensen lbw b Moloney 5

AR Reakes c Redmayne b Webb 1

CM Iemma run out 35

EJ Kershaw+ b Satterthwaite 15

MJ Brown c Satterthwaite b Pyke 10

ZE Cooke lbw b Phillips 8

SL Bates not out 9

Extras 4lb, 20w, 3nb 27

Total 170 min 46.4 ov 218

TASMANIA RUNS

SG Daffara c Bates b Jensen 15

GP Redmayne+ lbw b Brown 1

AE Satterthwaite run out 10

EE Thompson c Reakes b Burns 60

CL Hall b Brown 86

ME Phillips not out 23

V Pyke not out 8

SK Moloney

CA Webb

EG Fazackerley

BL Hepburn*

Extras 3b, 9lb, 5w, 2nb 19

Total 158 min 46 ov 5-222

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 10 1 33 1

BL Hepburn 7 0 38 1

CA Webb 6 1 40 2

AE Satterthwaite 10 0 43 1

ME Phillips 8.4 0 37 3

SK Moloney 5 0 23 1

ACT BOWLING O M R W

MJ Brown 8 0 30 2

HNK Jensen 6 0 36 1

SL Bates 10 0 49 0

EA Osborne 10 0 38 0

ZE Cooke 5 0 22 0

CJ Koski 1 0 7 0

EA Burns 6 0 28 1

FALL

ACT

1-15 (Koski), 2-86 (Osborne), 3-100 (Burns), 4-124 (Jensen),  
5-125 (Reakes), 6-143 (Mack), 7-187 (Kershaw), 8-201 (Iemma), 
9-202 (Brown), 10-218 (Cooke)
TASMANIA

1-10 (Redmayne), 2-18 (Daffara), 3-38 (Satterthwaite),  
4-177 (Thompson), 5-209 (Hall)
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2ND MATCH 3RD MATCH 4TH MATCH

New South Wales v Tasmania

Robina | 23 September 2018
New South Wales won by 186 runs

TOSS New South Wales

UMPIRES SJ Farrell, N James

POM EA Perry (NSW)

NEW SOUTH WALES RUNS

AJ Healy*+ b Pyke 85

RL Haynes c Hepburn b Pyke 89

EA Perry c Satterthwaite b Phillips 67

NJ Carey c Pyke b Moloney 7

NE Stalenberg c Fazackerley b Moloney 14

RC Trenaman not out 38

RM Farrell not out 21

SE Aley

LG Smith

LR Cheatle

BW Vakarewa

Extras 3lb, 18w, 2nb 23

Total 186 min 50 ov 5-344

TASMANIA RUNS

SG Daffara c Haynes b Perry 16

GP Redmayne+ c Healy b Smith 28

AE Satterthwaite lbw b Carey 39

EE Thompson c Haynes b Vakarewa 8

V Pyke run out 1

CL Hall b Perry 23

ME Phillips st Healy b Trenaman 0

EG Fazackerley b Carey 1

SK Moloney c Healy b Perry 16

CA Webb b Farrell 8

BL Hepburn* not out 1

Extras 1b, 8lb, 5w, 3nb 17

Total 157 min 39 ov 158

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 10 0 59 2

BL Hepburn 9 0 56 0

AE Satterthwaite 6 0 56 0

ME Phillips 10 0 67 1

CA Webb 2 0 21 0

SK Moloney 10 0 62 2

EE Thompson 3 0 20 0

NEW SOUTH WALES BOWLING O M R W

RM Farrell 7 0 31 1

EA Perry 8 0 25 3

LR Cheatle 4 0 12 0

LG Smith 8 0 33 1

BW Vakarewa 5 1 11 1

NJ Carey 3 0 13 2

RC Trenaman 4 0 24 1

FALL

NEW SOUTH WALES

1-180 (Healy), 2-196 (Haynes), 3-225 (Carey), 4-277 (Stalenberg), 
5-278 (Perry)
TASMANIA

1-21 (Daffara), 2-79 (Redmayne), 3-93 (Thompson), 4-97 (Pyke), 
5-109 (Satterthwaite), 6-111 (Phillips), 7-112 (Fazackerley),  
8-140 (Hall), 9-150 (Moloney), 10-158 (Webb) 

Tasmania v Queensland

TCA Ground | 9 November 2018
Tasmania won by 10 runs

TOSS Tasmania

UMPIRES G Beechey, M Qureshi

POM ME Phillips (Tas)

TASMANIA RUNS

SG Daffara c Barsby b Birkett 75

GP Redmayne+ c Short b Barsby 70

ME Phillips b Birkett 43

EE Thompson lbw b GM Harris 6

CL Hall not out 21

V Pyke c Dooley b Johnson 7

CA Webb run out 4

SK Moloney not out 1

BL Hepburn*

A Hartley

KR Fryett

Extras 4lb, 14w, 2nb 20

Total 190 min 50 ov 6-247

QUEENSLAND RUNS

GM Harris lbw b Hartley 14

KLH Short* not out 83

JE Duffin c Redmayne b Hepburn 13

JE Dooley+ b Phillips 8

HP Birkett b Moloney 15

LM Harris c Hall b Moloney 0

C Knott c Hall b Hartley 0

SJ Johnson c Phillips b Pyke 54

JL Barsby st Redmayne b Pyke 11

GK Prestwidge b Hepburn 24

TM Cooper b Phillips 3

Extras 2b, 3lb, 7w 12

Total 172 min 49.2 ov 237

QUEENSLAND BOWLING O M R W

SJ Johnson 10 0 39 1

GM Harris 10 0 41 1

HP Birkett 10 1 48 2

GK Prestwidge 7 0 42 0

JL Barsby 10 0 53 1

C Knott 3 0 20 0

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 10 0 64 2

A Hartley 10 1 28 2

BL Hepburn 10 1 47 2

ME Phillips 9.2 0 33 2

SK Moloney 10 0 60 2

FALL

TASMANIA

1-131 (Daffara), 2-178 (Redmayne), 3-198 (Thompson),  
4-227 (Phillips), 5-238 (Pyke), 6-243 (Webb)
QUEENSLAND

1-16 (GM Harris), 2-40 (Duffin), 3-64 (Dooley), 4-103 (Birkett), 
5-103 (LM Harris), 6-104 (Knott), 7-182 (Johnson), 8-199 (Barsby), 
9-232 (Prestwidge), 10-237 (Cooper)

Tasmania v South Australia

TCA Ground | 10 November 2018
Tasmania won by 6 wickets

TOSS Tasmania

UMPIRES M Qureshi, H Wolff

POM GP Redmayne (Tas

SOUTH AUSTRALIA RUNS

BE Patterson c Hepburn b Phillips 18

TMS Saville c Redmayne b Webb 21

TM McGrath b Moloney 29

TJ McPharlin*+ c Hartley b Pyke 37

AJ Wellington c Daffara b Thompson 6

EK Doddridge st Redmayne b Phillips 1

SM Betts run out 1

SJ Lowe run out 0

AE Price not out 9

KL Pope c Thompson b Hepburn 13

EM Falconer c Pyke b Hepburn 0

Extras 1lb, 21w 22

Total 169 min 48 ov 157

TASMANIA RUNS

SG Daffara lbw b McGrath 2

GP Redmayne+ c Patterson b Pope 56

ME Phillips run out 11

EE Thompson st McPharlin b Wellington 15

CL Hall not out 55

SK Moloney not out 4

CA Webb

V Pyke

BL Hepburn*

A Hartley

KR Fryett

Extras 13w, 2nb 15

Total 157 min 39.2 ov 4-158

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

A Hartley 10 3 32 0

V Pyke 10 2 18 1

ME Phillips 9 1 25 2

BL Hepburn 8 0 25 2

CA Webb 3 0 11 1

KR Fryett 3 0 22 0

SK Moloney 3 0 14 1

EE Thompson 2 0 9 1

SOUTH AUSTRALIA BOWLING O M R W

TM McGrath 10 4 15 1

EM Falconer 4 0 22 0

SJ Lowe 4 0 20 0

AE Price 6 0 18 0

AJ Wellington 6 0 34 1

TMS Saville 2 0 11 0

SM Betts 4.2 0 17 0

KL Pope 3 0 21 1

FALL

SOUTH AUSTRALIA

1-39 (Patterson), 2-53 (Saville), 3-112 (McGrath),  
4-127 (Wellington), 5-130 (Doddridge), 6-130 (McPharlin),  
7-133 (Betts), 8-133 (Lowe), 9-150 (Pope), 10-157 (Falconer)
TASMANIA

1-2 (Daffara), 2-26 (Phillips), 3-70 (Thompson), 4-153 (Redmayne)

5TH MATCH 6TH MATCH

Tasmania v Western Australia

Casey #5 | 1 February 2019
Tasmania won by 78 runs

TOSS Western Australia

UMPIRES G Azzopardi, D Ireland

POM GP Redmayne

TASMANIA RUNS

SG Daffara lbw b King 18

GP Redmayne+ c Cross b Graham 77

CL Hall b King 51

EE Thompson lbw b Hempenstall 43

SK Moloney lbw b Cross 8

CA Webb run out 1

V Pyke c Graham b Hempenstall 16

ME Phillips st Banting b Hempenstall 2

BL Hepburn* b Cross 0

A Smith not out 10

A Hartley

Extras 1lb, 14w, 1nb 16

Total 196 min 50 ov 9-242

WESTERN AUSTRALIA RUNS

BM Devchand lbw b Pyke 0

CL Piparo* c Daffara b Phillips 32

HL Graham lbw b Hartley 10

MG Carmichael lbw b Hartley 0

AL Edgar run out 67

MP Banting+ b Hepburn 4

KL Cross st Redmayne b Moloney 1

KM Hempenstall c Redmayne b Smith 7

EL King b Hartley 27

TCJ Peschel c and b Moloney 7

PM Cleary not out 1

Extras 7w, 1nb 8

Total 153 min 44.1 ov 164

WESTERN AUSTRALIA BOWLING O M R W

KL Cross 10 0 33 2

PM Cleary 7 0 46 0

EL King 10 1 41 2

KM Hempenstall 7 0 39 3

HL Graham 10 1 48 1

TCJ Peschel 4 0 18 0

BM Devchand 2 0 16 0

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 6 0 32 1

A Hartley 10 1 27 3

ME Phillips 8 1 34 1

BL Hepburn 7.1 1 32 1

SK Moloney 8 0 25 2

A Smith 5 1 14 1

FALL

TASMANIA

1-34 (Daffara), 2-111 (Hall), 3-192 (Redmayne), 4-211 (Thompson), 
5-212 (Webb), 6-212 (Moloney), 7-218 (Phillips), 8-219 (Hepburn), 
9-242 (Pyke)
WESTERN AUSTRALIA

1-0 (Devchand), 2-31 (Graham), 3-31 (Carmichael), 4-48 (Piparo), 
5-52 (Banting), 6-68 (Cross), 7-83 (Hempenstall), 8-151 (King), 
9-162 (Peschel), 10-164 (Edgar)

Victoria v Tasmania

St. Kilda | 3 February 2019
Victoria won by 14 runs

TOSS Victoria

UMPIRES G Azzopardi, DJ Brigham

POM MM Lanning (Vic)

VICTORIA RUNS

SG Molineux run out 1

MA Blows lbw b Pyke 4

MM Lanning* b Phillips 105

AJ Sutherland c Daffara b Moloney 48

GL Wareham b Pyke 8

RK O'Donnell c Redmayne b Smith 0

AM King st Redmayne b Moloney 8

MR Strano not out 46

NM Faltum+ not out 33

KM Beams

CB Neale

Extras 4b, 1lb, 1w, 1nb 7

Total 186 min 50 ov 7-260

TASMANIA RUNS

SG Daffara c Lanning b O'Donnell 49

GP Redmayne+ c and b King 43

CL Hall c Beams b King 5

EE Thompson c Faltum b Strano 30

SK Moloney lbw b Sutherland 2

CA Webb c Molineux b Beams 5

V Pyke c King b Molineux 53

ME Phillips run out 34

BL Hepburn* run out 1

A Smith run out 5

A Hartley not out 4

Extras 4b, 4lb, 7w 15

Total 183 min 50 ov 246

TASMANIA BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 10 0 43 2

A Hartley 8 0 37 0

ME Phillips 8 0 52 1

BL Hepburn 10 0 70 0

SK Moloney 8 1 31 2

A Smith 6 0 22 1

VICTORIA BOWLING O M R W

AJ Sutherland 8 1 32 1

CB Neale 3 0 20 0

MR Strano 10 0 43 1

SG Molineux 8 0 52 1

GL Wareham 5 0 28 0

AM King 9 0 39 2

RK O'Donnell 2 0 6 1

KM Beams 5 0 18 1

FALL

VICTORIA

1-1 (Molineux), 2-10 (Blows), 3-107 (Sutherland),  
4-133 (Wareham), 5-134 (O'Donnell), 6-155 (King), 7-214 (Lanning)
TASMANIA

1-97 (Daffara), 2-99 (Redmayne), 3-104 (Hall), 4-115 (Moloney), 
5-145 (Thompson), 6-145 (Webb), 7-213 (Phillips),  
8-220 (Hepburn), 9-229 (Smith), 10-246 (Pyke)
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KFC T20 Men's 
Big Bash League

Hobart Hurricanes 
2018-19 Scorecards

1ST MATCH 2ND MATCH 3RD MATCH 4TH MATCH

Brisbane Heat v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Carrara | 22 December 2018
Hobart Hurricanes won by 15 runs

TOSS Brisbane Heat

UMPIRES PJ Gillespie, JD Ward

POM DJM Short (HH)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Cutting b Mujeeb 5

DJM Short c Cutting b Steketee 67

AJ Doolan b Mujeeb 5

BR McDermott run out 25

GJ Bailey c Heazlett b Lalor 22

SA Milenko not out 18

JP Faulkner c Cutting b Steketee 4

J Botha not out 1

JC Archer

CA Rose

RP Meredith

Extras 1lb, 10w, 1nb 12

Total 79 min 19 ov 6-159

BRISBANE HEAT RUNS

BB McCullum run out 4

MA Bryant c Meredith b Botha 30

CA Lynn* c Doolan b Faulkner 29

JA Burns c Doolan b Botha 4

SD Heazlett b Meredith 0

BCJ Cutting c Bailey b Archer 58

JJ Peirson+ b Meredith 4

MT Steketee c Rose b Archer 2

JK Lalor c Doolan b Faulkner 4

MJ Swepson c Doolan b Faulkner 2

Mujeeb Zadran not out 0

Extras 7w 7

Total 78 min 18.4 ov 144

BRISBANE HEAT BOWLING O M R W

JK Lalor 3 0 29 1

Mujeeb Zadran 4 0 23 2

MT Steketee 4 0 36 2

MJ Swepson 4 0 43 0

BCJ Cutting 4 0 27 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 3.4 0 25 3

CA Rose 3 0 25 0

JC Archer 4 0 23 2

J Botha 4 0 30 2

RP Meredith 3 0 30 2

DJM Short 1 0 11 0

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-25 (Wade), 2-42 (Doolan), 3-101 (McDermott), 4-115 (Short), 
5-136 (Bailey), 6-145 (Faulkner)
BRISBANE HEAT

1-9 (McCullum), 2-42 (Bryant), 3-54 (Burns), 4-56 (Heazlett),  
5-93 (Lynn), 6-133 (Peirson), 7-137 (Cutting), 8-137 (Steketee), 
9-143 (Swepson), 10-144 (Lalor)

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Melbourne Stars

Blundstone Arena | 24 December 2018
Hobart Hurricanes won by 6 wickets

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES SAJ Craig, SJ Nogajski

POM DJM Short (HH)

MELBOURNE STARS RUNS

TJ Dean c and b Archer 11

BR Dunk+ c Faulkner b Archer 10

NCR Larkin b Short 45

GJ Maxwell* lbw b Archer 47

MP Stoinis not out 22

DJ Bravo c Faulkner b Short 12

EP Gulbis not out 1

A Zampa

SM Boland

S Lamichhane

JR Coleman

Extras 3lb, 4w 7

Total 86 min 20 ov 5-155

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Zampa b Lamichhane 52

DJM Short c Dunk b Boland 34

AJ Doolan b Lamichhane 2

BR McDermott lbw b Lamichhane 28

GJ Bailey not out 27

SA Milenko not out 6

JP Faulkner

J Botha

JC Archer

CA Rose

RP Meredith

Extras 1lb, 6w 7

Total 82 min 18.4 ov 4-156

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 3 0 31 0

J Botha 3 0 29 0

JC Archer 4 0 25 3

CA Rose 2 0 19 0

RP Meredith 4 0 25 0

DJM Short 4 0 23 2

MELBOURNE STARS BOWLING O M R W

GJ Maxwell 2 0 15 0

SM Boland 2.4 0 23 1

JR Coleman 2 0 14 0

DJ Bravo 3 0 38 0

S Lamichhane 4 0 24 3

A Zampa 4 0 32 0

MP Stoinis 1 0 9 0

FALL

MELBOURNE STARS

1-20 (Dean), 2-32 (Dunk), 3-119 (Larkin), 4-123 (Maxwell),  
5-146 (Bravo)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-55 (Short), 2-60 (Doolan), 3-112 (Wade), 4-128 (McDermott)

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Sydney Thunder

Blundstone Arena | 28 December 2018
Hobart Hurricanes won by 7 wickets

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES SD Fry, MW Graham-Smith

POM MS Wade (HH)

SYDNEY THUNDER RUNS

JC Buttler+ c and b Archer 89

SR Watson* lbw b Meredith 20

CJ Ferguson b Rose 15

JE Root c Meredith b Rose 17

JJ Sangha c Rose b Faulkner 7

DR Sams c Botha b Faulkner 11

CJ Green not out 26

NJ McAndrew not out 1

Fawad Ahmed

JD Cook

SL Rainbird

Extras 2lb, 4w, 1nb 7

Total 89 min 20 ov 6-193

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Root b Rainbird 85

DJM Short run out 58

BR McDermott b Rainbird 22

GJ Bailey not out 23

SA Milenko not out 4

AJ Doolan

JP Faulkner

J Botha

CA Rose

JC Archer

RP Meredith

Extras 2w, 2nb 4

Total 91 min 19.1 ov 3-196

SYDNEY THUNDER BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 4 0 34 2

JC Archer 4 0 47 1

CA Rose 4 0 30 2

RP Meredith 4 0 44 1

DJM Short 2 0 16 0

J Botha 2 0 20 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JD Cook 4 0 31 0

CJ Green 3 0 26 0

SL Rainbird 2.1 0 25 2

DR Sams 4 0 54 0

Fawad Ahmed 4 0 34 0

NJ McAndrew 1 0 15 0

JJ Sangha 1 0 11 0

FALL

SYDNEY THUNDER

1-27 (Watson), 2-66 (Ferguson), 3-88 (Root), 4-104 (Sangha), 
5-124 (Sams), 6-190 (Buttler)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-120 (Short), 2-166 (Wade), 3-168 (McDermott) 

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Perth Scorchers

Launceston | 30 December 2018
Hobart Hurricanes won by 6 wickets

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES MW Graham-Smith, AK Wilds

POM RP Meredith (HH)

PERTH SCORCHERS RUNS

WG Bosisto lbw b Faulkner 0

M Klinger c Botha b Rose 5

HWR Cartwright c McDermott b Short 29

AJ Turner* b Meredith 4

CT Bancroft+ c Wade b Meredith 2

AC Agar c Doolan b Short 32

DJ Willey c McDermott b Faulkner 6

NM Coulter-Nile c McDermott b Meredith 20

JA Richardson not out 5

AJ Tye

JP Behrendorff

Extras 2lb, 2w 4

Total 80 min 20 ov 8-107

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Bancroft b Richardson 24

DJM Short c Cartwright b Agar 34

AJ Doolan not out 41

BR McDermott c Klinger b Agar 3

GJ Bailey c Bancroft b Coulter-Nile 1

SA Milenko not out 3

JP Faulkner

J Botha

CA Rose

JC Archer

RP Meredith

Extras 2lb, 2w 4

Total 69 min 17.3 ov 4-110

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 4 0 21 2

JC Archer 4 0 26 0

CA Rose 3 0 18 1

RP Meredith 4 0 15 3

J Botha 2 0 8 0

DJM Short 3 0 17 2

PERTH SCORCHERS BOWLING O M R W

JP Behrendorff 2 0 13 0

DJ Willey 1 0 7 0

WG Bosisto 2 0 9 0

JA Richardson 4 0 22 1

NM Coulter-Nile 3 0 21 1

AC Agar 4 0 19 2

AJ Tye 1.3 0 17 0

FALL

PERTH SCORCHERS

1-0 (Bosisto), 2-9 (Klinger), 3-16 (Turner), 4-19 (Bancroft),  
5-65 (Cartwright), 6-80 (Agar), 7-99 (Willey), 8-107 (Coulter-Nile)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-50 (Wade), 2-81 (Short), 3-90 (McDermott), 4-99 (Bailey)
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8TH MATCH6TH MATCH 9TH MATCH7TH MATCH 10TH MATCH

Melbourne Stars v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Melbourne | 14 January 2019
Hobart Hurricanes won by 59 runs

TOSS Melbourne Stars

UMPIRES MW Graham-Smith, JD Ward

POM DJM Short (HH)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Dunk b O'Connell 41

DJM Short not out 96

JR Doran c and b Bowe 7

BR McDermott not out 27

GJ Bailey

SA Milenko

J Botha

JP Faulkner

CA Rose

JC Archer

RP Meredith

Extras 1b, 7lb, 4w, 2nb 14

Total 88 min 20 ov 2-185

MELBOURNE STARS RUNS

EP Gulbis b Botha 4

BR Dunk b Short 20

NCR Larkin c Botha b Meredith 16

NJ Maddinson* lbw b Botha 6

SE Gotch+ c Botha b Archer 35

DJ Bravo c Archer b Meredith 19

JA Merlo run out 11

LE Plunkett c McDermott b Meredith 11

JM Bird c Archer b Meredith 1

TL O'Connell not out 0

LP Bowe hit wkt b Archer 0

Extras 2lb, 1w 3

Total 78 min 17.1 ov 126

MELBOURNE STARS BOWLING O M R W

BR Dunk 2 0 18 0

JM Bird 4 0 27 0

LE Plunkett 4 0 44 0

LP Bowe 3 0 38 1

TL O'Connell 2 0 17 1

DJ Bravo 4 0 32 0

EP Gulbis 1 0 1 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 3 0 25 0

J Botha 4 0 21 2

JC Archer 3.1 0 23 2

RP Meredith 4 0 21 4

DJM Short 2 0 16 1

CA Rose 1 0 18 0

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-95 (Wade), 2-138 (Doran)
MELBOURNE STARS

1-5 (Gulbis), 2-40 (Larkin), 3-45 (Dunk), 4-51 (Maddinson), 
 5-94 (Bravo), 6-106 (Gotch), 7-124 (Plunkett), 8-126 (Merlo),  
9-126 (Bird), 10-126 (Bowe)

Perth Scorchers v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Perth Stadium | 18 January 2019
Hobart Hurricanes won by 4 wickets

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES MW Graham-Smith, AK Wilds

POM GJ Bailey (HH)

PERTH SCORCHERS RUNS

CT Bancroft+ c Milenko b Faulkner 0

M Klinger lbw b Faulkner 0

SM Whiteman c Jewell b Moody 68

AJ Turner* b Faulkner 2

HWR Cartwright c Wade b Short 29

AM Hardie run out 8

WG Bosisto c Wade b Moody 3

NM Coulter-Nile not out 31

AJ Tye c Wade b Meredith 25

ML Kelly b Meredith 0

Usman Qadir not out 1

Extras 2lb, 5w, 3nb 10

Total 91 min 20 ov 9-177

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c (sub) b Coulter-Nile 8

DJM Short c Bosisto b Tye 13

CP Jewell c Cartwright b Hardie 32

BR McDermott st Bancroft b Usman 16

GJ Bailey c Bancroft b Tye 69

SA Milenko c Turner b Hardie 2

JP Faulkner not out 28

J Botha not out 4

DJM Moody

JC Archer

RP Meredith

Extras 1b, 1lb, 4w 6

Total 87 min 19.3 ov 6-178

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 4 0 36 3

RP Meredith 4 0 19 2

DJM Moody 4 0 43 2

JC Archer 1.4 0 19 0

J Botha 3 0 26 0

SA Milenko 0.2 0 1 0

DJM Short 3 0 31 1

PERTH SCORCHERS BOWLING O M R W

WG Bosisto 1 0 7 0

NM Coulter-Nile 4 0 23 1

ML Kelly 4 0 39 0

AJ Tye 3.3 0 41 2

AM Hardie 3 0 25 2

Usman Qadir 4 0 41 1

FALL

PERTH SCORCHERS

1-0 (Bancroft), 2-1 (Klinger), 3-7 (Turner), 4-84 (Cartwright), 
5-112 (Hardie), 6-117 (Whiteman), 7-117 (Bosisto), 8-155 (Tye), 
9-155 (Kelly)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-13 (Wade), 2-40 (Short), 3-55 (Jewell), 4-93 (McDermott),  
5-96 (Milenko), 6-153 (Bailey)

Adelaide Strikers v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Adelaide | 21 January 2019
Hobart Hurricanes won by 10 wickets

TOSS Adelaide Strikers

UMPIRES SA Lightbody, P Wilson

POM MS Wade (HH)

ADELAIDE STRIKERS RUNS

AT Carey+ c Botha b Faulkner 28

JB Weatherald c Archer b Meredith 4

MW Short c McDermott b Archer 13

CA Ingram* not out 67

JW Wells c Short b Faulkner 28

Rashid Khan c Meredith b Archer 2

CT Valente not out 4

MG Neser

LN O'Connor

B Stanlake

B Laughlin

Extras 1b, 2lb, 4w, 1nb 8

Total 87 min 20 ov 5-154

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ not out 84

DJM Short not out 73

CP Jewell

BR McDermott

GJ Bailey

SA Milenko

JP Faulkner

J Botha

CA Rose

JC Archer

RP Meredith

Extras 1w 1

Total 67 min 16.5 ov 0-158

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 4 0 24 2

RP Meredith 4 0 39 1

JC Archer 4 0 23 2

CA Rose 4 0 28 0

J Botha 2 0 20 0

DJM Short 2 0 17 0

ADELAIDE STRIKERS BOWLING O M R W

B Stanlake 4 0 37 0

Rashid Khan 4 0 36 0

B Laughlin 2 0 25 0

MG Neser 2 0 19 0

LN O'Connor 2 0 12 0

CT Valente 1 0 12 0

MW Short 1.5 0 17 0

FALL

ADELAIDE STRIKERS

1-6 (Weatherald), 2-44 (Short), 3-50 (Carey), 4-116 (Wells),  
5-123 (Rashid)
HOBART HURRICANES

–

Sydney Sixers v  
Hobart Hurricanes

 Sydney | 23 January 2019
Sydney Sixers won by 9 wickets

TOSS Sydney Sixers

UMPIRES SJ Nogajski, AK Wilds

POM JR Philippe (SS)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Hughes b Abbott 64

DJM Short c Silk b Manenti 32

CP Jewell b Dwarshuis 1

BR McDermott c Abbott b Curran 41

GJ Bailey not out 22

SA Milenko not out 0

JP Faulkner

J Botha

JC Archer

CA Rose

RP Meredith

Extras 1b, 1lb, 9w, 1nb 12

Total 84 min 20 ov 4-172

SYDNEY SIXERS RUNS

DP Hughes c Botha b Faulkner 6

JR Philippe+ not out 86

JM Vince not out 74

MC Henriques*

JC Silk

TK Curran

SA Abbott

SNJ O'Keefe

LAJ Pope

BAD Manenti

BJ Dwarshuis

Extras 1lb, 6w 7

Total 69 min 17.1 ov 1-173

SYDNEY SIXERS BOWLING O M R W

BAD Manenti 4 0 29 1

BJ Dwarshuis 3 0 25 1

SA Abbott 3 0 26 1

TK Curran 4 0 36 1

LAJ Pope 3 0 33 0

SNJ O'Keefe 3 0 21 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 3 0 22 1

RP Meredith 3.1 0 42 0

CA Rose 3 0 40 0

JC Archer 4 0 34 0

DJM Short 2 0 22 0

J Botha 2 0 12 0

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-67 (Short), 2-73 (Jewell), 3-140 (Wade), 4-170 (McDermott)
SYDNEY SIXERS

1-6 (Hughes) 

Melbourne Renegades v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Docklands Stadium | 7 January 2019
Melbourne Renegades won by 6 wickets

TOSS -----------

UMPIRES SA Lightbody, P Wilson

POM SB Harper (MR)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Harper b Richardson 9

DJM Short c and b Usman 2

AJ Doolan c Harper b Richardson 0

BR McDermott c Richardson b Wildermuth 50

GJ Bailey not out 70

SA Milenko c Webster b Richardson 13

JP Faulkner not out 0

J Botha

JC Archer

CA Rose

RP Meredith

Extras 1b 1

Total 85 min 20 ov 5-145

MELBOURNE RENEGADES RUNS

MWG Harvey c Wade b Meredith 7

AJ Finch* run out 42

SB Harper+ lbw b Rose 32

TLW Cooper c Bailey b Botha 14

Mohammad Nabi not out 26

DT Christian not out 25

BJ Webster

CJ Boyce

Usman Shinwari

KW Richardson

JD Wildermuth

Extras 4w 4

Total 82 min 19.2 ov 4-150

MELBOURNE RENEGADES BOWLING O M R W

Usman Shinwari 4 0 24 1

KW Richardson 4 0 38 3

JD Wildermuth 4 0 27 1

CJ Boyce 4 0 28 0

Mohammad Nabi 2 0 13 0

DT Christian 2 0 14 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 3.2 0 29 0

JC Archer 4 0 33 0

RP Meredith 4 0 39 1

J Botha 3 0 28 1

CA Rose 4 0 15 1

DJM Short 1 0 6 0

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-11 (Wade), 2-11 (Doolan), 3-11 (Short), 4-113 (McDermott),  
5-139 (Milenko)
MELBOURNE RENEGADES

1-10 (Harvey), 2-74 (Harper), 3-89 (Finch), 4-117 (Cooper)

5TH MATCH

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Sydney Sixers

Blundstone Arena | 4 January 2019
Hobart Hurricanes won by 5 wickets

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES SA Lightbody, JD Ward

POM DJM Short (HH)

SYDNEY SIXERS RUNS

JL Denly b Botha 10

JJ Avendano c Wade b Botha 5

DP Hughes c McDermott b Botha 61

MC Henriques* run out 31

JC Silk c Bailey b Faulkner 9

JR Philippe+ c Doolan b Archer 11

TK Curran c McDermott b Faulkner 19

SA Abbott c McDermott b Faulkner 7

SNJ O'Keefe not out 5

BJ Dwarshuis not out 0

BAD Manenti

Extras 1lb, 2w 3

Total 85 min 20 ov 8-161

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c O'Keefe b Curran 15

DJM Short b Abbott 64

AJ Doolan c Curran b Abbott 26

BR McDermott c Silk b O'Keefe 10

GJ Bailey c Henriques b Dwarshuis 30

SA Milenko not out 12

JP Faulkner not out 2

J Botha

JC Archer

CA Rose

RP Meredith

Extras 1b, 1lb, 1w 3

Total 93 min 19.5 ov 5-162

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 4 0 36 3

JC Archer 4 0 36 1

J Botha 4 0 22 3

RP Meredith 4 0 30 0

CA Rose 1 0 10 0

DJM Short 3 0 26 0

SYDNEY SIXERS BOWLING O M R W

BAD Manenti 3 0 26 0

BJ Dwarshuis 3.5 0 27 1

TK Curran 4 0 22 1

SNJ O'Keefe 4 0 40 1

SA Abbott 4 0 29 2

JL Denly 1 0 16 0

FALL

SYDNEY SIXERS

1-17 (Denly), 2-27 (Avendano), 3-94 (Henriques), 4-119 (Hughes), 
5-120 (Silk), 6-142 (Philippe), 7-154 (Abbott), 8-156 (Curran)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-32 (Wade), 2-84 (Doolan), 3-111 (Short), 4-132 (McDermott), 
5-158 (Bailey)
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SEMI-FINAL14TH MATCH13TH MATCH12TH MATCH

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Melbourne Renegades 

Blundstone Arena | 7 February 2019
Hobart Hurricanes won by 16 runs

TOSS Melbourne Renegades

UMPIRES SAJ Craig, GC Joshua

POM MS Wade (HH)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Cooper b Richardson 58

DJM Short c Tremain b Richardson 28

CP Jewell c Tremain b Mohammad 4

BR McDermott not out 39

GJ Bailey c Finch b Gurney 9

SA Milenko c Richardson b Gurney 27

JC Archer c Harper b Christian 3

CA Rose not out 8

Qais Ahmad

DJM Moody

RP Meredith

Extras 1lb, 4w, 2nb 7

Total 88 min 20 ov 6-183

MELBOURNE RENEGADES RUNS

MS Harris c Short b Archer 3

AJ Finch* c McDermott b Qais 35

SB Harper+ c McDermott b Short 20

TLW Cooper c Bailey b Qais 44

Mohammad Nabi c Qais b Short 3

DT Christian c Wade b Meredith 15

MWG Harvey c Bailey b Archer 15

CJ Boyce c (sub) b Moody 3

KW Richardson not out 6

CP Tremain not out 1

HF Gurney

Extras 1b, 5lb, 12w, 4nb 22

Total 90 min 20 ov 8-167

MELBOURNE RENEGADES BOWLING O M R W

KW Richardson 4 0 55 2

CP Tremain 1 0 10 0

Mohammad Nabi 4 0 22 1

HF Gurney 4 0 40 2

DT Christian 4 0 34 1

CJ Boyce 3 0 21 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

RP Meredith 3 0 43 1

JC Archer 4 0 19 2

CA Rose 2 0 16 0

DJM Moody 3 0 29 1

Qais Ahmad 4 0 34 2

DJM Short 4 1 20 2

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-87 (Wade), 2-88 (Short), 3-97 (Jewell), 4-123 (Bailey),  
5-154 (Milenko), 6-163 (Archer)
MELBOURNE RENEGADES

1-37 (Harris), 2-72 (Finch), 3-74 (Harper), 4-81 (Mohammad),  
5-124 (Christian), 6-144 (Cooper), 7-158 (Harvey), 8-163 (Boyce)

Sydney Thunder v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Canberra | 9 February 2019
Sydney Thunder won by 4 wickets

TOSS Sydney Thunder

UMPIRES SA Lightbody, P Wilson

POM PJ Cummins (ST)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Gilkes b Cummins 45

DJM Short b Cummins 7

CP Jewell c Watson b Green 7

BR McDermott not out 44

GJ Bailey run out 53

SA Milenko

JC Archer

CA Rose

DJM Moody

RP Meredith

Qais Ahmad

Extras 2lb, 6w, 1nb 9

Total 95 min 19 ov 4-165

SYDNEY THUNDER RUNS

UT Khawaja b Qais 36

SR Watson* c Bailey b Meredith 15

CJ Ferguson b Archer 47

AP Devcich c Qais b Short 4

DR Sams c Milenko b Short 7

MR Gilkes+ lbw b Qais 0

CJ Green not out 34

PJ Cummins not out 10

CJ Jordan

GS Sandhu

Fawad Ahmed

Extras 3b, 2lb, 5w, 3nb 13

Total 88 min 18.2 ov 6-166

SYDNEY THUNDER BOWLING O M R W

CJ Jordan 4 0 34 0

CJ Green 3 0 20 1

PJ Cummins 4 0 28 2

GS Sandhu 3 0 39 0

Fawad Ahmed 4 0 29 0

DR Sams 1 0 13 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

RP Meredith 4 0 52 1

JC Archer 3.2 0 22 1

DJM Moody 1 0 17 0

Qais Ahmad 4 0 22 2

DJM Short 4 0 27 2

CA Rose 2 0 21 0

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-24 (Short), 2-48 (Jewell), 3-71 (Wade), 4-165 (Bailey)
SYDNEY THUNDER

1-23 (Watson), 2-60 (Khawaja), 3-73 (Devcich), 4-85 (Sams),  
5-85 (Gilkes), 6-153 (Ferguson)

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Melbourne Stars

Blundstone Arena | 14 February 2019
Melbourne Stars won by 6 wickets

TOSS Melbourne Stars

UMPIRES SAJ Craig, SJ Nogajski

POM DJ Worrall (MS)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Handscomb b Worrall 2

DJM Short c Gotch b Zampa 35

CP Jewell b Worrall 1

BR McDermott c Maxwell b Bravo 53

GJ Bailey c Maxwell b Worrall 37

SA Milenko lbw b Worrall 3

JP Faulkner run out 4

JC Archer not out 7

CA Rose not out 4

Qais Ahmad

RP Meredith

Extras 3b, 1lb, 3w 7

Total 87 min 20 ov 7-153

MELBOURNE STARS RUNS

BR Dunk c Wade b Archer 9

MP Stoinis b Qais 18

PSP Handscomb+ lbw b Qais 35

NJ Maddinson c Rose b Qais 18

GJ Maxwell* not out 43

SE Gotch not out 33

DJ Bravo

A Zampa

S Lamichhane

DJ Worrall

EP Gulbis

Extras 1w 1

Total 84 min 18.5 ov 4-157

MELBOURNE STARS BOWLING O M R W

GJ Maxwell 3 0 22 0

DJ Worrall 4 0 23 4

S Lamichhane 4 0 31 0

A Zampa 4 0 31 1

DJ Bravo 4 0 32 1

MP Stoinis 1 0 10 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 3.5 0 46 0

JC Archer 4 0 33 1

RP Meredith 4 0 23 0

Qais Ahmad 4 0 33 3

DJM Short 2 0 18 0

CA Rose 1 0 4 0

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-3 (Wade), 2-5 (Jewell), 3-42 (Short), 4-118 (Bailey),  
5-136 (McDermott), 6-138 (Milenko), 7-148 (Faulkner)
MELBOURNE STARS

1-11 (Dunk), 2-52 (Stoinis), 3-78 (Maddinson), 4-85 (Handscomb)
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Hobart Hurricanes v  
Adelaide Strikers

Launceston | 31 January 2019
Adelaide Strikers won by 7 wickets

TOSS Adelaide Strikers

UMPIRES SA Lightbody, JD Ward

POM JB Weatherald (AS)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ lbw b Laughlin 88

DJM Short c Ingram b Laughlin 26

CP Jewell st Carey b Rashid 17

BR McDermott lbw b Rashid 18

GJ Bailey c Laughlin b Neser 0

SA Milenko not out 4

JP Faulkner c Carey b Neser 0

JC Archer c Neser b Laughlin 11

CA Rose

DJM Moody

JA Freeman

Extras 1lb, 2w, 2nb 5

Total 85 min 20 ov 7-169

ADELAIDE STRIKERS RUNS

AT Carey+ c and b Milenko 54

JB Weatherald c Short b Archer 82

JS Lehmann lbw b Freeman 5

CA Ingram* not out 4

JW Wells not out 19

CT Valente

MG Neser

Rashid Khan

WA Agar

HJ Nielsen

B Laughlin

Extras 2lb, 3w, 1nb 6

Total 74 min 17.5 ov 3-170

ADELAIDE STRIKERS BOWLING O M R W

CT Valente 4 0 30 0

MG Neser 4 0 38 2

Rashid Khan 4 0 28 2

WA Agar 3 0 26 0

B Laughlin 4 0 31 3

JS Lehmann 1 0 15 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 3 0 37 0

JA Freeman 2 0 26 1

JC Archer 4 0 32 1

CA Rose 1.5 0 16 0

DJM Short 2 0 15 0

DJM Moody 3 0 23 0

SA Milenko 2 0 19 1

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-59 (Short), 2-114 (Jewell), 3-150 (McDermott), 4-152 (Wade), 
5-157 (Bailey), 6-158 (Faulkner), 7-169 (Archer)
ADELAIDE STRIKERS

1-116 (Carey), 2-145 (Weatherald), 3-146 (Lehmann)

11TH MATCH

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Brisbane Heat

Blundstone Arena | 29 January 2019
Hobart Hurricanes won by 9 wickets

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES SJ Nogajski, JD Ward

POM DJM Short (HH)

BRISBANE HEAT RUNS

MA Bryant c Archer b Faulkner 7

BB McCullum c Bailey b Moody 3

CA Lynn* c Bailey b Archer 10

MT Renshaw c Wade b Archer 0

AI Ross c Wade b Moody 62

JJ Peirson+ b Faulkner 50

BCJ Cutting not out 5

MJ Swepson

Mujeeb Zadran

JK Lalor

BJ Doggett

Extras 1lb, 7w 8

Total 79 min 20 ov 6-145

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

MS Wade*+ c Mujeeb b Cutting 12

DJM Short not out 68

CP Jewell not out 61

BR McDermott

GJ Bailey

SA Milenko

JP Faulkner

CA Rose

JC Archer

JA Freeman

DJM Moody

Extras 5w 5

Total 64 min 14.2 ov 1-146

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

JP Faulkner 4 0 27 2

CA Rose 4 0 20 0

JC Archer 4 0 28 2

DJM Moody 4 0 27 2

JA Freeman 2 0 11 0

DJM Short 2 0 31 0

BRISBANE HEAT BOWLING O M R W

MT Renshaw 2 0 12 0

BCJ Cutting 3 0 29 1

Mujeeb Zadran 4 0 41 0

JK Lalor 2 0 19 0

BJ Doggett 2 0 31 0

MJ Swepson 1.2 0 14 0

FALL

BRISBANE HEAT

1-11 (Bryant), 2-27 (Lynn), 3-27 (Renshaw), 4-27 (McCullum),  
5-136 (Ross), 6-145 (Peirson)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-14 (Wade)
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rebel T20 Women's 
Big Bash League

Hobart Hurricanes 
2018-19 Scorecards

1ST MATCH

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Perth Scorchers

St. Kilda | 1 December 2018
Perth Scorchers won by 6 wickets

TOSS Perth Scorchers

UMPIRES DJ Brigham, DR Close

POM EJ Villani (PS)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

SG Daffara c King b Graham 18

EG Fazackerley run out 38

GP Redmayne+ run out 49

CL Hall lbw b Peschel 0

SK Moloney* c Villani b Graham 22

V Pyke c Lanning b Graham 2

ME Phillips not out 4

RK O'Donnell run out 1

BL Hepburn

KR Fryett

A Hartley

Extras 2b, 7w 9

Total 85 min 20 ov 7-143

PERTH SCORCHERS RUNS

MM Lanning* c Redmayne b Hepburn 8

EJ Villani c Hartley b Moloney 58

NE Bolton c Fazackerley b Phillips 4

HL Graham lbw b Moloney 7

LK Ebsary not out 40

CL Piparo not out 26

EJ Smith+

KL Cross

HM Brennan

TCJ Peschel

EL King

Extras 1lb, 3w 4

Total 76 min 19.3 ov 4-147

PERTH SCORCHERS BOWLING O M R W

HM Brennan 1 0 9 0

NE Bolton 4 0 24 0

KL Cross 4 0 32 0

EL King 4 0 27 0

HL Graham 4 0 25 3

TCJ Peschel 3 0 24 1

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 4 0 28 0

A Hartley 2 0 22 0

BL Hepburn 4 0 31 1

ME Phillips 4 1 28 1

RK O'Donnell 2.3 0 18 0

SK Moloney 3 0 19 2

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-47 (Fazackerley), 2-64 (Daffara), 3-68 (Hall), 4-113 (Moloney), 
5-135 (Pyke), 6-142 (Redmayne), 7-143 (O'Donnell)
PERTH SCORCHERS

1-18 (Lanning), 2-38 (Bolton), 3-67 (Graham), 4-99 (Villani)

2ND MATCH 3RD MATCH 4TH MATCH

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Melbourne Stars

Burnie | 8 December 2018
Melbourne Stars won by 5 wickets

TOSS Melbourne Stars

UMPIRES DR Close, TJ Matibiri

POM EA Osborne (MS)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

EG Fazackerley c Osborne b Hancock 7

SS Mandhana c King b Sutherland 0

HK Matthews c King b Sutherland 18

HC Knight not out 82

SG Daffara c Ferling b King 5

CL Hall b Osborne 26

GP Redmayne+ run out 8

V Pyke not out 6

SK Moloney*

ME Phillips

BL Hepburn

Extras 5w, 1nb 6

Total 76 min 20 ov 6-158

MELBOURNE STARS RUNS

L Lee+ st Redmayne b Phillips 2

AR Reakes c Phillips b Hepburn 15

AM King c Fazackerley b Matthews 3

KM Mack b Matthews 0

EA Osborne* c Knight b Phillips 67

M du Preez not out 59

GA Elwiss not out 3

AJ Sutherland

MA Blows

NM Hancock

HL Ferling

Extras 1b, 1lb, 5w, 3nb 10

Total 80 min 19.5 ov 5-159

MELBOURNE STARS BOWLING O M R W

AJ Sutherland 4 0 30 2

NM Hancock 4 0 48 1

HL Ferling 1 0 7 0

AM King 4 0 24 1

EA Osborne 4 0 20 1

GA Elwiss 3 0 29 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 3 1 14 0

HK Matthews 4 0 23 2

ME Phillips 4 0 37 2

BL Hepburn 3.5 0 27 1

EG Fazackerley 2 0 21 0

HC Knight 2 0 25 0

SK Moloney 1 0 10 0

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-7 (Mandhana), 2-8 (Fazackerley), 3-35 (Matthews),  
4-48 (Daffara), 5-99 (Hall), 6-131 (Redmayne)
MELBOURNE STARS

1-7 (Lee), 2-21 (Reakes), 3-22 (Mack), 4-23 (King), 5-149 (Osborne)

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Melbourne Stars

Burnie | 9 December 2018
Hobart Hurricanes won by 72 runs

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES DR Close, TJ Matibiri

POM SS Mandhana (HH

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

EG Fazackerley c du Preez b Sutherland 6

SS Mandhana c Sutherland b Osborne 69

HK Matthews run out 42

HC Knight c Sutherland b King 23

CL Hall not out 23

SG Daffara c du Preez b King 0

GP Redmayne+ run out 1

SK Moloney* not out 23

V Pyke

ME Phillips

BL Hepburn

Extras 2lb, 4w, 3nb 9

Total 84 min 20 ov 6-196

MELBOURNE STARS RUNS

L Lee+ c Hall b Pyke 12

AR Reakes c (sub) b Phillips 31

KM Mack st Redmayne b Pyke 5

EA Osborne* c Fazackerley b Moloney 16

M du Preez c and b Knight 3

GA Elwiss c Redmayne b Fazackerley 7

AJ Sutherland c Phillips b Knight 23

AM King c Fazackerley b Phillips 9

NM Hancock c and b Knight 1

MA Blows c Phillips b Hepburn 4

HL Ferling not out 3

Extras 9w, 1nb 10

Total 64 min 16.5 ov 124

MELBOURNE STARS BOWLING O M R W

AJ Sutherland 3 0 29 1

HL Ferling 2 0 22 0

EA Osborne 4 0 22 1

GA Elwiss 4 0 43 0

AM King 3 0 22 2

MA Blows 1 0 25 0

NM Hancock 2 0 19 0

AR Reakes 1 0 12 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 2 0 19 2

ME Phillips 3 0 28 2

BL Hepburn 3.5 0 27 1

SK Moloney 3 0 26 1

HC Knight 3 0 10 3

EG Fazackerley 2 0 14 1

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-6 (Fazackerley), 2-104 (Matthews), 3-139 (Mandhana),  
4-157 (Knight), 5-157 (Daffara), 6-160 (Redmayne)
MELBOURNE STARS

1-12 (Lee), 2-50 (Mack), 3-52 (Reakes), 4-65 (du Preez),  
5-77 (Elwiss), 6-90 (Osborne), 7-112 (King), 8-117 (Hancock),  
9-117 (Sutherland), 10-124 (Blows)

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Sydney Sixers

Blundstone Arena | 15 December 2018
Sydney Sixers won by 7 wickets

TOSS Sydney Sixers

UMPIRES G Beechey, TJ Matibiri

POM AK Gardner (SS)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

EG Fazackerley b Kapp 4

SS Mandhana c Healy b Kapp 16

SG Daffara c Healy b Cheatle 27

HC Knight not out 51

CL Hall b van Niekerk 11

SK Moloney* run out 20

GP Redmayne+

V Pyke

ME Phillips

BL Hepburn

A Hartley

Extras 1lb, 2w, 1nb 4

Total 59 min 15 ov 5-133

SYDNEY SIXERS RUNS

AJ Healy+ c Redmayne b Pyke 8

EA Perry* b Hartley 10

AK Gardner not out 79

EA Burns c Hall b Hepburn 43

SJ McGlashan not out 8

D van Niekerk

M Kapp

LG Smith

TB Wilson

HI Silver-Holmes

LR Cheatle

Extras 3lb, 4w 7

Total 61 min 14.4 ov 3-155

SYDNEY SIXERS BOWLING O M R W

M Kapp 3 0 20 2

AK Gardner 1 0 9 0

EA Perry 3 0 42 0

LR Cheatle 2 0 17 1

EA Burns 1 0 10 0

D van Niekerk 3 0 13 1

HI Silver-Holmes 2 0 21 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 1.4 0 14 1

BL Hepburn 3 0 27 1

A Hartley 3 0 25 1

ME Phillips 3 0 46 0

EG Fazackerley 2 0 16 0

HC Knight 2 0 24 0

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-4 (Fazackerley), 2-43 (Mandhana), 3-54 (Daffara), 4-80 (Hall), 
5-133 (Moloney)
SYDNEY SIXERS

1-10 (Healy), 2-58 (Perry), 3-146 (Burns)
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5TH MATCH 6TH MATCH 7TH MATCH

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Sydney Thunder

Canberra | 21 December 2018
Sydney Thunder won by 6 wickets

TOSS Sydney Thunder

UMPIRES DR Close, AR Crozier

POM SR Taylor (ST)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

SS Mandhana c Kaur b Farrell 29

EG Fazackerley b Taylor 35

SG Daffara b Bates 17

HC Knight c Haynes b Taylor 34

CL Hall c Carey b Bates 17

GP Redmayne+ c and b Taylor 0

SK Moloney* c Gibson b Carey 4

V Pyke c Gibson b Farrell 1

RK O'Donnell run out 7

BL Hepburn not out 7

A Hartley

Extras 1lb, 1nb 2

Total 82 min 20 ov 9-153

SYDNEY THUNDER RUNS

RL Haynes c Hall b Pyke 5

RH Priest+ c Hepburn b Knight 40

NE Stalenberg c Hall b Knight 55

H Kaur c Knight b Moloney 13

AJ Blackwell* not out 20

SR Taylor not out 20

RM Farrell

ML Gibson

BW Vakarewa

NJ Carey

SL Bates

Extras  3w 3

Total 70 min 17.2 ov 4-156

SYDNEY THUNDER BOWLING O M R W

RM Farrell 4 0 34 2

BW Vakarewa 3 0 25 0

SR Taylor 4 0 24 3

NJ Carey 3 0 22 1

ML Gibson 3 0 31 0

SL Bates 3 0 16 2

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 2 0 20 1

A Hartley 3 0 30 0

BL Hepburn 3.2 0 24 0

RK O'Donnell 1 0 17 0

EG Fazackerley 2 0 18 0

HC Knight 3 0 25 2

SK Moloney 3 0 22 1

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-43 (Fazackerley), 2-73 (Mandhana), 3-82 (Daffara), 4-128 (Hall), 
5-130 (Redmayne), 6-134 (Knight), 7-136 (Pyke), 8-139 (Moloney), 
9-153 (O'Donnell)
SYDNEY THUNDER

1-6 (Haynes), 2-80 (Priest), 3-111 (Kaur), 4-120 (Stalenberg)

Sydney Sixers v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Blundstone Arena | 16 December 2018
Sydney Sixers won by 17 runs

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES M Qureshi, BC Treloar

POM EA Perry (SS)

SYDNEY SIXERS RUNS

EA Perry* not out 72

AJ Healy+ c Fazackerley b Hepburn 30

AK Gardner c Redmayne b O'Donnell 0

EA Burns c Fazackerley b Knight 44

SJ McGlashan not out 7

D van Niekerk

M Kapp

HI Silver-Holmes

LR Cheatle

LG Smith

TB Wilson

Extras 1lb, 4w 5

Total 77 min 20 ov 3-158

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

EG Fazackerley b Kapp 4

SS Mandhana c Perry b Kapp 21

SG Daffara run out 11

HC Knight c van Niekerk b Cheatle 23

CL Hall lbw b Kapp 0

SK Moloney* c Healy b Smith 7

GP Redmayne+ not out 47

V Pyke c Healy b van Niekerk 7

RK O'Donnell c Healy b Smith 1

BL Hepburn b Kapp 15

A Hartley run out 0

Extras 2lb, 3w 5

Total 81 min 19.1 ov 141

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 3 0 22 0

A Hartley 4 0 35 0

BL Hepburn 4 0 34 1

RK O'Donnell 4 0 27 1

EG Fazackerley 1 0 9 0

HC Knight 4 0 30 1

SYDNEY SIXERS BOWLING O M R W

M Kapp 4 0 27 4

AK Gardner 3 0 34 0

LR Cheatle 3 0 28 1

EA Perry 1.1 0 1 0

D van Niekerk 4 0 29 1

LG Smith 4 0 20 2

FALL

SYDNEY SIXERS

1-39 (Healy), 2-44 (Gardner), 3-148 (Burns)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-4 (Fazackerley), 2-31 (Daffara), 3-38 (Mandhana), 4-41 (Hall), 
5-62 (Moloney), 6-70 (Knight), 7-85 (Pyke), 8-86 (O'Donnell), 
9-141 (Hepburn), 10-141 (Hartley)

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Perth Scorchers

Blundstone Arena | 18 December 2018
Match Tied - Perth Scorchers won by a 'Super Over'

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES TJ Matibiri, M Qureshi

POM HL Graham (PS)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

SS Mandhana c Piparo b Graham 38

EG Fazackerley c Villani b Bolton 36

SG Daffara c Ebsary b Graham 31

HC Knight c Bolton b King 9

CL Hall b Bolton 16

GP Redmayne+ b Bolton 9

SK Moloney* c Graham b Jensen 23

V Pyke not out 9

RK O'Donnell not out 0

BL Hepburn

A Hartley

Extras 1b, 1w 2

Total 80 min 20 ov 7-173

PERTH SCORCHERS RUNS

AE Jones+ c Pyke b Hepburn 21

EJ Villani* c Hall b Moloney 41

NE Bolton lbw b Knight 13

KL Cross c Mandhana b Moloney 16

HL Graham not out 44

LK Ebsary c Hepburn b Hartley 20

HNK Jensen b Hepburn 5

CL Piparo not out 7

HM Brennan

TCJ Peschel

EL King

Extras 1lb, 3w, 2nb 6

Total 78 min 20 ov 6-173

PERTH SCORCHERS BOWLING O M R W

KL Cross 2 0 21 0

HNK Jensen 4 0 40 1

HM Brennan 2 0 10 0

HL Graham 4 0 38 2

EL King 2 0 21 1

TCJ Peschel 2 0 22 0

NE Bolton 4 0 20 3

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 3 0 27 0

A Hartley 4 0 31 1

BL Hepburn 4 0 22 2

RK O'Donnell 1 0 22 0

HC Knight 4 0 37 1

EG Fazackerley 1 0 7 0

SK Moloney 3 0 26 2

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-59 (Mandhana), 2-80 (Fazackerley), 3-114 (Knight),  
4-124 (Daffara), 5-141 (Hall), 6-142 (Redmayne), 7-169 (Moloney)
PERTH SCORCHERS

1-38 (Jones), 2-55 (Bolton), 3-95 (Villani), 4-96 (Cross),  
5-121 (Ebsary), 6-136 (Jensen)

8TH MATCH 9TH MATCH 10TH MATCH

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Sydney Thunder

Homebush | 24 December 2018
Sydney Thunder won by 6 wickets

TOSS Sydney Thunder

UMPIRES AR Hamilton, RM Nelson

POM RL Haynes (ST)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

SS Mandhana b Carey 35

EG Fazackerley c Gibson b Farrell 0

SG Daffara lbw b Gibson 26

HC Knight run out 35

MC Hinkley c Priest b Griffith 5

CL Hall b Taylor 2

GP Redmayne+ run out 17

SK Moloney* b Bates 2

ME Phillips lbw b Farrell 1

BL Hepburn run out 4

A Hartley not out 0

Extras 3lb, 5w 8

Total 79 min 19.4 ov 135

SYDNEY THUNDER RUNS

RH Priest+ c Moloney b Phillips 22

RL Haynes not out 68

NE Stalenberg b Hepburn 19

H Kaur b Knight 14

AJ Blackwell* c Daffara b Fazackerley 5

SR Taylor not out 2

NJ Carey

RM Farrell

SL Bates

ML Gibson

L Griffith

Extras 5w, 1nb 6

Total 65 min 16.4 ov 4-136

SYDNEY THUNDER BOWLING O M R W

RM Farrell 3.4 0 20 2

SR Taylor 4 0 29 1

NJ Carey 4 0 39 1

L Griffith 3 0 17 1

ML Gibson 3 0 13 1

SL Bates 2 0 14 1

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

SK Moloney 2 0 21 0

EG Fazackerley 3 0 26 1

ME Phillips 2.4 0 30 1

BL Hepburn 3 0 13 1

A Hartley 3 0 28 0

HC Knight 3 0 18 1

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-1 (Fazackerley), 2-53 (Mandhana), 3-74 (Daffara), 4-86 (Hinkley), 
5-90 (Hall), 6-127 (Redmayne), 7-129 (Knight), 8-130 (Moloney), 
9-135 (Hepburn), 10-135 (Phillips)
SYDNEY THUNDER

1-33 (Priest), 2-77 (Stalenberg), 3-109 (Kaur), 4-116 (Blackwell)

Hobart Hurricanes v  
Brisbane Heat

Launceston | 30 December 2018
Hobart Hurricanes won by 5 wickets

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES DR Close, TJ Matibiri

POM CL Hall (HH)

BRISBANE HEAT RUNS

GM Harris c Knight b Phillips 23

BL Mooney+ c Hinkley b Hartley 13

SJ Johnson c Phillips b Moloney 10

KLH Short* b Hepburn 19

JL Jonassen c Knight b Hartley 8

JE Dooley b Moloney 8

LM Harris c Mandhana b Phillips 16

DM Kimmince c Hall b Hepburn 4

L Wolvaardt c Redmayne b Knight 13

JL Barsby c Hall b Phillips 9

HP Birkett not out 2

Extras 1lb, 2w, 1nb 4

Total 78 min 19 ov 129

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

SS Mandhana c Mooney b GM Harris 6

EG Fazackerley c Short b Kimmince 17

SG Daffara lbw b GM Harris 0

HC Knight c and b Kimmince 4

CL Hall st Mooney b GM Harris 48

MC Hinkley not out 45

GP Redmayne+ not out 2

SK Moloney*

ME Phillips

A Hartley

BL Hepburn

Extras 1lb, 10w 11

Total 76 min 18.2 ov 5-133

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

A Hartley 4 0 21 2

BL Hepburn 3 0 22 2

EG Fazackerley 2 0 24 0

ME Phillips 4 0 16 3

SK Moloney 2 0 22 2

HC Knight 4 0 23 1

BRISBANE HEAT BOWLING O M R W

SJ Johnson 3.2 0 17 0

JL Jonassen 4 0 33 0

DM Kimmince 3 0 31 2

GM Harris 4 0 23 3

JL Barsby 3 0 21 0

HP Birkett 1 0 7 0

FALL

BRISBANE HEAT

1-36 (GM Harris), 2-48 (Johnson), 3-50 (Mooney), 4-65 (Jonassen), 
5-77 (Dooley), 6-97 (Short), 7-101 (Kimmince), 8-107 (LM Harris), 
9-124 (Wolvaardt), 10-129 (Barsby)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-22 (Mandhana), 2-22 (Daffara), 3-28 (Knight),  
4-29 (Fazackerley), 5-127 (Hall)

Brisbane Heat v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Launceston | 31 December 2018
Brisbane Heat won by 58 runs

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES DR Close, M Qureshi

POM GM Harris (BH)

BRISBANE HEAT RUNS

GM Harris st Redmayne b Knight 32

BL Mooney+ run out 18

SJ Johnson c Daffara b Phillips 10

KLH Short* c Moloney b Knight 8

JL Jonassen c Knight b Pyke 15

JE Dooley not out 44

LM Harris c Mandhana b Pyke 1

DM Kimmince c Hepburn b Phillips 2

L Wolvaardt c Moloney b Phillips 0

JL Barsby not out 1

HP Birkett

Extras 5w, 1nb 7

Total 75 min 20 ov 8-138

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

SG Daffara lbw b Jonassen 8

SS Mandhana c Mooney b Jonassen 3

MC Hinkley c Dooley b GM Harris 16

HC Knight run out 2

CL Hall c Mooney b Birkett 4

GP Redmayne+ c Kimmince b Johnson 9

SK Moloney* c GM Harris b Johnson 13

V Pyke c Wolvaardt b Kimmince 6

ME Phillips b Barsby 8

BL Hepburn not out 1

A Hartley c Mooney b Barsby 0

Extras 2lb, 7w, 1nb] 10

Total 63 min 16.3 ov 80

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

A Hartley 3 0 31 0

BL Hepburn 4 0 32 0

V Pyke 3 0 17 2

ME Phillips 4 0 22 3

SK Moloney 2 0 14 0

HC Knight 4 0 21 2

BRISBANE HEAT BOWLING O M R W

SJ Johnson 3 0 14 2

JL Jonassen 3 0 11 2

GM Harris 3 0 8 1

DM Kimmince 2 0 19 1

JL Barsby 2.3 0 15 2

HP Birkett 3 0 11 1

FALL

BRISBANE HEAT

1-56 (GM Harris), 2-57 (Mooney), 3-73 (Johnson), 4-78 (Short), 
5-112 (Jonassen), 6-114 (LM Harris), 7-123 (Kimmince),  
8-124 (Wolvaardt)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-6 (Mandhana), 2-13 (Daffara), 3-15 (Knight), 4-35 (Hall),  
5-40 (Hinkley), 6-62 (Moloney), 7-62 (Redmayne), 8-78 (Pyke), 
9-80 (Phillips), 10-80 (Hartley)
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11TH MATCH 12TH MATCH 13TH MATCH

Adelaide Strikers v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Karen Rolton Oval Adelaide | 9 January 2019
Adelaide Strikers won by 24 runs

TOSS Adelaide Strikers

UMPIRES E Sheridan, C Thomas

POM TM McGrath (AS)

ADELAIDE STRIKERS RUNS

SW Bates* lbw b Knight 36

SFM Devine c Hall b Pyke 40

TM McGrath b Hepburn 65

BE Patterson c Redmayne b Knight 2

TJ McPharlin+ not out 18

M Schutt st Redmayne b Hepburn 0

SM Betts not out 1

AJ Wellington

SJ Coyte

D Hazell

AE Price

Extras 2b, 1lb 3

Total 74 min 20 ov 5-165

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

SS Mandhana c Wellington b Hazell 7

GP Redmayne+ c McPharlin b Devine 24

HC Knight c Devine b Price 55

CL Hall c Betts b Schutt 11

SG Daffara not out 24

V Pyke c Betts b Price 2

A Day c Bates b Schutt 9

SK Moloney* lbw b Schutt 0

ME Phillips c McGrath b Wellington 1

BL Hepburn run out 1

A Hartley not out 2

Extras 1lb, 4w 5

Total 79 min 20 ov 9-141

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

A Hartley 4 0 43 0

V Pyke 3 0 17 1

ME Phillips 4 0 34 0

BL Hepburn 4 0 34 2

HC Knight 4 0 31 2

SK Moloney 1 0 3 0

ADELAIDE STRIKERS BOWLING O M R W

D Hazell 4 0 17 1

SJ Coyte 3 0 27 0

M Schutt 4 0 21 3

SFM Devine 2 0 15 1

AJ Wellington 4 0 29 1

AE Price 2 0 10 2

SM Betts 1 0 21 0

FALL

ADELAIDE STRIKERS

1-61 (Devine), 2-88 (Bates), 3-90 (Patterson), 4-163 (McGrath), 
5-163 (Schutt)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-18 (Mandhana), 2-49 (Redmayne), 3-89 (Hall), 4-99 (Knight), 
5-109 (Pyke), 6-132 (Day), 7-133 (Moloney), 8-134 (Phillips),  
9-136 (Hepburn)

Melbourne Renegades v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Geelong | 3 January 2018
Melbourne Renegades won by 5 wickets

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES D Ireland, DJ Shepard

POM SG Molineux (MR)

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

SS Mandhana c Brown b Molineux 16

EG Fazackerley c Satterthwaite b Tahuhu 8

HC Knight b Tahuhu 19

GP Redmayne+ lbw b Wareham 1

SK Moloney* b Brown 2

MC Hinkley c Molineux b Strano 8

CL Hall not out 37

BL Hepburn c Brown b Molineux 9

RK O'Donnell run out 0

ME Phillips not out 9

KR Fryett

Extras 2b, 4w 6

Total 76 min 20 ov 8-115

MELBOURNE RENEGADES RUNS

SG Molineux c Phillips b O'Donnell 20

DN Wyatt c Mandhana b Moloney 14

AE Satterthwaite* st Redmayne b Moloney 28

JE Duffin c Knight b Moloney 2

CJ Koski lbw b Fryett 18

CA Webb not out 22

EJ Inglis+ not out 7

MJ Brown

MR Strano

GL Wareham

LMM Tahuhu

Extras 8w 8

Total 72 min 18.1 ov 5-119

MELBOURNE RENEGADES BOWLING O M R W

LMM Tahuhu 4 0 28 2

MR Strano 4 0 14 1

SG Molineux 4 0 22 2

GL Wareham 4 0 21 1

MJ Brown 3 0 18 1

AE Satterthwaite 1 0 10 0

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

RK O'Donnell 1 0 23 1

BL Hepburn 4 0 26 0

HC Knight 4 0 24 0

ME Phillips 3.1 0 14 0

SK Moloney 4 0 20 3

EG Fazackerley 1 0 7 0

KR Fryett 1 0 5 1

FALL

HOBART HURRICANES

1-9 (Fazackerley), 2-37 (Mandhana), 3-40 (Redmayne),  
4-45 (Moloney), 5-52 (Knight), 6-62 (Hinkley), 7-82 (Hepburn), 
8-83 (O'Donnell)
MELBOURNE RENEGADES

1-23 (Molineux), 2-45 (Wyatt), 3-52 (Duffin), 4-87 (Koski),  
5-102 (Satterthwaite)

Adelaide Strikers v  
Hobart Hurricanes

Karen Rolton Oval Adelaide | 8 January 2019
Match Tied - Adelaide Strikers won by a 'Super Over'

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES H Singh, C Thomas

POM SFM Devine (AS)

ADELAIDE STRIKERS RUNS

SW Bates* c Knight b Hepburn 6

SFM Devine not out 99

TM McGrath st Redmayne b Knight 63

BE Patterson run out 10

M Schutt c Redmayne b Moloney 0

TJ McPharlin+ c Fazackerley b Hepburn 7

SM Betts not out 0

AJ Wellington

SJ Coyte

D Hazell

AE Price

Extras 3w, 1nb 4

Total 75 min 20 ov 5-189

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

SS Mandhana c McPharlin b Schutt 52

EG Fazackerley c McGrath b Coyte 4

SG Daffara lbw b Hazell 0

HC Knight c Bates b Coyte 9

CL Hall lbw b Wellington 21

GP Redmayne+ not out 54

SK Moloney* run out 23

V Pyke st McPharlin b Coyte 12

BL Hepburn run out 0

KR Fryett not out 5

A Hartley

Extras 1b, 2lb, 6w 9

Total 82 min 20 ov 8-189

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

V Pyke 3 0 21 0

A Hartley 4 0 25 0

BL Hepburn 4 0 28 2

SK Moloney 3 0 32 1

KR Fryett 2 0 34 0

HC Knight 4 0 49 1

ADELAIDE STRIKERS BOWLING O M R W

D Hazell 3 0 31 1

M Schutt 3 0 35 1

SJ Coyte 4 0 32 3

SFM Devine 1 0 12 0

AE Price 2 0 19 0

AJ Wellington 4 0 26 1

SM Betts 2 0 23 0

TM McGrath 1 0 8 0

FALL

ADELAIDE STRIKERS

1-17 (Bates), 2-122 (McGrath), 3-141 (Patterson), 4-141 (Schutt), 
5-158 (McPharlin)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-25 (Fazackerley), 2-47 (Daffara), 3-65 (Mandhana),  
4-69 (Knight), 5-101 (Hall), 6-159 (Moloney), 7-182 (Pyke),  
8-182 (Hepburn)

14TH MATCH

Melbourne Renegades v  
Hobart Hurricanes

St. Kilda | 12 January 2019
Melbourne Renegades won by 3 runs

TOSS Hobart Hurricanes

UMPIRES G Azzopardi, D Ireland

POM AE Satterthwaite (MR)

MELBOURNE RENEGADES RUNS

SG Molineux run out 18

DN Wyatt c Redmayne b Hartley 0

AE Satterthwaite* b Pyke 66

EJ Inglis+ b Hartley 1

JE Duffin c Knight b Hartley 30

CA Webb st Redmayne b Hepburn 9

CJ Koski not out 6

MJ Brown not out 3

MR Strano

GL Wareham

LMM Tahuhu

Extras 5b, 8w 13

Total 75 min 20 ov 6-146

HOBART HURRICANES RUNS

SS Mandhana st Inglis b Wareham 26

EG Fazackerley b Tahuhu 52

GP Redmayne+ lbw b Molineux 1

HC Knight c Molineux b Brown 28

CL Hall not out 13

V Pyke run out 4

SK Moloney* c Brown b Strano 7

A Day not out 0

A Hartley

BL Hepburn

RK O'Donnell

Extras 4b, 7lb, 1w, 12

Total 82 min 20 ov 6-143

HOBART HURRICANES BOWLING O M R W

A Hartley 4 0 21 3

V Pyke 4 0 26 1

BL Hepburn 4 0 32 1

SK Moloney 3 0 19 0

RK O'Donnell 1 0 19 0

HC Knight 4 0 24 0

MELBOURNE RENEGADES BOWLING O M R W

MR Strano 4 0 29 1

LMM Tahuhu 4 0 18 1

SG Molineux 4 0 27 1

MJ Brown 3 0 26 1

GL Wareham 4 1 23 1

AE Satterthwaite 1 0 9 0

FALL

MELBOURNE RENEGADES

1-1 (Wyatt), 2-55 (Molineux), 3-57 (Inglis), 4-103 (Duffin),  
5-127 (Webb), 6-139 (Satterthwaite)
HOBART HURRICANES

1-57 (Mandhana), 2-60 (Redmayne), 3-106 (Fazackerley),  
4-126 (Knight), 5-133 (Pyke), 6-142 (Moloney)

1ST MATCH

Australia v South Africa

Blundstone Arena | 11 November 2018 | South Africa won by 40 runs

TOSS Australia

UMPIRES Aleem Dar, P Wilson

POM DA Miller (RSA)

SOUTH AFRICA RUNS

Q de Kock+ c Carey b Starc 4

RR Hendricks c Carey b Stoinis 8

AK Markram c Carey b Starc 32

F du Plessis* c Marsh b Stoinis 125

DA Miller c Finch b Hazlewood 139

H Klaasen not out 1

D Pretorius not out 1

Imran Tahir

DW Steyn

K Rabada

LT Ngidi

Extras 1b, 2lb, 7w 10

Total 227 min 50 ov 5-320

AUSTRALIA RUNS

CA Lynn c de Kock b Steyn 0

AJ Finch* c Rabada b Ngidi 11

SE Marsh c Klaasen b Pretorius 106

TM Head c Markram b Rabada 6

MP Stoinis c Markram b Pretorius 63

AT Carey+ c de Kock b Steyn 42

GJ Maxwell c Hendricks b Steyn 35

PJ Cummins not out 7

MA Starc c and b Rabada 0

A Zampa c du Plessis b Rabada 0

JR Hazlewood not out 0

Extras 2lb, 8w 10

Total 217 min 50 ov 9-280

AUSTRALIA BOWLING O M R W

MA Starc 10 1 57 2

JR Hazlewood 10 1 53 1

PJ Cummins 10 2 67 0

MP Stoinis 7 0 70 2

A Zampa 6 0 32 0

GJ Maxwell 7 0 38 0

SOUTH AFRICA BOWLING O M R W

DW Steyn 10 0 45 3

LT Ngidi 10 0 56 1

K Rabada 10 3 40 3

Imran Tahir 7 0 58 0

D Pretorius 10 0 61 2

AK Markram 3 0 18 0

FALL

SOUTH AFRICA

1-4 (de Kock), 2-26 (Hendricks), 3-55 (Markram),  
4-307 (du Plessis), 5-318 (Miller)
AUSTRALIA

1-1 (Lynn), 2-18 (Finch), 3-39 (Head), 4-146 (Stoinis),  
5-226 (Marsh), 6-256 (Carey), 7-278 (Maxwell), 8-278 (Starc), 
9-278 (Zampa)

One Day International
Australia 2018-19 Scorecards
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance and establishing accountability of the Board.

The Board is satisfied with Cricket Tasmania’s corporate governance framework. These policies and practices will ensure 
the continued effective management and operation of Cricket Tasmania.

Cricket Tasmania’s corporate governance policies centre on the Board, the Board Committees and the principles that 
govern their interaction with, and oversight of, management.

Cricket Tasmania’s corporate governance framework, policies and practices will remain under regular review as 
expectations and requirements develop to ensure Cricket Tasmania complies with better practices.

Risk Management Statement

Cricket Tasmania operates under a general risk management framework that encompasses the required activities of risk 
determination, risk recognition, risk assessment, risk management approaches and the ongoing review of risk mitigating 
outcomes across Cricket Tasmania’s operations. These processes are consolidated into an Enterprise Risk Management 
framework, which includes:

�� A Board approved risk assessment process based on assessing the likelihood and consequence of identified risks 
occurring;

�� A senior management assessment of the Company’s risk profile using the Board approved process;

�� The generation of a Risk Register flowing from this assessment, including control effectiveness ratings of mitigation 
approaches; and

�� A Board approved Risk Management Policy Statement setting out the responsibilities and ongoing reporting structures 
pursuant to these risk assessment outcomes.

This framework has recently been reviewed in detail. The continued refinement and ongoing review of these features occurs 
under the oversight of the Risk and Compliance Committee. Particular focuses in this regard include:

�� The financial risk management practices undertaken pursuant to the financial risk management policy;

�� The operation and reporting structures of Cricket Tasmania’s Risk and Compliance Committee in relation to the risk 
associated with the legislative and regulatory requirements of Cricket Tasmania operations;

�� The change management, standard operating environment, and security policy processes and practices that, along 
with other technology related risk management structures, reflect the risk management approach to Cricket Tasmania’s 
technology infrastructure;

�� An extensive annually determined insurance program constructed to cover insurable risks to the extent that the coverage 
is effective and efficient; and

�� Ongoing assessments of the level of achievement of this risk management approach are undertaken by the Risk and 
Compliance Committee.

For the current reporting period, the Chief Executive and the Head of Finance have made statements in accordance with 
Recommendations 4.1 and 7.2 of the Corporate Governance ASX Practices and Best Practice Recommendations.

Directors’ Report

The directors of Cricket Tasmania submit herewith the annual financial report for the financial year ended 30 June 2019. In 
order to comply with the provisions of the Corporations Act 2001, the directors report as follows:

The names and particulars of the directors of the company during or since the end of the financial year are:

A.I. Gaggin, LLB, Chairman, elected as a Director in 2003; 
Partner of Murdoch Clarke, Barristers and Solicitors; over 
25 years’ experience as a litigation lawyer; served on 
Executive Committee, Finance Committee, Chair of the 
Cricket Committee and Chair of the Marketing Committee.

C.P. Mitchell, CA, B.Comm, appointed as a Director 
in 2004, appointed as Deputy Chairman in July 2018; 
President of Cricket North West for ten seasons (2004 
-2014). Former Partner of Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd; a 
chartered accountant with over 30 years’ experience in 
professional public practice. Director of Finn Business 
Sales Tasmania. Chair of Finance Committee. Life Member 
of Cricket North West.

J.M.Bailey, MBA, MAICD, appointed as a Director in 
February 2015; elected in September 2015; Director of 
Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens; a Certified Practicing 
Marketer with over 25 years’ experience in strategic 
marketing, communications, stakeholder engagement 
and event manage ment across private and public sector; 
past President of Australia Marketing Institute (Tas); 
Chair of Membership Committee, served on Marketing & 
Commercial Committee and Risk & Compliance Committee.

D.C. Boon, appointed as a Director in December 2013, 
and elected in 2014; General Manager – Marketing & 
Media at Cricket Tasmania 1999 – 2004; General Manager 
– Cricket Operations at Cricket Tasmania 2004 – 2011; 
ICC International Match Referee 2011 – current; former 
Tasmanian First Class Cricketer; former Australian 
International Cricketer; Durham County Cricket Club 1997 
– 1999; MBE 1993; Member of the St Michael’s Collegiate 
Foundation 2005 – 2009; Patron for Australian Cricket 
Society Tasmanian Branch; Ambassador for the Australian 
Childhood Foundation; served on Cricket Committee.

P.T. Clark, NTCA President and appointed Cricket 
Tasmania Director 2012. Represented Tasmania Colts, 
Grade Cricket and First Class Umpire with over 50 years 
continuous service to cricket. Northern Tasmania’s Umpire 
Adviser for 15 years. Served on Executive Committee and 
Risk & Compliance Committee.

D.G. Davey, FAICD, elected as a Director in September 
2016; over 30 years’ experience in Financial Services 
Industry, now retired; Royal Tasmanian Botanical 
Gardens Board Member 2015-2018; currently serving on 
Premier League Committee, Membership Committee, 
and Finance Committee.

B.J. Jefferies, BEc, DipFP, DipBus, appointed as a Director 
in February 2009, and elected in September 2010; 
Practice Administration for Back in Motion Health Group; 
24 years’ experience in financial services, marketing 
and management; served on the Risk & Compliance 
Committee and Cricket Committee; Chair of the Premier 
League Committee.

R.E.GKemp, BA, GradCertMktg, MAICD; appointed as 
a Director in March 2015, Executive Director at Evans 
& Partners; over 25 years’ experience in investment 
management, marketing consulting and heavy industry 
and manufacturing. Member of the Finance Committee.

B.S. Targett, B.Bus, GAICD, appointed as a Director in 
September 2016; Director of the Tourism Industry Council 
of Tasmania (TICT), Managing Director of THN Hospitality 
Pty Ltd, CEO of The Old Woolstore Apartment Hotel 
and Hadley's Orient Hotel, former Senior Advisor to the 
Premier and Minister for Tourism, Hospitality, Events and 
Sport & Recreation, start-up CEO of Destination Southern 
Tasmania, CT Director 2008-2014 and Tasmanian First 
Class player. Served on the CT Risk & Compliance 
Committee (Chair), CT Marketing Committee and CT 
Cricket Committee.

E.G Johannes, appointed Director in July 2018. Director 
of Gregj23 Pty Ltd, working in the areas of governance, 
strategy and leadership. Fifteen years’ experience in the 
Tasmanian State Service, including more than three years 
as Secretary of the Department of Premier and Cabinet. 
Resigned as a Director in August 2018.

J.Hartnett, Bachelor of Science and Bachelor of Laws 
(Hons), appointed as a director in December 2018; a 
practising legal practitioner for 20 years, currently the 
Assistant Director of Public Prosecutions. On the panel 
and later Deputy Chair of the Premier League Judiciary 
panel for 6 years.

N. J. Turner, appointed as a Director in 2018; Executive 
Chairman of Corporate Communications (Tas) Pty Ltd; 
Chairman of Queen Vic Care; a former journalist with the 
Mercury newspaper, a communication professional with 
more than 30 years’ experience.

The above named directors held office during and since 
the end of the financial year.

2018-19 Financial Statements
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Directors’ Meetings

The following tables set out the number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) 
held during the financial year and the number of meetings attended by each director (while they were a director 
or committee member).

Directors
Board of Directors

Finance, Audit & 
Remuneration Committee

Executive  
Committee

Marketing & Commercial 
Committee

Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended

A.I. Gaggin 12 12 8 7 1 1

J.M. Bailey 12 11 1 1

D.C. Boon 12 4

P.T. Clark 12 8

D.G. Davey 12 10 8 5

B.S. Targett 12 11 1 1

B.J. Jefferies 12 12

E. Kemp 12 10 8 5

C.P. Mitchell 12 12 8 8

J.Hartnett 6 3

N.Turner 6 3

E.G. Johannes 1 1

Directors

Risk & Compliance 
Committee

Premier League  
Committee

Cricket  
Committee

Membership  
Committee

Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended

A.I. Gaggin 3 3

J.M. Bailey 4 4 4 4

D.C. Boon 3 1

P.T. Clark

D.G.Davey 7 6 4 4

B.S. Targett 4 4 3 3

B.J. Jefferies 4 4 7 5 3 3

E. Kemp

C.P. Mitchell

J.Hartnett

N.Turner

Company Secretary

N.W.R. Cummins, BA, appointed as Cricket Tasmania 
Chief Executive in April 2017 after previously being 
employed as General Manager Sydney Thunder at the 
New South Wales Cricket Association; 22 years in sports 
management including senior marketing roles at Fosters 
Group, Ford Australia and Betfair; served on Marketing 
& Commercial Committee, and Finance, Audit & 
Remuneration Committee.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of Cricket Tasmania in the course 
of the year were the administration of State cricket, 
promoting and conducting the game of cricket generally 
and the coaching of junior cricketers.

Changes in State of Affairs

During the financial year there was no significant change 
in the state of affairs of Cricket Tasmania other than that 
referred to in the financial statements or notes thereto.

Objectives of the Company

The short and long term objectives of the Company 
centre around the administration, development and 
promotion the game of Cricket in Tasmania. These 
objectives are reviewed and measured on a regular 
basis, and are the framework of Cricket Tasmania’s 
strategic plan.

Subsequent Events

There has not been any matter or circumstance, other 
than that referred to in the financial statements or notes 
thereto, that has arisen since the end of the financial 
year, that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect, the operations of the company, the results of 
those operations, or the state of affairs of the company 
in future financial years.

Future Developments

Disclosure of information regarding likely developments 
in the operations of Cricket Tasmania in future financial 
years and the expected results of those operations is 
disclosed in this report where appropriate.

Officers and Auditors Indemnification

During the financial year, Cricket Tasmania paid a 
premium in respect of a contract insuring the directors 
of Cricket Tasmania and all executive officers of the 
Association against a liability incurred as such a director, 
or executive officer to the extent permitted by the 
Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance 
prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability and 
the amount of the premium. Cricket Tasmania has 
not otherwise, during or since the financial year, 
indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer or 
auditor of the Association against a liability incurred 
as such an officer or auditor.

Review of Operations

Cricket Tasmania is the administrative body for the game 
in Tasmania. This includes game development, high 
performance and the general promotion and growth of 
Cricket to all Tasmanians. In addition to administering 
the game, Cricket Tasmania holds a long term lease 
with the Clarence City Council for Blundstone Arena. 
Blundstone Arena plays host to international and 
domestic cricket and AFL Football as well as a host of 
other sporting and community organisations and events.

Cricket Tasmania’s vision is to be Tasmania’s favourite 
sport, a sport for all Tasmanians. This vision is 
underpinned by 6 strategic objectives identified in 
Cricket Tasmania’s 2017-2022 Strategic Plan:

�� Venue – maximise revenue return

�� Governance – stable, quality Board and Management

�� Finance – solid financial footing, full commercial 
value realised

�� Performance – best practice program, winning teams, 
destination Association

�� Female Friendly – improved facilities, 
increased participation

�� Tasmania’s Team – the leading sport in the state, 
engaged fans statewide

The final net result for the year was a surplus of 
$906,383 compared with a deficit of $1,645,367 in 2018. 
In 2019 the following two transactions were brought 
to account. A $2,000,000 retrospective grant for 
the development of the High-Performance Centre in 
Blundstone Arena was received from Cricket Australia. 
The Commissioner of the Tasmanian State Revenue 
Office handed down a determination regards Payroll Tax 
Grouping with Cricket Australia which cost $719,736. 
The operating surplus excluding these two transactions 
before depreciation and deferred grant income was an 
operating surplus of $280,122.

The 2020 financial year will again see the return of 
International One Day Cricket to Tasmania, with Australia 
playing New Zealand in March 2020. The Hurricanes 
mens play 2 fixtures in Launceston and 1 fixture in Alice 
Springs, while the Hurricanes womens play 1 fixture in 
Launceston and 2 fixtures in Burnie as part of the Big 
Bash regional expansion and a focus on the Hurricanes 
as Tasmania’s team. Blundstone Arena will also continue 
to host AFL Matches and other major events for Cricket 
Tasmania’s members. Cricket Tasmania will continue 
to invest in the game in Tasmania, with a focus on 
participation as the Association strives to meet its vision 
as Tasmania’s favourite sport.

Directors' Remuneration

Total amount paid to directors for the year ended  
30 June 2019 was Nil (2018: Nil).

Dividends

No dividends have been nor are permitted to be paid.

Member Contribution

If the Company is wound up, each full member, other 
than an Honorary Life Member, is required to contribute 
a maximum of $2.10 towards meeting outstanding 
obligations of the Company. The total amount full 
members would be required to contribute is $2,761.

Auditors Independence Declaration

The auditor’s independence declaration is included in 
page 5 of the financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board, 
made pursuant to s.298 (2) of the Corporations Act 2001. 
On behalf on the directors

A I GAGGIN 
Director  
HOBART 
19 August 2019
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

The directors declare that:

a) 	 in the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as 
and when they become due and payable;

b}	 in the directors' opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the Corporations 
Act 2001, including compliance with accounting standards and giving a true and fair view of the financial position 
and performance of the company.

Signed for and on behalf of the Board of Management and in accordance with a resolution of the Board, made pursuant 
to s.295 (5) of the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the Directors

A I GAGGIN 
Director  
HOBART 
19 August 2019
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Income Statement 
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019

 
Note

2019 2018

$ $

Revenue 2 28,755,862 24,367,354

Marketing Expenses (833,602) (812,049)

Match Expenses (2,429,181) (1,991,784)

Catering Expenses (1,627,744) (1,562,008)

State Team Expenses (10,013,893) (10,090,663)

Club Cricket Expenses (1,198,317) (940,819)

Game Development Expenses (2,832,247) (2,734,466)

Oval Operations (1,957,844) (1,986,461)

Administration Expenses (6,991,790) (5,836,766)

Finance Costs 35,139 (57,705)

Profit/(Loss) for the Year 906,383 (1,645,367)

Attributable to: Members of the Company 906,383 (1,645,367)

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note
2019 2018

$ $

Profit/(Loss) for the Year 906,383 (1,645,367)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 906,383 (1,645,367)

Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to: Members of the Company 906,383 (1,645,367)

Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2019

 
Note

2019 2018

 $ $

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 19(a) 26,946 13,633

Trade and Other Receivables 5 703,666 868,350

Prepayments 6 76,459 154,320

Inventories 7 186,927 136,023

Investments 8 - 2,004,884

Total Current Assets 993,998 3,177,210

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 14 45,910,553 47,561,829

Work in Progress 4,362 - 

Total Non-Current Assets 45,914,915 47,561,829

Total Assets 46,908,913 50,739,039

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 9 3,322,814 1,978,745

Provisions 11(a) 392,517 506,437

Deferred Revenue 10(a) 1,245,130 1,234,794

Borrowings 12(a) 377,341 1,832,487

Total Current Liabilities 5,337,802 5,552,463

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions 11(b) 133,804 99,586

Deferred Revenue 10(b) 31,172,681 32,425,282

Borrowings 12(b) 1,562,155 4,865,620

Total Non-Current Liabilities 32,868,640 37,390,488

Total Liabilities 38,206,442 42,942,951

Net Assets 8,702,471 7,796,088

Equity

Reserves 15 501,407 501,407

Retained Earnings 16 8,201,064 7,294,681

Total Equity 8,702,471 7,796,088

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 123 to 134 Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 123 to 134



Standards and Interpretations issued 
not yet effective

AASB 16 provides a comprehensive model for the 
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in 
the financial statements for both lessors and lessees. AASB 
16 will supersede the current lease guidance including AASB 
117 Leases and the related Interpretations when it becomes 
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2019. The date of initial application of AASB 16 for 
the Company will be 1 July 2019. AASB 16 will change how the 
Company accounts for leases previously classified as operating 
leases under AASB 117, which were off-balance sheet. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity  
as at 30 June 2019

Junior 
Development Fund

General  
Reserve

Retained  
Earnings

Total

Balance at 1 July 2017 1,407 500,000 8,940,048 9,441,455

Profit/(Loss) for the Year - - (1,645,367) (1,645,367)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  - - (1,645,367) (1,645,367)

Balance at 30 June 2018  1,407 500,000 7,294,681 7,294,681

Profit/(Loss) for the Year - - 906,383 906,383

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  - - 906,383 906,383

Balance at 30 June 2019  1,407 500,000 8,201,064 8,702,471

Statement of Cash Flows  
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note
2019 2018

$ $

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from Operations 27,179,613 24,286,359

Proceeds from Government Grants 1,000,000 560,000

Payments to Suppliers and Employees (25,611,918) (24,106,910)

Dividends Received 90,192 -

Interest Paid 100,857 (64,788)

GST Received/(Paid) (1,770,871) (1,388,091)

Net Cash Provided by/(Used in) Operating Activities 19(b) 987,873 (713,430)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Payment for Property, Plant & Equipment (271,777) (449,243)

Repayment of Loans - -

Proceeds from the sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - -

(Payments for)/Proceeds from sale of Investments 1 ,971,535 -

Interest Received  - -

Net Cash Provided by/(Used in) Investing Activities  1,699,758 (449,243)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

(Repayment of)/Proceeds from Borrowings  (1,224,737) 47,919

Net Cash Provided by/(Used in) Financing Activities  (1,224,737) 47,919

Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash Held 1,462,894 (1,114,754)

Cash at the Beginning of the Financial Year (1,793,116) (678,362)

Cash at the End of the Financial Year 19(a) (330,222) (1,793,116)

1. Summary of Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial 
statements which have been prepared in accordance with 
the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting 
Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by 
the Directors on 19 August 2019.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the 
basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of 
certain financial instruments. Cost is based on the fair 
values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. 
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner 
which ensures that the resulting financial information 
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby 
ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions 
or other events is reported.

The financial statements have been prepared on the 
going concern basis. This contemplates continuity of 
normal business activities and the realization of assets 
and discharge of liabilities in the ordinary course of 
operations. The Directors are of the opinion that this 
basis of preparation is appropriate, noting that:

�� Short term financing obligations are capable of being 
met from available liquid funds;

�� Sufficient short term and long term banking facilities 
are in place;

�� Cash flows from operations are forecast to be positive 
for FY20 and beyond; and

�� The Board monitors its liquidity on a monthly basis 
through a series of independent determined benchmarks, 
these were met at 30 June 2019.

Adoption of new and revised 
accounting standards

The Company has adopted all of the new and revised 
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board that are relevant to its 
operations and effective for an accounting period that 
begins on or after 1 July 2018. New and revised Standards 
and amendments thereof and Interpretations effective for 
the current year that are relevant to the Company include:

�� AASB 9 Financial Instruments and related amending 
Standards

�� AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
and related amending Standards

In the current year, the Company has applied AASB 9 
Financial Instruments (as amended) and the related 
consequential amendments to other Accounting Standards 
that are effective for an annual period that begins on or 
after 1 July 2018. AASB 9 introduced new requirements for 
the classification and measurement of financial assets and 
financial liabilities and impairment of financial assets.  

There were no change to the classification and 
measurement of financial assists and financial liabilities as 
a result of the changes. Changes to the measurement of 
financial assets impairment were not material.

The Company has also applied AASB 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers (as amended) in the current 
year, which is effective for an annual period that begins 
on or after 1 July 2018. The Company’s accounting policies 
for its revenue streams are disclosed in detail in note 25 
below. Apart from providing more extensive disclosures, 
the application of AASB 15 has not had any impact on 
the financial position and/or financial performance of the 
Company and there were no adjustments to previously 
reported amounts as a result of applying the new standard.

Critical accounting judgements and key 
sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, 
management is required to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be 
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised 
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 
of revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the 
future, and other key sources or estimation uncertainty 
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

As described in Note 1(q), the Company reviews the 
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
at the end of each annual reporting period. During the 
financial year, the directors made no change to the useful 
lives of the property, plant and equipment held.

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 123 to 134 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019



124 125Cricket Tasmania Annual Report 2018-19 Cricket Tasmania Annual Report 2018-19

On initial application of AASB 16, the Company will: 

�� Recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the 
consolidated statement of financial position, initially 
measured at the present value of the future lease 
payments; 

�� Recognise depreciation of right-of-use assets and 
interest on lease liabilities in the consolidated statement 
of profit or loss; 

�� Separate the total amount of cash paid into a principal 
portion (presented within financing activities) and 
interest (presented within operating activities) in the 
consolidated cash flow statement.

As at 30 June 2019, the Company has non-cancellable 
operating lease commitments of $92,003 and the impact 
of adopting AASB 16 is not expected to be material. 
Similarly, the Company does not expect there to be a 
significant impact for assets held under a finance lease as 
a result of changes to the standard.

Significant Accounting Policies

The following significant accounting policies have 
been adopted in the preparation and presentation of 
the financial report:

(a) Income Tax

No provision for income tax is necessary, as the company 
is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the 
Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand; cash in 
banks and investments in money market instruments, net 
of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown 
within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

(c) Employee Benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees 
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long 
service leave when it is probable that settlement will be 
required, and they are capable of being measured reliably. 
Liabilities recognised expected to be settled within 12 
months are at their nominal values using the remuneration 
rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. Liabilities 
recognised in respect of employee benefits, which are not 
expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured as 
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows 
to be made by the company in respect of services provided 
by employees up to reporting date. 

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation 
plans are expensed when incurred.

(d) Financial Assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade 
date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a 
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment 
within the timeframe established by the market concerned, 
and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction 
costs except for those financial assets classified as at fair 
value through profit and loss which are initially measured 
at fair value.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The Company has classified shares and options as financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets 
held for trading purposes are classified as current assets 
and are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss 
recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and Receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables are 
recorded at amortised cost less impairment.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for 
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course 
of business. They are generally due for settlement within 
7-30 days and therefore are all classified as current. 
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount 
of consideration that is unconditional. The Company 
holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect 
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures 
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to 
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime 
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The 
expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles 
of sales and the corresponding historical credit losses 
experienced within this period. The historical loss rates 
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking 
information affecting the ability of the customers to 
settle the receivables.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither 
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership and continues to control the transferred 
asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the 
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have 
to pay. If the Company, retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, 
the Company continues to recognise the financial asset 
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the 
proceeds received.

(e) Borrowings

Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of 
transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are 
measured at amortised cost with any difference between 
the initial recognised amount and the redemption value 
being recognised in profit and loss over the period of the 
borrowing using the effective interest rate method.

(f) Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying 
amount of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have 
suffered an impairment loss. If such an indication exists, 
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order 
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). 
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are 
independent from other assets, the entity estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which 
the asset belongs.

(g) Government Grants

Government Grants related to income are recognised as 
income over the periods necessary to match them with 
the related costs. Government grants that are receivable 
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred 
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support 
to the entity with no future related costs are recognised 
as income in the period in which it becomes receivable. 
Government grants relating to assets are treated as 
deferred income and recognised in profit and loss over 
the expected useful lives of the assets concerned.

The current liability portion of the deferred grant income 
contributes to an excess of current liabilities over current 
assets. The Directors note that this deferred grant income 
does not have a cash impact and believe the impact of 
this on the working capital deficiency is therefore not 
unexpected and is reasonable.

(h) Payables

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the 
future for goods or services received, whether or not 
billed to the Company. Trade payables are normally settled 
within thirty (30) days. The net fair value of Creditors 
approximates their carrying amounts.

(i) Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the 
goods and services tax (GST), except:

i.	 where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable 
from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part 
of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an 
item of expense; or

ii.	 for receivables and payables which are recognised 
inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, 
the taxation authority is included as part of receivables 
or payables.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on 
a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising 
from investing and financing activities which is recoverable 
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as 
operating cash flows. 

(j) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.

(k) Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods and disposal of assets

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other 
assets is recognised when the company has passed control 
of the goods or other assets to the buyer.

Rendering of Services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised 
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract.

Contributions of assets

Revenue arising from the contribution of assets is 
recognised when the Company gains control of the 
contribution or the right to receive the contribution.

(l) Leased Assets

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
on a basis which reflects the pattern in which economic 
benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

(m) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the 
period in which they are incurred. 

(n) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that the Company will be required to settle 
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate 
of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking 
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash 
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying 
amount is the present value of those cash flows.

(o) Finance Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms 
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified 
as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as 
assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of 
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum 
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is 
included in the statement of financial position as a finance 
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses 
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Finance expenses are immediately recognised in 
profit or loss.

(p) Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially 
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with 
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating 
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments through the effective useful life 
of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter 
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

(q) Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets acquired are recorded at the cost of acquisition, 
being the purchase consideration determined as at the date 
of acquisition plus costs incidental to the acquisition. 

The depreciable amount of fixed assets is depreciated over 
their estimated useful lives commencing from the time the 
asset is held ready for use on a straight line basis. Leasehold 
improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the 
unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of 
the improvements. Depreciation of plant and equipment is 
done over 3-10 years, ground facilities are depreciated over 
approximately 10-20 years and leasehold improvements and 
the library are amortised over 40-50 years. 
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2. Profit from Operations

2019 2018

$ $

Revenue

General Operating Income 24,236,325 22,373,750 

Building/Infrastructure Improvement Government Grant 1,242,266  1,233,811 

High Performance Centre Grant 2,000,000 -

ICON Government Grant 1,000,000  560,000 

Dividends Received  90,192 -

Interest Received 3,656 -

Rental Revenue 183,423 61,422 

Unrealised Gain on Investments - 138,371 

Total Revenue 28,755,862 24,367,354 

Expenditure by nature of expense:

Administration and General Expenses  8,447,575  8,054,268 

Payroll Tax Grouping Determination  719,736 -

Finance Costs*  (35,139)  57,705 

Cricket Operations Expenses  15,679,879  14,996,193 

Depreciation Property, Plant & Equipment  1,918,689  1,883,818 

Transfers to Provisions for Employee Benefits  55,382  (8,269)

Contribution to Defined Contribution Funds  1,003,359  1,006,506 

Auditor's Fees  26,395  22,500 

Realised Loss on Investments  33,603 -

Total Expenditure 27,849,479 26,012,721

Profit/(Loss) for the year 906,383 (1,645,367)

The auditor of Cricket Tasmania is Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. 
*�Finance cost includes interest paid of $49,152 and notional interest on interest-free loan of $150,009, offset 
by an adjustment to the fair value of the interest free loan of $234,300 due to a partial repayment of the loan 
and an extension of the loan period.

3. Key Management Personnel Remuneration

The key management personnel of Cricket Tasmania during the year were:

Nick Cummins (Chief Executive)
Drew Ginn (General Manager - High Performance) - departed 26 July 2019
Adam Griffith (State Coach)
Zoe Rohrer (General Manager - Corporate Services) - Maternity leave commenced 27 May 2019
Samantha Ravani (General Manager - Corporate Services) - Commenced 27 May 2019
Stephen McMullen (General Manager - Venue & Event Operations)
Phil Rigby (General Manager - Hobart Hurricanes and Commercial) - departed 1 March 2019
Scott Barnes (General Manager - Hobart Hurricanes and Commercial) - commenced 8 April 2019
Taryn Brighten (General Manager - Events & Operations) - departed 3 May 2019
Ben Smith (General Manager - Game and Market Development)

The aggregate compensation of the key management personnel of the Company is set out below:

Total Employment Benefits  1,373,657  1,240,838 

Directors

Directors who have held office during the financial year are: J.M. Bailey, D.C. Boon, P.T. Clark, D. Davey, A.I. Gaggin,  
J. Hartnett, B.J. Jefferies, E.G. Johannes, R.E.G. Kemp, C.P. Mitchell, B. Targett and N. Turner.

In respect of the financial year, the directors of the Company, directly or indirectly, did not receive any remuneration.

4. Related Parties

Transactions with Director-related Entities

Andrew Gaggin (Chairman) is a Partner of Murdoch Clarke Lawyers. During the financial year Cricket Tasmania received 
services from Murdoch Clarke Lawyers which will be invoiced in FY20.

Ben Targett (Director) is the General Manager of The Old Woolstore Apartment Hotel. During the financial year Cricket 
Tasmania provided The Old Woolstore Apartment Hotel BBL|08 tickets and hospitality in exchange for accommodation as 
part of a sponsorship arrangement.

5. Trade and Other Receivables

2019 2018

$ $

Sundry Debtors (i)  552,534  868,350 

Accrued Income  151,132 -

Allowance for doubtful debts - -

  703,666  868,350 

(i) 	 Trade receivables disclosed above are measured at amortised cost.

The average credit period on sales of goods and services is 7 - 30 days. No interest is charged on outstanding 
trade receivables. It is expected that all trade receivables are recoverable based on past experience.

$77,000 in 61-90 days relate to Contra Sponsorship for apparel for the 2020 season. $4,402 in > 120 days relates to 
unspent Contra Sponsorship from the 2019 season which will be recovered in the 2020 season.

Ageing of past due but not impaired

30 - 60 days  2,360  70,827 

61 - 90 days  77,591  2,383 

91 - 120 days  411  118,800 

 80,363  192,010 

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at the beginning of the year -  105,682 

Impairment losses recognised on receivables -  (105,682)

Balance at the end of the year - -

Ageing of past due but not impaired

> 120 days  4,579  1,857 

Total  4,579  1,857 

6. Prepayments

Prepaid Expenses  76,459  154,320 

 76,459  154,320 

7. Inventories

Bar stock - at cost  43,902  29,456 

Food stores - at cost  15,159  18,781 

Merchandise - at cost  127,866  87,786 

 186,927  136,023 
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8. �Investments (at fair value through profit or loss)

2019 2018

$ $

AMP eWrap -  2,004,884 

-  2,004,884 

The underlying investment return is disclosed in Note 22.

9. Trade and Other Payables

Trade Payables  2,125,428  830,740 

Accruals  1,197,387  1,148,005 

 3,322,814  1,978,745 

Terms are net 30 days. The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid 
within the pre-agreed credit terms.

10. Deferred Revenue

Government Grants (i)

(a) Current  1,245,130  1,234,794 

(b) Non-Current  31,172,681  32,425,282 

 32,417,811  33,660,076 

(i) �	 The deferred revenue arises as a result of a Government Grant received for the installation of the Bellerive Oval 
lights, and an additional Government Grant received to assist in the redevelopment of the Western side of the arena. 
Both revenue items will be amortised over the useful life of the respective assets.

11. Provisions

(a) Current

Employee Benefits (i)  392,517  426,437 

Players Payroll Tax Provision (ii) -  80,000 

 392,517  506,437 

(b) Non-Current

Employee Benefits (i)  128,443  99,586 

Player Payment Pool Provision (iii)  5,361 

 133,804  99,586 

 526,321  606,023 

(i) 	 The provision for employee benefits represents annual leave and vested long service leave entitlements accrued.

(ii) 	 A payroll tax determination was handed down during the 2018-19 financial year and this provision was reversed with the 
full liability now paid. The Company appealed the determination - refer note 23.

(ii) 	 The player payment pool provision represents the expected player payment liability that is likely to fall due at 
the end of the current Memorandum of Understanding with the Australian Cricketers Association.

12. Borrowings

2019 2018

$ $

Secured - at amortised cost

Bank Loans (i)  1,000  1,200,000 

Bank Overdraft (ii)  357,168  1,806,749 

CA Loan (iii)  1,494,959  3,579,251 

Finance Lease Liabilities (Note 13)  86,369  112,107 

 1,939,496  6,698,107 

(a) Current  377,341  1,832,487 

(b) Non-Current  1,562,155  4,865,620 

 1,939,496  6,698,107 

Loans with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia and secured by 1st mortgage over the Lease and over the Assets of 
the Company.

(i) 	 Market rate loans for $1,000, variable interest only payable monthly from the date of funding, maturing in January 2021. 
Total facility available of $1.2 million.

(ii) 	 Bank overdraft facility of $2 million, variable interest only. Total undrawn funds of $1.64 million at 30 June 2019 
(2018: $193 thousand).

(iii) 	Cricket Australia provided the Association with a $4 million interest free loan during the 2015-16 financial year, $2 
million was repaid during the 2018-19 financial year via a grant received from Cricket Australia for the High Performance 
Centre upgrades. The loan is repayable in between June 2024 and June 2026. For accounting purposes the loan is 
required to be recognised at Net Present Value. For this purpose an interest rate of 4.4% has been used.

(iv) 	Commonwealth Bank of Australia credit card facility of $40,000.

13. Obligations under Finance Leases

Finance leases relate to Plant and Equipment with lease terms of 5 years. The Association's obligations under the finance 
leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets.

Minimum Lease Payments

Not later than one year  32,023  32,023 

Later than one year and not later than five years  62,876  94,900 

Later than five years - -

 94,900  126,924 

Less future finance charges  (8,531)  (14,816)

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments  86,369  112,108 

Included in Financial Statements as: 

- Current Borrowings (Note 12(a))  27,394  25,738 

- Non-Current Borrowings (Note 12(b))  58,975  86,369 

 86,369  112,107 
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14. �Property, Plant & Equipment at cost

Plant & 
Equipment

Ground 
Facilities

Leasehold 
Improvements

Blundstone Arena 
Gymnasium

Museum 
and Library

Western 
Grandstand

Oval  
Redevelopment

BA Lights
Total 

(at cost)

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance at 1 July 2017  4,364,450  1,094,730  18,047,318  286,916  104,022  37,103,328  490,260  4,317,376  65,808,400 

Additions  273,799  16,852 - - -  158,592 - -  449,243 

Disposals - - - - - - - - -

Net adjustments - - - - - - - - -

Balance at 30 June 2018  4,638,249  1,111,582  18,047,318  286,916  104,022  37,261,920  490,260  4,317,376  66,257,644 

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation

Balance at 1 July 2017  (3,790,173)  (851,055)  (8,197,523)  (238,753)  (36,757)  (2,296,453)  (120,152)  (1,281,130)  (16,811,996)

Depreciation/Amortisation  (181,314)  (47,064)  (290,357)  (7,195)  (4,610)  (1,145,128)  (27,072)  (181,078)  (1,883,818)

Disposals - - - - - - - - -

Net adjustments - - - - - - - - -

Balance at 30 June 2018  (3,971,487)  (898,119)  (8,487,880)  (245,948)  (41,367)  (3,441,581)  (147,225)  (1,462,208)  (18,695,814)

Net Book Value

As at 30 June 2018  666,762  213,463  9,559,438  40,968  62,655  33,820,339  343,036  2,855,167  47,561,829

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance at 01 July 2018  4,638,249  1,111,582  18,047,318  286,916  104,022  37,261,920  490,260  4,317,376  66,257,644 

Additions  149,873  3,001 -  3,990 -  110,550 - -  267,414 

Disposals - - - - - - - - -

Net adjustments - - - - - - - - -

Balance at 30 June 2019  4,788,122  1,114,583  18,047,318  290,906  104,022  37,372,470  490,260  4,317,376  66,525,056 

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation

Balance at 01 July 2018  (3,971,487)  (898,119)  (8,487,880)  (245,948)  (41,367)  (3,441,581)  (147,225)  (1,462,208)  (18,695,814)

Depreciation/Amortisation  (168,742)  (43,980)  (286,929)  (6,512)  (4,506)  (1,179,727)  (47,214)  (181,079)  (1,918,689)

Disposals - - - - - - - - -

Net adjustments - - - - - - - - -

Balance at 30 June 2019  (4,140,229)  (942,099)  (8,774,809)  (252,460)  (45,873)  (4,621,308)  (194,439)  (1,643,287)  (20,614,503)

Net Book Value

As at 30 June 2019  647,893  172,484  9,272,509  38,446  58,149  32,751,162  295,821  2,674,089  45,910,553

2019 2018

$ $

Aggregate depreciation and amortisation allocated, whether recognised as  
an expense or capitalised as part of the carrying amount of other assets during the year:

Plant & Equipment  168,742  181,314 

Ground Facilities  43,980  47,064 

Leasehold Improvements  286,929  290,357 

Blundstone Arena Gymnasium  6,512  7,195 

Library  4,506  4,610 

Western Grandstand  1,179,727  1,145,128 

Oval Redevelopment  47,214  27,072 

Blundstone Arena Lights  181,079  181,078 

 1,918,689  1,883,818 
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15. Reserves

2019 2018

$ $

Junior Development Reserve  1,407  1,407 

General Reserve  500,000  500,000 

 501,407  501,407 

Junior Development Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,407 1,407

Junior Development Program Grants - -

Balance at the end of the financial year  1,407  1,407

Holds the proceeds from sale of Bradman prints held for future Junior Development Programs.

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  500,000  500,000 

Balance at the end of the financial year  500,000  500,000 

Held for future unexpected expenses.

16. Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  7,294,681  8,940,048 

Net Profit/(Loss)  906,383  (1,645,367)

Balance at the end of the financial year  8,201,064  7,294,681 

17. Members Guarantee

Cricket Tasmania is a Company limited by guarantee and has an exemption under Section 383 of the Corporations 
Act 2001 from displaying "Limited" after its name. If the Company is wound up, each full member, other than an Honorary 
Life Member, is required to contribute a maximum of $2.10 towards meeting outstanding obligations of the Company.

As at 30 June 2019 the number of full members was 1,315 (2018: 1,406).

18. Operating Leases

Cricket Tasmania has a lease with the Clarence City Council for Bellerive Oval. The lease is for 45 years commencing 
October 2001 and rent is payable at the rate of 0.89% of the gross audited revenue for the previous year, 
commencing 1 July 2003. The commitment for this lease has not been quantified due to the uncertainty of the 
amounts to be paid in future years.

The Company leases 5 motor vehicles with Toyota Leasing. These leases will expire in 2020 and 2021. 

19. Cash Flow Information

2019 2018

$ $

(a) Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of this cash flow statement, cash includes cash on hand  
and the association's Commonwealth Bank cheque account (overdraft) balance:

Cash on Hand  26,946  13,633 

Commonwealth Bank - Cheque Account  (357,168)  (1,806,749)

 (330,222)  (1,793,116)

No Interest was earned on this account for the financial period. 

2019 2018

$ $

(b) Reconciliation of Profit/(Loss) for the period to Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating Profit/(Loss)  906,383 (1,645,367)

Non-cash Flows in Operating Profit

Depreciation & Amortisation  1,918,689 1,883,818

Government Grant Recognised  (1,242,266) (1,233,811)

High Performance Centre Grant  (2,000,000) -

Interest Income Received and Receivable  (84,291) -

Realised Loss/(Unrealised Gain) on Capital Investments  33,349  (138,371)

Changes in Assets & Liabilities

Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables & Inventory  202,278  (167,429)

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables  1,333,433  698,735 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  (79,702)  (111,005)

  987,873  (713,430)

20. Financial Instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Investments -  2,004,884 

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost  703,666  868,350 

Cash and cash equivalents  26,946  13,633 

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost  5,262,310  8,676,852 

21. Economic Dependency

Cricket Tasmania receives significant funding from Cricket Australia for its operations and participation in Australian Cricket 
programs and competitions.
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22. Investment Returns

2019 2018

$
Annualised 

Investment Return %
$

Annualised 
Investment Return %

Investments consist of:

AMP eWrap - 0.00%  2,004,884 10.56%

Commonwealth Bank Online Saver - 0.00% - 0.00%

Investments are brought to account at market value. The net fair value approximates the carrying amounts. All investments 
are at call. The AMP eWrap account was closed in April 2019 and the proceeds were used to reduce interest bearing debt.

23. Contingent Assets

In respect to repairs that were undertaken to the light towers at Blundstone Arena during the financial year, the costs 
($175,240) have been expensed to the profit and loss however a claim has been lodged with our insurers and we are 
investigating other actions to recover the costs.

In respect to the payroll tax grouping determination ($719,736) issued by the Tasmanian State Revenue Office, an 
application has been made to the appeals tribunal division of the Tasmanian Magistrates Court to recover the costs.

24. Events after the Reporting Period

No events have occurred after the reporting period that will have a material impact on the results presented in these 
financial statements.

25. Revenue Recognised from Contracts with Customers

2019 2018

$ $

Events Income  3,076,783  2,584,518 

Membership  636,154  634,778 

Sponsorship  2,828,384  1,785,757 

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers  6,541,321  5,005,053 

Events Income

Comprises income from the sale of match tickets, Blundstone Arena Function Centre events and venue hire.  
Revenue is recognised at the point in time as each service is rendered. 

Membership

Membership benefits include access to cricket matches and other content at Blundstone Arena. Revenue is 
recognised over the membership period being the Cricket Season which coincides with the reporting period. 

Sponsorship

The services provided to sponsors include signage, corporate hospitality, appearances, match day tickets, other 
events and the use of logos and trademarks. Revenue is recognised over the sponsorship period being the Cricket 
Season which coincides with the reporting period.
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